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Chairman’s Statement

B R4

The financial year ended 31 March 2018 (the “Year"”)
is a year of excitement and achievement for Chinlink
International Holdings Limited (the “Company” or
“Chinlink”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”).

The first excitement comes from the unique geographic
advantage of the Group’s market. Since 2012, the Group
has been establishing a strong foothold in Shaanxi
Province particularly Xi'an City (“Xi'an") as a successful
integrated financial services provider as well as a developer
and operator in commercial properties and trade logistics
park in the region, gathering years of extensive knowledge
and insights of the local economy and the market. In
the past few years, the Group witnessed phenomenal
changes in the region’s economic landscape, from being
a backwater inland province in the western part of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”) to
a developing region with robust potential. It is widely
held that time has come for the region to regain its past

BHE_ZT- \F=ZA=+—HLEMBFE
(IFFEDHEETSBEBRIERERAA
(MR8 [HERE ) REWBAR (4
BIREE]) K ES ARE FMITimAHH
_f'go

FE—EARERAAEEBFOMISHMIBAE
B BT —_F8 FAEEEKRESE L
HREAEAZM ([BAR])EY TERENED
KRireemBREHER UREAXNEED
XREEMTERNERAREERN WL
BEFHKEER HEMNKEENTISER
BEFRNBENRE -RNBTLEFT ~E£ER
BIZREEERENENEYE —thE
ARZEME ([HE]) ABREHAREEHE
BRAEBRRERE MR -Zitb@ER

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % I tp 6 B B #% )8 45 B8 44 7] Annual Report 2018 4



glory and to be rebuilt as a cultural, political, economic,
financial and technology hub of the Western China and
along the areas covered by the Belt and Road Initiative (the
"Belt & Road"”). The changes are mostly attributed to a
number of grand national policies launched by the Central
People’s Government of the PRC. In 2000, when the
China’s Western Development Strategy was introduced,
Xi'an has become the focal point for the development of
the China’s central and northwestern regions, leading to
the revitalisation of the land trade routes to Central Asia
and Europe. The Belt & Road masterminded by President
Xi in 2013 is likely to restore Xi‘an to its former glory as
both the origin and terminus of the ancient Silk Road.
Furthermore, Xi‘an is endorsed by the Chinese State
Council to build up the Greater Xi‘an into an international
metropolis and be promoted as one of the nine National
Central Cities in China. All these national development
strategies have placed the Shaanxi Province, with Xi‘an
in particular, under the spotlight as the most promising
development centre of China. As Xi'an is on track to catch
up with the rest of the well-developed coastal areas, it
provides both unprecedent challenge and opportunity for
the Group. Since the Group has already well-positioned
in the region, it has every reason for the Group to realise
the first-mover advantages and benefits brought by the

region’s development in the coming era.
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Chairman’s Statement

B R4

Given the Group's specialisation in financial services
and its established connection with the international
capital market through its home base in Hong Kong,
itself being an important global financial centre, the
Group is dedicated to act as a bridge between the
international investment community and the growing
Shaanxi enterprises which have diversified capital needs.
On 26 April 2017, the Shaanxi Provincial Department of
Commerce and Chinlink jointly organised the first Shaanxi-
Hong Kong Financial Cooperation Exchange, gathering
financial institutions from Hong Kong and Shaanxi
Province to explore cooperation opportunities under the
Belt & Road and the establishment of the China (Shaanxi)
Pilot Free Trade Zone (the “Shaanxi Free Trade Zone").
This year, on 12 June 2018, the second Shaanxi-Hong
Kong Financial Cooperation Forum (the “Forum”) was
successfully held, also jointly organised by the Shaanxi
Provincial Department of Commerce and Chinlink, with the
supports from the Shaanxi Liaison Unit of The Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region Government and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The theme of this Forum focused on how to bring foreign
venture investment funds to connect with the Shaanxi
enterprises and to explore the opportunity for those
enterprises listing on the Stock Exchange, especially for the
technology and IT companies with new business models
qualified under the newly-adopted Stock Exchange listing
requirements. The last two forums were so successful,
and the Group has come to aware its important mission
in bridging the Shaanxi Province and Hong Kong capital
markets, it is the Group's resolve to organise this kind of
forum every year with similar objective but with different
theme to address the circumstantial needs of the Shaanxi
enterprises. This will further strengthen the Group’s
position in Shaanxi Province to capture the arising business
opportunities.
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Xi'an, and even the entire Shaanxi Province, are renowned
for its strong technology legacy in aerospace and aircraft
engineering, equipment and machinery manufacturing,
software development and outsourcing, etc. However, many
of these are state-owned enterprises (“SOEs”) and their
technology and productions are not necessarily for civilian
application and not market oriented. It requires a lot of
capital and entrepreneurial skills to convert these
technologies and know-how into viable businesses and to
attract investors’ attention. On the other hand, Xi‘an is
well-known for its standing in higher education and
research achievements, ranks only after Beijing and
Shanghai. There are over 60 colleges and universities in
Xi'an, with an enrollment of over one million students from
all over the country and over 300,000 graduates leaving
schools every year. Both the provincial and municipal
governments regard the deployment of technology and
human resources by private enterprises as top priority and
provide lots of assistance to the enterprises during their
various development stages, including measures to take
care of their capital needs. One of those notable policies is
the “Longmen Scheme” * which encourages Shaanxi
Province and Xi'an enterprises to seek for public listing in
domestic and overseas stock markets, including Hong Kong.
Under this favorable environment, the Group has an
important role to assist the enterprises by applying its
financing expertise through its well-established
comprehensive financial services platform. The Group's
existing financing vehicles including Shaanxi Chinlink
Financial Guarantee Limited* (the “Financial Guarantee
Company”), Chinlink Finance Lease Company Limited* (the
“Finance Lease Company”) and the supply chain finance
companies are all working on customised solutions to cater
for Shaanxi Province enterprises’ different working capital
and investment needs. Furthermore, the Group will also go
after the enterprises’ equity funding opportunity by
bringing in venture capitals and assist them in overseas
listing through the Group’s investment banking companies,
the MCM Holdings Limited (“MCM Holdings”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “MCM Group”).

*  For identification purpose only
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Chairman’s Statement

B R4

In November 2017, the Group completed the first
milestone achievement of the Year with the acquisition
of 51.0% controlling interest in the MCM Group.
MCM Group is a boutique investment bank licensed
by the Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC"”) of
Hong Kong to provide services including dealing in
securities and futures contracts, advising on securities
and asset management, etc. This is a highly strategic
move for the Group in the diversification of its scope of
financial services, just in time for the Group to seize the
opportunity to serve the huge capital need under the
Shaanxi development plans. The Group is in the process of
applying for setting up a private equity asset management
company in Xi‘an which targets to invest in the technology
enterprises of high growth potential. MCM Group will also
play an active role bringing in overseas venture capital and
partnership, and provides corporate advisory services for
Shaanxi enterprises seeking for initial public offering in
Hong Kong or other overseas market.

The Group's two other major achievements during the
Year are as follow.

Firstly, the Group has expanded its property investment
portfolio through the acquisition of a construction-in-
progress office building of which the majority of the space
will be leased out and held for long term investment.
Moreover, the Group has acquired the remaining 26.625%
minority shareholding in the Daminggong Construction
Materials and Furniture Shopping Centre (Dongsanhuan
Branch)* (the “Commercial Complex”) in Xi'an, allowing
the Group to enjoy all the benefits brought by this
lucrative operation and the future development potential
of the Group’s nearby undeveloped land right next to the
Commercial Complex with the potential to build 119,000
square meters (“sq. m.”) additional space (the “Phase
Two Development”). Both transactions will increase the
Group's steady income base. Thus, the Group can
continue to enjoy the upside potential of the Xi‘an real
estate market with a stronger asset base and will be in a
better position to bargain for higher leverage ratio in
terms of bank financing at more accommodating cost.

*  For identification purpose only
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Secondly, the Group has successfully invited two
SOEs as strategic partners investing into the Financial
Guarantee Company and the Finance Lease Company.
The investments from the two SOEs serve to strengthen
the companies’ capital base which is necessary for
further business expansion, as well as to enhance their
creditability and ratings favorable to their further external
funding.

Concerning existing business, the Group has successfully
rolled out the finance leasing business during the Year and
has already secured a sizable leasing portfolio of diversified
industries and geographical locations. Additionally, the
Group's trading and supply chain finance operations
recorded tremendous growths in terms of both revenue
and gross profit and the financial guarantee operations
were stable. Rental and management incomes gained from
the Commercial Complex were also highly encouraging, it
constantly maintained a very high occupancy rate and it
reached 99.0% as of the end of the Year. The launch of
the wholesale marketplace for building and construction
materials and home furnishing products in phase one
of the ChinlinkeWorldport Integrated Logistics Park
(“ChinlinkeWorldport”) (located in the Hanzhong Baohe
Logistics Park in Hanzhong City, a major city in the south
western part of the Shaanxi Province) in the third quarter
of 2018 and completion of the Commercial Building (as
defined below) will also contribute new incomes to the

Group.
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Chairman’s Statement

B R4

The Group is full of confident about its future. It is now
a truly multi-platform financial service provider both
in traditional alternative financing in China and capital
market services on international scale, supported by a pool
of experienced financial professionals of multi-culture and
multi-market backgrounds ready to deploy their expertise
through the Group's financial platform. The Group also
enjoys strong asset backing from its portfolio optimisation
and continued investment in commercial properties and
logistics park. The most important is, after many years’
efforts, the Group has already established strong footing
on one of the most promising growth regions of China.
It has come to the time for the Group to realise its past
cultivations.

Intelligent, creative, dedicated and responsible employees
are the Group’s most valuable assets in this challenging
and competitive era. The Group would like to take this
opportunity to thank its Board members, shareholders and
diligent employees for their hard work, loyal service and

contributions during the Year.

Li Weibin
Chairman
Hong Kong, 25 June 2018
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TURNOVER BY OPERATING SEGMENTS
REESBHI ZERE
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Revenue from International Trading

Financial Highlights
S 5 4 2

Service Revenue from Interior Decoration Work
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Financial Summary

St 5 Wt 2

For the year ended 31 March 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
BEZA=t+-HLEE “E-0\f% EtE —2-1E —5-1F —E-mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEL T TR T
Revenue KA 1,257,726 518,834 201,297 252,393 151,731
Gross profit Eil 147,203 93,636 51,331 55,790 41,040
(Loss) profit before taxation B¥iar (F8)ER (5,461) 53,303 166,988 (76,158) (93,060)
Income tax (charge) credit FeH (R &% (23,665) (28,479) (7,928) (4,031) 2,718
(Loss) profit for the year rEEZ (BB)&EA (29,126) 24,824 159,060 (80,189) (90,342)
(Loss) profit before non-controlling B FEERERA (F8)
interests gl (29,126) 24,824 159,060 (80,189) (90,342)
Non-controlling interests FERER (48,751) (23,487) (1,397) - -
(Loss) profit attributable to KAAEEAELS (BB)
owners of the Company gl (77,877) 1,337 157,663 (80,189) (90,342)
Dividends paid 2RE - - - - -
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&E35) (ZE3) (E35)
Basic (loss) earnings per share SREX (B EAN HK(11.44) centi 4L HK0.42 centfl  HK139.76 centsE Il HK(84.25) centsi&{ll  HK(112.62) centsi& {l
Diluted (loss) earnings per share SREE (FB)EAN HK(11.44) cent{l HK0.42 centB (Ll HK139.47 centsi& NA TER N/A T &
At 31 March 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
RZA=1-H —E-N\E —E-t% ZE-E —Z-0% —Z-mE
HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
TiER FEL Titn Ti#n Fir
Non-current assets FRBEE 4,080,508 2,875,043 2,751,848 340,028 39,754
Current assets hBEE 1,071,446 704,081 401,366 571,948 667,811
Bank balances and cash BAEFRAE 193,082 95,988 48,975 67,145 228,439
Current liabilities hBaE 1,183,206 1,103,149 1,131,653 479,943 338,263
Net current (liabilities) assets FE (8B EERE (111,760) (399,068) (730,287) 92,005 329,548
Non-current liabilities FRBaE 2,117,319 911,028 909,751 203,680 266,435
Net assets BEFE 1,851,429 1,564,947 1,111,810 228,353 102,867
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group continues to operate as a comprehensive
financial services provider for small and medium-sized
enterprises (“SMEs"”) in the PRC with main focus in the
Shaanxi Province and Hong Kong during the Year. The
business is carried out by its multi-licensed financial
services vehicles, including the Financial Guarantee
Company (a direct non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) and the Finance Lease Company a (direct
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) licensed
and based in Hanzhong and Xi'an of Shaanxi Province
respectively. Application for a factoring company to be set
up in Xi‘an is at the final stage and will be in operation
very soon. The Group also involves actively in supply
chain finance and international trading in Xi'an and Hong
Kong, and logistics and property investment in Xi‘an and

Hanzhong in the Shaanxi Province.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

o B o B o Bt

Recently, China has stepped up its supervision on the
banking and shadow banking practices to control
lending to certain industries, such as real estates and off-
balance sheet lending activities, aiming to contain the
financial risks associated with excessive credit and over
leveraging. Therefore, banks in China are getting even
more cautious towards SME financing which hindered the
Group's financing guarantee business growth since clients
still have to rely on banks which provide loan against
the Company’s guarantee. However, other alternative
financial products targeting to serve the real economy,
like leasing, supply chain finance and factoring, are highly
welcomed by the regulatory authorities. These types of
financing are generally not available from the Chinese
banks, and so there is huge space for the Group to expand
in these areas. During the Year, both the finance lease
segment and international trading segment have reflected
tremendous growth. Also, the Group is going to launch
factoring business later this year which is envisaged to be
another strong prospective segment amongst the Group's
comprehensive financial services platform. With all these in
place, the Group will be in a very unique position to offer
a highly comprehensive range of financial services to its
clients.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report,
the Group has secured two SOEs, as its strategic partners
in the Finance Lease Company and the Financial Guarantee
Company. The new capitals are meant to expand their
leasing and guarantee portfolios. Furthermore, given their
SOE shareholder backgrounds, the companies’ credit rating
will be enhanced and new customer referrals from their
respective networks can be achieved.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group diversified into merchant banking business
through the merger with MCM Group during the Year.
The MCM Group is a boutique investment and merchant
bank incorporated in Hong Kong, licensed and regulated
by the SFC of Hong Kong under types 1, 2, 4 and 9,
covering dealings in securities and futures contracts,
and advising on securities and asset management. The
MCM Group’s headquarters is based in Hong Kong with
office in London, and representatives from Singapore
and Mumbai. Different from the Group’s other lending
based financing services, the MCM Group’s strength
mainly lies in its expertise in equity and capital market
operations, providing clients innovative investment and
financing solutions in the international primary and
secondary markets. Target clientele may not be the same
as the Group’s existing SME clients and is not restricted
to Hong Kong and China. Founded in 2012 by a team
of experienced bankers of top multi-national investment
banking backgrounds with established global connections,
the MCM Group has already secured a client base across
the Greater China and other Asian markets, linking clients
with a pool of international investment funds, sovereign
wealth, private equity and family offices. It has conducted
a lot of transactions for international clients and investors
across Hong Kong, China, United States, Europe, India
and Singapore. The MCM Group will focus more on China
in working together with the Group to assist Chinese
enterprises in entering the international capital market.
The MCM Group will continue to expand its China
operations and is applying for asset management licence
for onshore asset management, private equity funds and
wealth management operations in China to capitalise on

the Group's advantageous position in the market.
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The Group's property investments mainly consist of the
Commercial Complex situates in the eastern part of Xi'an,
and two other valuable projects in the final stage of
development. The Commercial Complex was previously
73.375% owned by the Group only. In February 2018, the
Group acquired the remaining 26.625% at a consideration
of RMB295.9 million. Currently, the Commercial Complex
is enjoying a high occupancy rate of approximately 99.0%
with a pool of quality tenants, generating stable rentals
and management fees to the Group. The Group also
possesses the Phase Two Development. The original plan of
Phase Two Development in 2015 was to develop a mixed-
use commercial and residential building to be completed
by the end of 2016. It was postponed because of the
unfavorable Xi‘an property market condition during the
last few years. However, in the past 12 months, Xi‘an
real estates experienced a strong surge especially in the
residential sector. The commercial sector for office and
retail is lagging behind but is generally expected to catch
up very soon. Also, in the past few years, there have been
substantial demographic changes in the neighbourhood.
In the past, it was mainly consisted of traditional dwellings
and older populations. As part of the overall Xi'an old city
redevelopment scheme, many residential developments are
completed and the area is now composed of many high-
rise residential estates, mostly occupied by young middle-
income families with relatively high spending power
and preferences for lifestyle shopping experience rather
than traditional mall. As the highly-densed residential
estates nearby are not equipped with shopping and retail
facilities, the Group intends to change the development
solely for commercial use to match with the change of
market conditions and the up-side potential of commercial
property value. The Phase Two Development will
commence in the third quarter of 2019 and is targeted to
be completed by the third quarter of 2022. It will be built
as a lifestyle retail and leisure complex to provide the same
119,000 sg. m., and will be integrated with the existing

Commercial Complex.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Another major property investment project of the Group
is the ChinlinkeWorldport. Hanzhong's economy has been
developing rapidly over the last few years, benefiting from
its diversification from traditional mining and agricultural
industries, to equipment and machinery assembly and
manufacturing, especially in the area of transferring
national defence, aviation and aerospace technologies into
civilian uses. Also, a new high-speed train route between
Xi‘an and Chengdu was open in last October, and it only
takes around an hour to travel from Xi‘an to Hanzhong.
This has become another booster to the Hanzhong's
economy. But the most important consideration for the
Group to invest substantially in the city is its strategic
location as a transportation and logistics hub for the
regions covering Shaanxi, Sichuan, Chongging and
the western inland provinces like Gansu, Xinjiang and
Ningxia, which are linked by an extensive highway and
rail networks that are largely completed. The Chinlinke
Worldport project is designed to be an inland port and
transportation and logistics entrepot connecting the road
and rail systems, with custom and bonded warehouses
to serve the region’s import and export trades, wholesale
distribution of building and construction materials, home
furnishing products, Chinese herbs and medicines, and
fast-moving consumer products. The entire Hanzhong
Baohe Logistics Park project covers a land mass of
approximately 9,000 mu, in which the planned land of
area of ChinlinkeWorldport covers approximately 3,800
mu and to be acquired and built by phases. The first
phase of ChinlinkeWorldport is designed as a wholesale
marketplace for building and construction materials, home
furnishing products, and Chinese herbs and medicines,
operated by our experienced management team from
the Commercial Complex and equipped with supporting
business, hotel and food and beverages facilities, and
warehouses. Total area of the wholesale marketplace for
building and construction materials and home furnishing
products is approximately 150,000 sg. m., and its official
opening is scheduled in the third quarter of 2018. There
has been certain delay in the opening mainly due to the
late completion of public works like roads, drainages and
water supply.
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In May 2017, the Group completed the acquisition of a
parcel of land situated in Xi‘an, with construction currently
in progress for a prime commercial and office building
with total gross floor area of approximately 55,491 sq.
m. (the “"Commercial Building”). This Commercial
Building is located at an ideal business and residential
district surrounded by the People’s Government of
Xi‘an Municipality, the Xi‘an Economic & Technological
Development Zone, the Shaanxi Free Trade Zone and
the Xi‘an High-speed Railway Station. The Commercial

Building comprises office and commercial facilities.

The Group’s international trading business mainly focuses
on electronic components and edible oil. It has enjoyed
substantial growth in the international trading business as
market demand for critical electronic components remains
strong, and is still growing. Further to our existing local
suppliers of edible oil in Xi’an, the Group will diversify the
supplier base by importing directly from Russia and sale
to local processors and distributors in Xi‘an. As a result,
the Group anticipates continuous growth in this business

segment.

Segmental Performance
International Trading Business

For the Year, the international trading recorded a 175.3%
growth. Revenue increased from HK$405.4 million for
the year ended 31 March 2017 (the “Previous Year”) to
HK$1,115.9 million. The increase is mostly attributable to
the high demand of NAND flash memory and other critical
electronic components which constitute a major portion
of the total international trading business. According to
Gartner, the global semiconductor industry grew by more
than 20.0% in 2017, within which the memory chip
market grew by 61.8%. Gross profit margin also improved
from 2.9% to 3.2% due to the economy of scale resulted
from the growth of NAND flash and electronic components

business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financing Guarantee Services Business

For the Year, the Group generated the revenue of HK$17.0
million from financing guarantee services which is the
same as the Previous Year. The growth of the financing
guarantee services is limited by the on-going cautious
attitude of the Chinese banks towards lending to SMEs
under the prevailing tight liquidity situation in China.
However, the Group will be able to expand the guarantee
booked by joint effort with the newly-established Finance
Lease Company to provide guarantee for their leasing
transactions.

Finance Lease Services Business

For the Year, the Group generated the revenue of HK$8.8
million from finance lease services since the Finance Lease
Company had commenced business in September 2017.
Zhong Jinlv Investment Holding Company Limited*
(“Zhong Jinlv") has agreed to invest RMB120.0 million in
the Finance Lease Company for 37.5% interest. As of 31
March 2018, Zhong Jinlv has injected RMB91.8 million.
Zhong lJinlv is a subsidiary of Shaanxi Tourism Group
Company Limited*, which is a SOE. With this additional
SOE shareholding background, the finance lease services
business is expected to achieve higher growth and will
become one of the important revenue growth drivers for

the Group in the coming year.

Logistics Services Business

For the Year, the Group generated the revenue of HK$0.9
million from logistics services, reflecting a decrease of
10.0% when compared with HK$1.0 million from the
Previous Year. The logistics segment is ancillary to the
Group’s international trading and financing services by
providing warehouse management and stock monitoring
services. It is not expecting any substantial change in the
performance of the segment in the near future.

*  For identification purpose only
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Property Investment Business

For the Year, the Group generated the revenue of HK$92.8
million from property investment business, reflecting an
increase of 19.6% from HK$77.6 million in the Previous
Year. The revenue was solely generated from the rental
income and management fee income from the Commercial
Complex. The occupancy rate has reached approximately
99.0% as of 31 March 2018.

Interior Decoration Work Business

For the Year, the Group generated the revenue of HK$0.1
million from interior decoration work, reflecting a decrease
of 95.2% compared with HK$2.1 million from the Previous
Year. Over the past few years, income from the interior
decoration work business had been reducing as a result
of the Group’s repositioning from this business operations
since it foresees limited opportunity for any new and

large-scale projects in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Profitability Analysis

For the Year, the Group's revenue was HK$1,257.7 million,
reflecting a significant increase of 142.4% from HK$518.8
million in the Previous Year which was mainly attributable
to an increase in contribution from international trading
business. Revenue contribution by segments comprised:
international trading of HK$1,115.9 million (2017:
HK$405.4 million), property investment of HK$92.8 million
(2017: HK$77.6 million), financing guarantee services of
HK$17.0 million (2017: HK$17.0 million), finance lease
service of HK$8.8 million (2017: Nil), logistics services of
HK$0.9 million (2017: HK$1.0 million), interior decoration
work of HK$0.1 million (2017: HK$2.1 million) and other
revenue of HK$22.2 million (2017: HK$15.9 million).

Gross profit for the Year increased significantly to
HK$147.2 million, up 57.3% from HK$93.6 million in
the Previous Year, while gross profit margin declined to
11.7% from 18.0% in the Previous Year. The increase in
gross profit was mainly due to the increase in revenue
generated from the international trading business and the
new business segment, namely finance lease services and
the consolidation of income from MCM Group after the
completion of acquisition in November 2017. The decrease
in overall gross profit margin in the Year was the result of
international trading business contributing about 88.7%
(2017: 78.1%) of the total revenue while its gross profit

margin is relatively low.

Other income, gains and losses recorded a gain of
HK$70.7 million (2017: HK$14.8 million) for the Year,
mainly attributable to an adjustment on the carrying
amount of amount due to a related company and the
exchange gain arising from appreciation of Renminbi
("RMB") against Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") during the
Year.
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Loss arising from acquisition of a subsidiary of HK$101.7
million represented a one-off non-cash loss arising from
the difference between (i) the total of net assets value
of Zhong Hui Group (as defined below); and the Sale
Loan (as defined below); and (i) the valuation of the
3.0% Convertible Bonds (as defined below) issued as
consideration for Zhong Hui Acquisition (as defined
below), details of which were disclosed in the circular
of the Company dated 31 March 2017 and the section

headed “Material Acquisitions” below.

Gain on fair value change of investment properties
amounted to HK$161.0 million (2017: HK$142.1 million)
for the Year. It was mainly attributable to a fair value
change of the Commercial Complex, ChinlinkeWorldport

and the Commercial Building.

Administrative expenses amounted to HK$103.4 million
for the Year, representing an increase of HK$20.5 million
as compared with HK$82.9 million of the Previous Year.
The increase was mainly due to the legal and professional
fees incurred for various acquisitions as mentioned
under the section headed “Material Acquisitions” and
consolidation of the administrative expenses of MCM
Group after the completion of MCM Acquisition (as

defined below).

Finance costs amounted to HK$167.6 million for the Year,
representing an increase of HK$62.1 million as compared
with HK$105.5 million of the Previous Year. The increase
was mainly due to the 3.0% Convertible Bonds issued
during the Year.

Despite the increase in revenue, gross profit and the
gain on fair value change of investment properties as
mentioned above, due to (i) a one-off non-cash loss arising
from the acquisition of a subsidiary and the shareholder’s
loan; and (ii) interest expense incurred on the 3.0%
Convertible Bonds, the Group recorded a loss for the Year
of HK$29.1 million as compared with a profit of HK$24.8

million in the Previous Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2018, the bank balances and cash,
pledged bank deposits and restricted deposits amounted
to HK$703.6 million in total, representing an increase of
HK$247.6 million from HK$456.0 million in the Previous
Year. The increase was mainly due to (i) the contributions
from Zhong Hui Group being acquired during the Year; (ii)
the increase in pledged bank deposits for the addition of
bank facilities; and (iii) capital injection by Zhong Jinlv of
RMB91.8 million (equivalent to approximately HK$108.2
million) to the Finance Lease Company during the Year.

As at 31 March 2018, the bank and other borrowings
of the Group which were mainly denominated in United
States dollars ("US$"), HK$ and RMB amounted to
HK$1,095.7 million (31 March 2017: HK$1,076.8 million),
representing an increase of HK$18.9 million from that of
31 March 2017, of which HK$683.5 million and HK$412.2
million were repayable within one year and two to five

years respectively.

During the Year, 7.5% coupon bonds (issued in two
tranches in July and August 2015) and 10.0% convertible
bonds (issued in December 2015) with carrying values
amounted to HK$206.7 million and HK$76.7 million
respectively as at 31 March 2017 had matured and were
fully repaid.

On 25 July 2017, the Company issued 9.0% coupon
bonds (the “First 9.0% Coupon Bonds"”) with aggregate
principal amount of HK$200.0 million. The First 9.0%
Coupon Bonds are unsecured, repayable on the day falling
on the second anniversary of the issue date and interest
bearing at 9.0% per annum. Details of the First 9.0%
Coupon Bonds are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 30 June 2017 and 25 July 2017.
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After completion of the issue of the First 9.0% Coupon
Bonds, the Company issued another 9.0% coupon bonds
(the "Second 9.0% Coupon Bonds”, together with
the First 9.0% Coupon Bonds, collectively, the “9.0%
Coupon Bonds”) in two tranches on 4 August 2017
and 25 August 2017 with aggregate principal amount of
HK$150.0 million. The Second 9.0% Coupon Bonds are
unsecured, repayable on the day falling on the second
anniversary of the issue date and interest bearing at 9.0%
per annum. Details of the Second 9.0% Coupon Bonds are
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 27
July 2017, 4 August 2017 and 25 August 2017. As at 31
March 2018, among the aggregate gross proceeds from
the 9.0% Coupon Bonds of HK$350.0 million, HK$225.6
million was used to refinance the Group’s borrowings,
HK$50.0 million was used for development of finance
leasing business and HK$74.4 million was used as general

working capital of the Group.

On 5 December 2017, the Company issued 12.0%
coupon bonds (the “12.0% Coupon Bonds”) with
principal amount of US$15.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$117.0 million). The 12.0% Coupon
Bonds are unsecured, repayable on the day falling on the
third anniversary of the issue date and interest bearing
at 12.0% per annum. Details of the 12.0% Coupon
Bonds are set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 1 December 2017. As at 31 March 2018, among
the aggregate gross proceeds from the 12.0% Coupon
Bonds of US$15.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$117.0 million), HK$56.8 million was used to refinance
the Group’s borrowings, HK$44.6 million was used for
development of finance leasing business and HK$15.6
million was used as general working capital of the Group
and as direct cost of financing.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Other than the issue of the 9.0% Coupon Bonds and
12.0% Coupon Bonds as mentioned above, the Company
also issued 3.0% Convertibles Bonds during the Year for
the Zhong Hui Acquisition and the Possible Financing (as
defined below), details of which were disclosed in the

following section headed “Material Acquisitions”.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group recorded net current
liabilities of HK$111.8 million (31 March 2017: HK$399.1
million) and the current ratio of the Group calculated as
the Group’s current assets over its current liabilities was
0.91 (31 March 2017: 0.64). The improvement in the
current ratio of the Group was mainly attributable to (i)
certain borrowings which were due during the Year were
refinanced by the issue of certain long-term debts, for
instance, the 9.0% Coupon Bonds and 12.0% Coupon
Bonds; (ii) the issue of Financing Bonds (as defined
below); (iii) maturity dates of the amount due to a related
company being extended to over one year after 31 March
2018; and (iv) net current assets of Zhong Hui Group
being consolidated after completion of the Zhong Hui

Acquisition.

Share Capital

As at 31 March 2018, the authorised share capital of
the Company was HK$625.0 million (31 March 2017:
HK$625.0 million). There was no change in the authorised

share capital of the Company during the Year.
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As at 31 March 2018, the number of issued shares
of the Company was 683,719,250 (31 March 2017:
670,002,436). During the Year, an aggregate principal
amount of HK$7.75 million of 3.0% Convertible Bonds
issued on 22 May 2017 was converted into 13.7 million
shares at the conversion price of HK$0.565 per conversion
share. The carrying amount of such 3.0% Convertible
Bonds as at the conversion date amounted to HK$5.2
million, together with the relevant convertible bonds
reserve of HK$8.1 million, were reclassified to share capital

or share premium of the Company.

Except for the above mentioned, there was no other
change in the number of issued shares of the Company

during the Year.

Subsequently, on 18 April 2018, the remaining 3.0%
Convertible Bonds were fully converted into 641.2 million

shares.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Material Acquisitions

On 2 February 2017, the Company entered into the
acquisition agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”)
in relation to the proposed acquisition of the entire
issued capital of Zhong Hui Global Limited (“Sale
Share”) (with its subsidiaries, collectively, the “Zhong
Hui Group”) (which was indirectly wholly-owned by
Mr. Li Weibin (“Mr. Li”, the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company)) at a consideration of HK$96.0
million. Simultaneously, the Company entered into the
loan purchase and financing agreement (the “Loan
Purchase and Financing Agreement”) in relation to
the proposed acquisition of the shareholder’s loan (the
“Sale Loan"”) owing or incurred by the Zhong Hui Group
to Mr. Li and his affiliated companies at a consideration
of HK$216.0 million (the acquisition of Sale Share and
Sale Loan, collectively the “Zhong Hui Acquisition”) and
Mr. Li agreed to provide financing to the Group in the
amount of HK$58.0 million (the "Possible Financing”).
The Acquisition Agreement and the Loan Purchase and
Financing Agreement are inter-conditional and shall

complete contemporaneously.

The Zhong Hui Group owned a parcel of land on which the

construction of the Commercial Building is in progress.
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According to the Acquisition Agreement and the Loan
Purchase and Financing Agreement, the total consideration
of HK$370.0 million for the Zhong Hui Acquisition and
the Possible Financing shall be satisfied by the issue
of 3.0% convertible bonds of HK$96.0 million (the
“Share Consideration Bonds”), 3.0% convertible
bonds of HK$216.0 million (the “Loan Consideration
Bonds”) and 3.0% convertible bonds of HK$58.0
million (the “Financing Bonds"”, together with the
Share Consideration Bonds and Loan Consideration
Bonds, collectively the “3.0% Convertible Bonds"”)
by the Company which will bear interest at 3.0% per
annum and will mature on the day falling on the second
anniversary of the date of issue of the relevant bonds. The
initial conversion price of the 3.0% Convertible Bonds is

HK$0.565 per conversion share.

The Zhong Hui Acquisition and the Possible Financing
were completed during the Year. For details, please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 7 February
2017, 7 March 2017, 13 March 2017, 28 March 2017, 28
April 2017, 23 May 2017, 21 July 2017 and 22 November
2017 and the Company’s circular dated 31 March 2017.
Accordingly, the Company had fully issued the 3.0%
Convertible Bonds with aggregate principal amount of
HK$370.0 million and the net proceeds from the issue of
Financing Bonds was utilised for the construction of the

Commercial Building.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 11 June 2017, the Company and the shareholders
(the "MCM Founders”) of Instant Karma Global Holdings
Limited (“IK Global”) entered into an agreement (the
“Agreement”) (as supplemented by a supplemental deed
dated 25 October 2017), pursuant to which (i) IK Global
has conditionally agreed to subscribe for new shares
("Deemed Disposal”) in Alpha Yield Limited (“Alpha
Yield”) (a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Trillion Up
Limited (“Trillion Up”) (a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company)), the consideration of which shall be
satisfied by the transfer of the entire issued share capital
of MCM Holdings by IK Global to Alpha Yield (the “MCM
Acquisition”); and (ii) Trillion Up has conditionally agreed
to subscribe for additional new shares in Alpha Yield in the
amount of US$4.0 million in cash (the “Subscription”,
together with the MCM Acquisition and Deemed Disposal,
collectively the “Transactions”). As a result, the entire
issued share capital of Alpha Yield shall be held as to
51.0% by Trillion Up and 49.0% by IK Global upon
completion of the Transactions (the “MCM Completion”).
MCM Completion was taken place on 6 November 2017.

Pursuant to the Agreement, the Group shall also provide
a shareholder’s loan of US$2.4 million to MCM Holdings
after the MCM Completion which shall be used as general
working capital of MCM Group.

In addition, if certain events take place during the period
of six years (as supplemented) from the date of MCM
Completion, the MCM Founders shall have the right
to exercise a put option to require the Company to
purchase the shares in Alpha Yield held by IK Global at a
consideration based on the value of the Alpha Yield and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Alpha Yield Group”) as a
whole of US$50.0 million.
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For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 12 June 2017, 14 June 2017, 11 July
2017, 14 August 2017, 25 October 2017, 27 October
2017 and 6 November 2017 respectively.

On 30 January 2018, the Company entered into the
sale and purchase agreement (the “S&P Agreement”)
(as supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated
15 February 2018) to acquire 26.625% of the total
equity interest of each of Xi‘an Tang Rong Real Estate
Limited (“Tang Rong”) and Xi'an Da Ming Gong Ba
Qiao Furniture and Fixture Limited (“Ba Qiao”) (the
"EDMG Acquisition”) at a total cash consideration of
RMB295,941,700 (equivalent to approximately HK$366.5
million). On the date of the S&P Agreement, the Company
indirectly owned 73.375% of the total equity interest of
both Tang Rong and Ba Qiao.

The consideration of EDMG Acquisition was financed
by an unsecured short-term interest-free bridging loan
provided by Mr. Li, through his controlled company.
Part of such bridging loan was subsequently refinanced
by a 2-year credit facility in the sum of US$41,000,000
provided by an independent lender pursuant to a loan
facility agreement dated 15 February 2018.

The EDMG Acquisition was completed on 15 February
2018 and both Tang Rong and Ba Qiao became the
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company
thereafter. The financial results of Tang Rong and Ba Qiao
have been consolidated into the financial statements of

the Group and remain so thereafter.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 30 January 2018 and 15 February 2018

respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Progress on Deemed Disposal Transactions

On 1 March 2017 and 26 April 2017, Chinlink Alpha
Limited (“Chinlink Alpha”) (currently an indirect
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and
Hanzhong City Hantai District Hanjiang Industrial Park
Construction Investment Development Company Limited™*)
("Hanjiang”) (being an investing vehicle of Hantai
District government) entered into a non-legally binding
letter of intent and a co-operation agreement (“Co-
operation Agreement 1”), respectively, in relation to the
possible capital injection of RMB100.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$125.0 million) into the Financial
Guarantee Company, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of Chinlink Alpha. As a result, the Financial Guarantee
Company will be held directly as to approximately 67.0%
by Chinlink Alpha (approximately 34.2% held indirectly by
the Company) and approximately 33.0% by Hanjiang.

Subsequently, Hanzhong City government decided to carry
out the capital injection into the Financial Guarantee
Company through another enterprise, namely Hanzhong
City Investment Holdings Group Limited* (“Hanzhong
Investment”) which is under its direct control and hence
the Co-operation Agreement | was terminated on 17 May
2018. On the same date, Chinlink Alpha, Hanzhong
Investment and the Financial Guarantee Company entered
into a new financial guarantee co-operation agreement in
relation to the capital injection of RMB120.0 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$150.0 million) into the
Financial Guarantee Company. The shareholding structure
of the Financial Guarantee Company after the completion
of the capital injection by Hanzhong Investment will be
held directly as to approximately 65.0% by Chinlink Alpha
(approximately 33.2% held indirectly by the Company)
and approximately 35.0% by Hanzhong Investment. The
Financial Guarantee Company will remain to be accounted
for as a subsidiary of the Company and its financial results
will continue to be consolidated into the financial
statements of the Group.

Details of the above transactions were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 1 March 2017, 26
April 2017 and 17 May 2018 respectively.

As at the date of this annual report, Hanzhong Investment

has not yet injected capital to the Financial Guarantee
Company.

*  For identification purpose only
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On 16 March 2017 and on 26 April 2017, Chinlink Alpha
and Zhong Jinlv entered into a non-legally binding letter of
intent and a finance lease co-operation agreement (“Co-
operation Agreement Il1”) in relation to the possible
capital injection into Finance Lease Company, respectively.
The proposed gross investment amount to be contributed
by Zhong lJinlv to the Finance Lease Company, will be
approximately RMB120.0 million and in the form of equity
interest. As a result, the Finance Lease Company will be
held as to approximately 63.0% by Chinlink Alpha and
approximately 37.0% by Zhong Jinlv.

On 26 October 2017, Chinlink Mega Limited (“Chinlink
Mega”) (which then held 100% equity interest in the
Finance Lease Company after the Group's re-organisation),
Zhong Jinlv and the Finance Lease Company entered into
the capital increase agreement to set out (i) the detailed
arrangements relating to the capital injection by Zhong
Jinlv; (ii) the respective rights and obligations of Chinlink
Mega and Zhong lJinlv in the Finance Lease Company;
and (iii) the percentage shareholding interest of Chinlink
Mega and Zhong Jinlv in the Finance Lease Company as to
62.5% and 37.5% respectively after the capital increase.
The parties also entered into a put option agreement
on the same day, pursuant to which Zhong Jinlv shall be
granted a right to request Chinlink Mega or its nominee
to acquire its shareholding interest in the Finance Lease
Company during the period of 30 days from the third
anniversary of the date of the first capital contribution
by Zhong Jinlv or upon the occurrence of certain events
during the period from the date of registration with
the relevant PRC industry and commerce authorities of
the first capital contribution by Zhong Jinlv to the third
anniversary of the date of the first capital contribution by
Zhong lJinlv. The Finance Lease Company will remain to
be accounted for as a subsidiary of the Company and its
financial results will continue to be consolidated into the
financial statements of the Group. Details of the aforesaid
transactions were set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 16 March 2017, 26 April 2017 and 26
October 2017 respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 March 2018, Zhong lJinlv has injected capital of
RMB91.8 million to the Finance Lease Company, which
owns 37.5% of the paid-up capital of Finance Lease
Company.

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 March 2018 was 0.64
(31 March 2017: 0.56) which was calculated based on
the Group’'s total liabilities of HK$3,300.5 million (31
March 2017: HK$2,014.2 million) and the Group’s total
assets of HK$5,152.0 million (31 March 2017: HK$3,579.1
million). The slight setback in the gearing ratio was
mainly due to the issue of 3.0% Convertible Bonds and
amounts advanced from a related company for the EDMG
Acquisition during the Year.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group's revenue and expenses were mainly
denominated in HK$, RMB and US$. The pledged bank
deposits were denominated in US$, RMB and HK$. Other
bank deposits were dominated in HK$, RMB, Macau
Pataca (“MOP") and US$. Other monetary assets and
liabilities were mainly denominated in HK$, RMB and
US$. During the Year, the exchange rate of RMB to HK$
appreciated slightly and MOP to HK$ was stable. As
HK$ is pegged to US$, the directors of the Company
("Directors”) considered that the foreign currency risk of
the Group was relatively low.
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Contingent Liabilities and Charge on Assets

Save as disclosed in note 41 on page 264 of the annual
report, the Group did not have any significant contingent

liabilities.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had pledged bank
deposits of HK$448.6 million to certain banks as securities
in return for the banks’ provision of loans to the Group's
financing guarantee services customers and to support
the Group's international trading business. In addition,
the Group pledged assets with carrying value of HK$1.4
million and HK$3,149.7 million to secure obligations under

finance leases and banking facilities, respectively.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had capital commitments
contracted but not provided for amounting to HK$176.8
million in respect of the development of Chinlinke
Worldport and Commercial Building. Details of the
commitments are set out in note 44 on page 267 of this

annual report.

The Group will fund the capital commitments through cash
generated from operations, bank and other borrowings
and borrowings from the controlling shareholder of the

Company.

Events after the reporting period

Save as the termination of the Co-operation Agreement
| and the entering into the new financial guarantee co-
operation agreement on 17 May 2018 as disclosed
in the section headed “Progress on Deemed Disposal
Transactions” above, the Group has no significant events
after the reporting period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Final Dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).

Major Risks

The major risks that may affect the Group's business are
outlined below:

Economic Risk

The Group’s core businesses and properties are located
in Hong Kong and China. As such, the general policies
and politics, and fiscal and monetary policies of the
governments of Hong Kong and China may have a direct
or indirect economic impact on the Group. The Group
closely monitors the economic environment, evaluates the
situation and adjusts its strategy as needed to mitigate
these risks.

Credit Risk

The Group's exposure to credit risk results from trade
debtors and loan receivables arising from the sale of
goods, rendering of services to customers and providing
loans to customers, and the provision of guarantees to
lending banks in favour of customers obtaining loans
provided by the lending banks. The Group has a credit
policy in place and credit risk is monitored on an on-going
basis. Individual credit assessments are carried out to
determine the credit limits and terms which are reviewed
on a regular basis.
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Liquidity Risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk by closely monitoring
its current and expected liquidity requirements, ensuring
that there is sufficient liquid cash, committed bank
facilities and/or loans from its controlling shareholders
to meet its funding needs. In addition, the Group

continuously monitors its compliance with loan covenants.

Compliance Risk

The Group recognizes the risks of non-compliance with
regulatory requirements. The Group conducts on-going
reviews of laws and regulations affecting its operations

and provides relevant training and guidance to staff.

Relationship with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had 50 employees in
Hong Kong and 261 employees in China (31 March 2017:
37 employees in Hong Kong and 290 employees in China).
Employees are remunerated based on their performance
and relevant working experiences, taking into account the
prevailing market conditions. Discretionary performance
bonus may be awarded to employees with reference to
the financial performance of the Group. Other employee
benefits include contributions to mandatory provident
funds, medical insurance and professional development

and training.

The Group is dedicated to fostering close working
relationships with customers and suppliers. The
maintenance of good relationship with customers and
suppliers is fundamental to the Group's operational
performance and ongoing financial success.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Prospects

The Shaanxi Province, with Xi'an in particular, is surging
to grasp the opportunities presented by the important
national strategies including the Belt & Road, the China's
Western Development Strategy which aims to develop
the vast western regions of China, and the recent
announcement by the Chinese State Council in January
2018 to position Xi‘an as one of the nine National Central
Cities in China, a city of the highest level, meaning
that Xi'an should perform as the engine of the regional
development. The Chinese State Council further affirms
Xi'an’s status as an international metropolis, and its
crucial role in economic and cultural exchange with
the international community as espoused by the Belt &
Road. Xi'an is also mandated to become a culture, trade,
logistics and finance centre of the north-western China
along the Silk Road, and most importantly, the hard and
core technology capital of the world. Xi‘an houses a large
number of higher education and research institutions,
amount of which is only after Beijing and Shanghai. There
are more than 300,000 graduates entering the job market
in Xi'an each year. Xi'an also possesses strong technology
base in the area of national defence, aerospace, aircraft,
biomedicine, computer science and software, and so on.
Its technology base and human resources are amongst the

top three in the nation.
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The Group enjoys early mover advantage in Shaanxi and
Xi'an. Since 2012, the Group has been gradually building
up its comprehensive financial service eco-system including
alternative finance, international trading, logistics services
and property investment. The Group has witnessed the
developmental progress of Xi‘an and Shaanxi Province,
notably the high yearly GDP growth, the establishment of
the Shaanxi Free Trade Zone, the on-going urbanisation
and improvements of city commute facilities, the
decrease of unsold property stock and raising property
price, the growth of young and educated population,
and so on. But the most phenomenal changes are the
mushrooming of start-ups, co-work space, accelerators
and incubators, and the increase of plants, research
and development centres, and regional logistics hubs
set up by large domestic and international corporations
in Xi'an and other parts of Shaanxi Province. To name
a few, Alibaba, Tencent, Jingdong, and even Amazon
have chosen to set up their regional bases in Xi‘an, not
to mention Samsung Electronics and Micron, which are
two of the largest integrated circuit manufacturers in the
world. This is mainly attributed to the new Provincial and
Municipal governments’ policies and incentive schemes
launched in the past two years to promote innovation and
creativity, commercialisation of research results, and most
importantly, entrepreneurship. Early this year, the People’s
Government of Xi‘an Municipality introduced a plan to
encourage local enterprises to go for public listing either
in Shanghai, Shenzhen or overseas stock markets mainly
Hong Kong. The Group treats this as a golden opportunity
as these new business activities will definitely create more
demands for capital in the forms of equity and loans, and

eventually will appreciate the Group’s investment value.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

This favourable business environment provides the Group
with a great opportunity to further expand its existing
alternative financing businesses, i.e. financing guarantee
and finance lease. The Finance Lease Company started
the business in September 2017, and during the Year, the
Group secured Zhong lJinly, a SOE, as a strategic partner.
Partnering with Zhong Jinlv can enhance the credit
standing of the Finance Lease Company, making it more
accessible to bank financing at lower costs. In addition,
the partnership can expand the Finance Lease Company's
customer base by bringing in tourism-related leasing
businesses. The Group is also exploring ways to securitise
some of the leasing portfolios in order to enhance the
balance sheet liquidity and the overall yield.

In respect of the property investment business segment,
ChinlinkeWorldport is expected to commence its operation
by the third quarter of 2018. The Group will also offer a
full range of financial services to its tenants. The high-
speed railway service between Xi'an, Hanzhong and
Chengdu was open in the end of 2017, and thus the
traffics and economic activities of Hanzhong have been
substantially increased. As this area is becoming an
investment hot spot in the region. ChinlinkeWorldport as
a trading and logistics hub will surely benefit from this
macro environment change, and expects a significant
appreciation in its investment value in the near future.
Once the first phase of the ChinlinkeWorldport is up and
running to its optimal scale, the Group does not rule out
the possibility to sell some of the commercial units to
realise the appreciation value and raise the rentals to a
higher level. Additionally, the construction work of the
Commercial Building which was acquired in May 2017
will be completed by the third quarter of 2018, and it will
be for rental purposes and expected to further increase
our incomes from property investment. As Xi‘an's local
demand for such prime quality commercial cum office is
very high, the Group expects a high occupancy rate with a
reasonable rental return within the first year of launching.
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The international trading and supply chain finance have
registered very high growth in the last two years. From
this year onwards, the Group’s Hong Kong and Xi'an
offices will work closely on the cross-border trade of
edible oil from Russia and other types of commodity
products by utilising Xi‘an's customer base and Hong
Kong's competitive funding costs. Factoring will be a new
business line and a growth area for the Group, and is an
ideal synergy with the Group’s international trading and
supply chain finance businesses. As Xi'an is becoming an
international and regional trading hub under the Belt &
Road, it is a very good timing for the Group to roll out and
expand its supply chain finance and factoring businesses.

Logistics services has been a supporting function to the
Group's international trading and financial services to
provide warehousing and stock monitoring services. It is
not a profit centre amongst the Group’s other businesses,
and not is expecting any substantial change in the future.

Over the last few years, income from the interior
decoration work business has been reducing as a result
of the Group’s repositioning from this business operation
since it foresees limited opportunity for any new and
large-scale projects in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group is an integrated financial services provider
operating in China and Hong Kong and holds multiple
licences to provide various types of financial services.
The Group is also undergoing the process of applying
for factoring and microfinance licences in Xi‘an. If the
approvals are granted, the Group can have a full range of
finance licences to operate in Shaanxi Province and other
parts of China (depending on the territorial restrictions
on certain licences like the one granted to the Financial
Guarantee Company which allows operations only
within the Shaanxi Province), and the synergy among
the Group's different financial services businesses will be
more prominent. In November 2017, Chinlink completed
the acquisition of 51% stake in the MCM Group. The
MCM Acquisition is a very important strategic move of
the Group. Such acquisition provides a unique opportunity
for the Group to expand its financial services scopes
by utilising the MCM Group’s expertise in international
capital market and asset management. Combining the
Group's knowledge and strong relationships of the China
market with the MCM Group’s extensive global network
and the investment banking experience of its founders and
key members, the Group is well-positioned to open up a
new business frontier as a cross-border integrated financial
platform to serve the growing capital and investment
needs of its clients in the Shaanxi Province. These clients
have been underserved by major international financial
institutions due to the development disparity as an inland
region in the past, relative to the coastal region, but
with investment needs resulted from the strategic and
geographic importance under the Belt & Road, the China’s
Western Development Strategy and the Greater Xi'an
Metropolitan development plan, this is a great potential
for the Group. The MCM Group will serve as the conduit
to connect the up-and-coming Chinese corporates and
capital market, particularly from Shaanxi Province and
Xi'an, to the international financial market.

Future looks very encouraging for the Group because
it has successfully transformed into a comprehensive
financial service group with well-established foothold
in Shaanxi Province, which is one of the most potential
markets in China and possesses the extensive global reach
from Hong Kong, one of the most important financial
centres in the world. It is time for the Group to capitalise
on its past years' efforts.
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Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LI Weibin (“Mr. Li"), aged 48, joined the Group as
an executive Director since 27 January 2012 and was re-
designated as Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company on 18 February 2012. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor's
degree in Applied Electronics from Xi‘an Technological
University and an Executive Master in Business
Administration from Xi'an Jiaotong University. Since early
2000, Mr. Li has been engaged in research, production and
sales of electronic components and materials, computer
software and hardware as well as research and sales of
computer related equipment. He has also been engaged in
property development, planning and sales, management,
and other property related investments, cultural and
entertainment businesses. His businesses are present in

Beijing, Xi"an and Hong Kong.

Mr. SIU Wai Yip (“Mr. Siu”), aged 62, joined the Group
as an executive Director since 27 January 2012. Mr. Siu
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from The University
of Hong Kong. He has over 10 years’ of experience in
banking and financing and previously held executive
positions at various major international banks, with
specialization in trade financing and corporate banking.
Prior to joining the Group, he was appointed as an
executive director of Matsunichi Communication Holdings
Limited (now known as Goldin Properties Holdings Limited,
stock code: 283) from January 2005 to February 2006. He
was an executive director of Vincent Intertrans (Holdings)
Limited (now known as Shanghai Industrial Urban
Development Group Limited, stock code: 563) from July
1998 to May 1999. The shares of these two companies are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management

Ms. LAM Suk Ling, Shirley (“Ms. Lam”), aged 51, joined
the Group since 27 January 2012 and is currently in the
role of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary for
the Group. She was appointed as an executive Director
on 18 February 2012. She holds a Master in Business
Administration from The University of Adelaide, Australia
and a Bachelor of Science degree from Murdoch University,
Western Australia. She is qualified as a Certified Public
Accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a Certified Practising Accountant of CPA
Australia. Ms. Lam has over 20 years’ of experience in
auditing, accounting and financial management, and also
worked for various international audit firms and listed
companies. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Lam was an
executive director of Jackin International Holdings Limited
(now known as AMCO United Holding Limited, stock
code: 630), a company whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from February 2010 to
December 2011.
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Mr. LAU Chi Kit ("Mr. Lau”), aged 73, joined the Group
as an independent non-executive Director since 18
February 2012, and he was re-designated as an executive
Director on 18 September 2013. Mr. Lau retired from The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
("HSBC") in late December 2000 after more than 35
years’ of service. Amongst the major positions at HSBC,
he served as Assistant General Manager and Head of
Personal Banking Hong Kong and Assistant General
Manager and Head of Strategic Implementation, Asia-
Pacific Region. Mr. Lau is a Fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers (the “Institute”). He served as the
Chairman of the Institute’'s Executive Committee (from
January 1999 to December 2000) and is currently the
Honorary Advisor of the Institute’s Executive Committee.
He has served as a Member on a number of committees
appointed by the Government of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, including the Advisory Council
on the Environment (from October 1998 to December
2001), the Advisory Committee on Human Resources
Development in the Financial Services Sector (from June
2000 to May 2001), the Corruption Prevention Advisory
Committee of the Independent Commission Against
Corruption (from January 2000 to December 2003),
the Environment and Conservation Fund Committee
(from August 2000 to October 2006), the Innovation
and Technology Fund (Environment) Projects Vetting
Committee (from January 2000 to December 2004) and
the Law Reform Commission’s Privacy Sub-committee
(from February 1990 to March 2006). Mr. Lau also served
as a Chairman of Business Environment Council Limited
(from September 1998 to December 2001). Currently, he
is also an independent non-executive director of Century
Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 509), Royale
Furniture Holdings Limited (stock code: 1198), Leoch
International Technology Limited (stock code: 842), Hin
Sang Group (International) Holding Co. Ltd. (stock code
6893) and Janco Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8035), and
was an independent non-executive director of Hua Long
Jin Kong Company Limited (previously known as Highlight
China 10T International Limited and Ford Glory Group
Holding Limited, stock code: 1682) from September 2010
to September 2017. Except for Janco Holdings Limited
with its shares listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Stock Exchange, all the shares of the companies
mentioned above are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. FUNG Sau Mui (“"Ms. Fung”), aged 62, joined the
Group in 1976. Ms. Fung was an executive Director,
director of Finance and Administration as well as Chief
Financial Officer of the Group and resigned from her
positions and was re-designated as a non-executive
Director with effect from 18 February 2012. Ms. Fung has
over 30 years’ of experience in financial management,
accounting, costing, material sourcing and purchasing, and
personnel management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Dr. HO Chung Tai, Raymond (“Dr. Ho"), aged 79,
joined the Group as an independent non-executive
Director since 17 December 2013. Dr. Ho is a former
member of the Legislative Council (1996-2012), a
former Hong Kong Deputy to the 10th & 11th National
People’s Congress and the past President of the Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers (1987-1988). He holds a
Doctorate in Civil Engineering from City University of
London, United Kingdom; an Honorary Doctorate of Laws
from The University of Manchester, United Kingdom; an
Honorary Doctorate of Business Administration from City
University of Hong Kong; a Bachelor of Science degree
in Engineering from The University of Hong Kong; and a
Postgraduate Diploma in Geotechnical Engineering from
The University of Manchester, United Kingdom. Currently,
Dr. Ho is the Chairman of the Advisory Committee for the
Guangdong Daya Bay Nuclear Plant and LingAo Nuclear
Plant Safety Consultative Committee (2005-present) and
Professional Advisor to The Ombudsman of Hong Kong
(Engineering and Surveying) (1995-2013, 2015-present).
He has served as a Board Member of the Airport Authority
Hong Kong (2008-2014), the former Chairman of the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council Infrastructure
Development Advisory Committee (2009-2013) and
the Founding Council Chairman of City University of
Hong Kong (1992-1994). He is also an independent
non-executive director of China State Construction
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 3311), GCL-
Poly Energy Holdings Limited (stock code: 3800), Deson
Development International Holdings Limited (stock code:
262) and AP Rentals Holdings Limited (stock code 1496).
The shares of these four companies mentioned above are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management

ERLARBRERANR

Ms. LAI Ka Fung, May (“Ms. Lai"), aged 52, joined the
Group as an independent non-executive Director since
18 February 2012. Ms. Lai obtained a Master of Arts in
International Accounting from City University of Hong
Kong in 2001. She has been a Member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since 1999
and is a Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since 2003. She is the sole proprietor of May
K. F. Lai & Co., Certified Public Accountant and has been
engaged in the audit field for more than 20 years. She is
also an independent non-executive director of Emperor
Entertainment Hotel Limited (stock code: 296) and was
an independent non-executive director of Emperor Watch
& Jewellery Limited (stock code: 887) from June 2008 to
May 2017. The shares of these two companies mentioned
above are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. CHAN Sim Ling, Irene (“"Ms. Chan”), aged 55,
joined the Group as an independent non-executive
Director since 18 February 2012. She graduated with a
Bachelor of Laws degree from The University of Hong
Kong in 1985. Ms. Chan is a retired solicitor with over
19 years’ of experience serving as an independent
non-executive director of listed companies. She is an
independent non-executive director of Emperor Culture
Group Limited (previously known as See Corporation
Limited, stock code: 491) and Emperor Watch & Jewellery
Limited (stock code: 887). She was also an independent
non-executive director of Emperor Entertainment Hotel
Limited (stock code: 296) and New Media Group Holdings
Limited (now known as Evergrande Health Industry Group
Limited, stock code: 708), and retired in August 2013
and March 2015 respectively. The shares of these four
companies mentioned above are listed on the Main Board

of the Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. LEE Wing Yan, Joanne (“Ms. Lee"), aged 42, joined
the Group on 17 October 2011. She is currently the
Corporate Development and Communications Director and
is responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, corporate
communications and investor relations. Ms. Lee holds
a Master in Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. She also obtained a Bachelor’s
degree in Business Studies from City University of Hong
Kong and graduated with first class honors. Ms. Lee has
over 10 years’ of marketing and business development
experience in consumer electronics and IT industries. Prior
to joining the Group, Ms. Lee served as a Visiting Fellow
at City University of Hong Kong, Department of Marketing
from July 2008 to October 2011. Her teaching areas
included Strategic Marketing, Relationship Marketing and
Services Marketing.

Mr. MAG Chiu Fai (“"Mr. Mag”), aged 43, joined the
Group on 26 March 2012. He is the Financial Controller
and is responsible for the Group’s financial management
and accounting matters. Mr. Mag holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and is qualified as a Certified Public Accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and is a Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Mag has over 15 years’ experience in
auditing, accounting and financial management. He also
worked for two international audit firms. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Mag was a Senior Accounting Manager of
Nan Hai Corporation Limited (stock code: 680), a company
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock

Exchange, from November 2005 to July 2010.
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The Company is dedicated to maintaining good standard
of corporate governance as it believes that corporate
governance practices are fundamental to the smooth
and effective operation of a company and can enhance
shareholders’ value as well as safeguard shareholders’
interests.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has
complied with all code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange for the year ended 31
March 2018, save as certain deviations disclosed herein.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight of
the management of the business and affairs of the Group
with the objective of enhancing shareholders’ value. Major
responsibilities include approving the Company’s overall
business, financial and technical strategies, setting key
performance targets, approving budgets and overseeing

the performance of management.

The Board currently comprises eight Directors including
four executive Directors, a non-executive Director and
three independent non-executive Directors. The number
of independent non-executive Directors represents one-
third of the Board as required by Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules. The list of the Directors and their biographical
details are set out in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section of this annual report.

The Board meets regularly four times a year, i.e. at
approximately quarterly intervals. During the Year, the
Board convened a total of four regular meetings and the
attendance of the Directors are set out as below section
headed "“Attendance Record of the Meetings”.
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For all such meetings, notice of regular Board meetings is
given to all Directors at least 14 days before meeting and
all Directors are given the opportunity to include matters
in the agenda for discussion at the Board meetings. The
agenda and meeting materials are normally sent to all
Directors at least three days before the regular Board
meeting to ensure that they have sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company. In addition
to regular Board meetings, the chairman of the Board
met with the non-executive Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors) without the presence
of the executive Directors.

All Directors have direct access to the company secretary
of the Company who is responsible for advising the Board
on corporate governance and compliance issues, ensuring
that Board procedures are followed, as well as taking
the minutes of the Board and committee meetings. Such
minutes are open for inspection by the Directors.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no
financial, business and family relationship among members
of the Board.

Ms. Fung Sau Mui, a non-executive Director, and Ms.
Lai Ka Fung, May and Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene, the
independent non-executive Directors, have letters of
appointment with the Company for a specified period of
one year. Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond, an independent
non-executive Director, has a letter of appointment with
the Company for a fixed term of service for three years.
All of them are subject to retirement and rotation at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Company's bye-laws (the “Bye-Laws"”).

Pursuant to bye-law 87 of the Bye-Laws, at each annual
general meeting of the Company one-third of the Directors
for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. All retiring
Directors shall be eligible for re-election.
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Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-Laws provided that (i) any
director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy
shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company, and (ii) any director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the following annual general meeting of
the Company, and shall then be eligible for re-election at

that meeting.

The emolument payable to Directors is determined by the
Board with reference to the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee’s recommendation as well as the Directors’
duties and responsibilities and the prevailing market
conditions.

The Company has received annual written confirmation
of independence from all independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board considers them to be independent in

accordance with the Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors and the relevant employees. Before the
Company’s result announcement, notifications are sent
to the Directors and the relevant employees to remind
them not to be involved in dealing with the Company's
securities during the blackout period. Having made specific
enquiry of the Directors, all Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code for the year ended 31 March 2018.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Mr. Li Weibin is the Chairman and Managing Director of
the Company.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company deviates
from the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Li
Weibin is the Chairman and the Managing Director of the
Company (the Company regards the role of its Managing
Director to be the same as that of chief executive under
the CG Code). The Board considered that the non-
segregation would not result in considerable concentration
of power in one person and has the advantage of a strong
and consistent leadership which is conducive to making
and implementing decisions quickly and consistently.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility
to the executive Directors and senior management who
perform their duties under the leadership of the Managing
Director. The Board has also delegated specific roles and
responsibilities to its committees, having specific terms of
references to define their powers, authorities, and duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Company has established the Audit Committee with

written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee, Ms. Lai Ka Fung,
May, possesses appropriate professional qualifications
in finance and accounting and meets the requirements
of Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules. All of the
members of the Audit Committee are independent non-
executive Directors and none of them are members of the
former or existing auditors of the Company.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed with management

the accounting principles and practices adopted by the

Group and discussed the risk management and internal

control and financial reporting matters and made

recommendations to the Board. The Audit Committee

meets at least twice a year with management and external

auditor and reviews their reports.

Members of the Audit Committee and the attendance

of members during the Year are set out as below section

headed "“Attendance Record of the Meetings”.

During the Year, the Audit Committee performed the

following duties:

(a)

reviewed the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2017 and the unaudited interim
consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the six months ended 30 September 2017 with
recommendation to the Board for approval,

reviewed reports on risk management and internal
control systems covering financial, corporate
governance, internal control and operational

functions; and

considered the independent auditors’ independence
and fee in relation to the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2017, the unaudited interim
consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the six months ended 30 September 2017 and non-
audit related services.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the audit and non-audit fees payable/
paid to external auditors was made up of an audit fee of
approximately HK$2.75 million and a non-audit related
service fee of approximately HK$2.18 million. The latter

included taxation service and professional service.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee with written terms of reference
in compliance with the Listing Rules. The terms of
reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and

the Company.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualification, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the

benefits of diversity on the Board.

Members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and the attendance of members during the Year are set
out as below section headed “Attendance Record of the

Meetings”.
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During the Year, the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee performed the following duties:

(a) reviewed the structure, size and diversity (including
without limitation, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service)
of the Board and made recommendations to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(b) assessed the independence of all independent non-
executive Directors; and

(c) reviewed the remuneration packages or fees
(including salary adjustments) of the executive
Directors, the non-executive Director, the
independent non-executive Directors and the senior
management with recommendations to the Board

for approval.

Details of the remuneration paid to Directors and members
of senior management of the Company by band for the
year ended 31 March 2018 are disclosed in the note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF THE SRLELH
MEETINGS
Individual attendance of each Director at the Board RAFERN BUEETARRAESTESH
meetings, the Audit Committee meetings, the Nomination EZZEggH REkiMZeaggzm K
and Remuneration Committee meetings, the annual RAFARE (IRRBFAE]) RERREFRAKR
general meeting (“AGM") and the special general meeting g ([RREIRE]) 2 @ERILFEEREHS 0
("SGM") of the Company held during the Year is as I
follows:
Attendance/Number of meetings
HE/ 8RR
Nomination and
Audit  Remuneration
Name Board Committee Committee AGM SGM
X RER
®E =g ZEg FMzES BRRBEEAE RREFAE
Executive Directors
HiTEE
Mr. Li Weibin 4/4 N/A N/A ”n 7
(Chairman and Managing Director)
FEELE i@ i@ B
(FEREFHLE)
Mr. Siu Wai Yip 3/4 N/A 111 on 171
mEXREE T35 A
Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley 4/4 N/A N/A 171 7
ORI 2+ A3 A A iE A
Mr. Lau Chi Kit 4/4 N/A N/A 11 11
BIEGREE 38 A A5
Non-executive Director
HHITEF
Ms. Fung Sau Mui 3/4 N/A N/A 11 01
KA i@ A i@ B
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUIFHITEE
Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond 4/4 3/3 71 17 7
fAERE L
Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May 4/4 3/3 il 1”n ”n
RRBR+
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene 474 3/3 7 1”n 0/1
PRIBIS 22 +

Annual Report 2018 44t  CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % [ Ht 43 [ B2 33 it 45 i 4 W)




Corporate Governance Report
e NS R

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND
CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

During the Year, the Company provides regular updates
on the business performance of the Group to the
Directors. The Directors are continually updated on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance

and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing
professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
The Company has maintained a training record in order
to assist the Directors to record the training they have
undertaken and they are asked to submit a signed training

record to the Company on annual basis.

EEREAAREREREE

RAREER ARABEHRRNESTEHRAEE
CEBRAEN BEERHEEGEHRLTR
AIMEMBEREZEREZRNERER N
BREEREFRIEEREREM

ARBARBEF2HABBEEXER UER
WEMEMBL G- EEERAYE
EEMER ZERMD A AE R AERE - KA 7]
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EFEE IR
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During the Year, each individual Director has attended RAFEN SENEFEL2MEREZEER
training courses or workshops or reading materials RERESZHBBEEAZIEIREBEIHABIN
relevant to his/her professional and/or duties as Director. FHEREER HEREBEE_ZE—\F=
A summary of the training they have received for the year A=1T—-RLFEEEXZ2HIBMEHLT
ended 31 March 2018 is as follow:
Name Type of trainings
w# B
Executive Directors
HiTEE
Mr. Li Weibin (Chairman and Managing Director) B
PRBSEE (FEREFLLE)
Mr. Siu Wai Yip B
REXLE
Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley A, B
MR 24
Mr. Lau Chi Kit B
25L&
Non-executive Director
HHTEFE
Ms. Fung Sau Mui B
HHEEE L
Independent Non-executive Directors
HUIHRITEE
Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond A, B
o[ 48 18 +
Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May A, B
RREZT
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene A, B
PR ¥ 20+
A attending course/seminars and/or conferences and/ A 2INBERBIRE RUZRREH

or forums provided/accredited by Professional Body Hek/ KgFER KA RE

B: reading materials relevant to the directors’ duties B: MEREEHEREETHEBIER

and responsibilities
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate

governance duties as set out below:

(a)

to develop and review the Company's policies and

practices on corporate governance;

to review and maintain effective risk management

and internal control systems;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior

management;

to review and monitor the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to

employees and Directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance

Report.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged insurance cover to indemnify

Directors and officers of the Company against all costs,

charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by them in

the execution and discharge of their duties or in relation

thereto.

D RERRAE
EFSRRART I XMBZERERRE

(a) HIERRIARRBEHD
REER:

XERZK

(b) BEEEFAERNARE
ERE

B R A ERES

© BIAREREERS
REERERR

REEE 2B

d) ®BERERARBBEHEETERNE
EREZHERER:

() HIE RELEREANBRERES
ZUIRSTARERFM (WEm) &

f)  BMEARBHEEEEATUNZBRE
MEREREERENELNEE-

EENERBEZEARRRBE

ARPELRHRBREABEESE RARTA
BABERNRTRETREZBARREM
EESRELEHEZAARE B BK
xRkafkE-
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining
good corporate governance practices and a sound systems
of risk management and internal control as well as for
the review of effectiveness of these systems. To achieve a
more effective control environment, the Company’s risk
management framework is designed to be an integral part
of the Company's corporate governance framework as
well as strategic and business planning processes, and it
also embeds into each key activity and/or function.

Risk Management

The Company adopts a risk management approach that is
systematic and forward-looking to evaluate and manage
current and emerging risks related to the achievement of
the Company’s strategic and operational objectives.

The risk management framework provides our key decision
makers and management team with better understanding
of risks faced by the Group so that potential issues are
flagged before they occur. The benefits of the framework

are:

o Improve business performance and reduce
operational surprises and associated costs or losses;

o Integrate risk management to corporate governance
practices;

o Provide assurance to the Board that significant risks
are being appropriately managed;

o Enhance capability to reach consensus regarding
potential risks and the appropriate responses;

o Define accountabilities and assign roles and
responsibilities; and

o Establish risk awareness across the organization

involving people at every level.
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Risk Management Process

The risk management process is a continuous process.
After the initial assessment, risks are re-evaluated and
updated on an on-going basis to reflect new information
and changes to circumstances so that all relevant risks,
including new ones, are appropriately identified and
addressed. The steps of an on-going monitoring process is
illustrated in the diagram below.

1

Establish Context
AREIRIEE &

~

5.
Reporting
BEE R /=

Monitoring
SEEE

4.
Risk Response
and Action

A EE RTE B

Establish Context

Risks are to be managed through active collaboration
from all levels within the Group, as such, this step involves
establishing the overall risk management governance
structure which defines the designation and enactment
of responsibility for the risk management process. Roles
and responsibilities are defined at the first time of the risk
management process being initiated, and will be revisited
as required.

Risk Identification

Identification of risks occurs on an on-going basis for
existing processes and on an ad hoc basis as required
when there is any change to existing businesses and
processes such as new services/products and projects, or
to the external environment such as changes in laws and
regulations.

On-going

[\ F B B T AR

[\ B B IR R — EE AR BIE - PRI
RTRBFOERMNBERE AEHRER
38 L B - B R T Y L B D B M 1S B SR AN
BRIE - AR B g i A M B R AT B b A0 BT
R TE B RGBREEEIBIEN
g

N

Risk Identification
[ gz 38 Al

3.

Risk Assessment

[ e &4

R %R &

R EBRNEEASEER BN A IFE
TERE Fit PRSP M R R R EE
RERB PAEATEREEREZAEM
AEfgln-ACkBECRAREERIEEXR
RMEBZEBRE ZRENERTEFENER -

2 2 35

HYERARE BEREHEEETHENT
tE MERMEXBRRBEENTAEE
Flansr ey R%s, EmRIBE % MRS
BEEMEMEE - PIIDEPDEROES) - Al
BAMIEAAREL EAFEREL -
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Risk Assessment

The purpose of risk assessment is to determine significant
risk which are risks that are material and will have an
impact on the business goals and objectives. The judgment
on significance and material involves the consideration
of likelihood and impact of the risk. In this stage, the
risk rankings of all risk events will be identified, and all
significant risks should be addressed in the next stage: Risk
Response and Action.

Risk Response and Action

Risk response and action plans should be formulated for
each of the significant risk event identified during the risk
assessment stage.

A risk treatment, being part of the response and action
plans, is to be selected for each significant risk event.

o Acceptance of Risk: No action is taken to reduce
the risk. The risk is accepted.

o Mitigation: The risk is accepted but risk mitigation
controls and action plans will be established to
minimise the negative impacts. The mitigation
should be new measures instead of existing

controls.

o Transfer: Transfer the risk by the sharing it with
third parties.

o Avoidance: Adopt risk avoidance measures by
ceasing the activity associated with the risk event.

Reporting

Management will submit risk reports to the Board or its
designated Audit Committee regularly, at least on an
annual basis. Management who owns and manage risks
on a day-to-day basis will, on an annual basis, provide a
confirmation to the Board of Directors on the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems.
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On-going Monitoring

The Risk Management Working Group revisits the
Group's risk exposure regularly and will provide advices
on additional risk mitigation plans accordingly. The
internal audit is an independent monitoring function
responsible for reviews of adequacy and effectiveness
of risk management and internal control systems using
a riskbased assessment methodology. Audits will be
performed to evaluate the proper functioning of these
systems.

Risk Management Governance Structure

All personnel in the Group has the responsibility in
maintaining good risk management and internal control
systems, collectively all personnel in the Group forms the
risk management governance structure which is illustrated
below.

FEEE AR

REER TR ETHERNERASE AR
B R - 30 B O E A LR AR R A Bl
FER - NEE R -IEBLNEREE £ F
UREBREROFE L B RREER
NEEZERGZREER AR - B TIE
BTAFRRAFEELRGERELEREE-

BB EERIERIE
AEEMEAESBEETHERTFNRARE
BMAMEERG MEABERBTAARE
ErRREEAERE WTE -

Risk Owners

(Own and Manage Risks)
R EEA
(FERERRR)
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The specific roles and responsibilities of each party
involved are described in details below:

Board of Directors

. Determine the nature and extend of the risks
willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic
objectives;

. Through the Audit Committee, oversee the
design, implementation and monitoring of risk
management and internal control systems by the
management;

o Foster the maintenance of an effective risk culture
and risk management and internal controls
throughout the Group; and

o Being reported on the Group's overall risk exposure,
including the status of any significant current and
emerging exposures and trends, relevant mitigation
strategies and the effectiveness of implementation
of risk management framework.

Risk Management Working Group

° Composes of Directors, c-suite, senior executives
and led by the Managing Director of the Group
(regarded as the same as chief executive), advise
the Board on risk appetite, risk principles and risk
management framework;

o Identify and evaluate significant strategic, business
and process-level risk exposures of the Group;

o Monitor risk responses and mitigation strategies
executed by risk owners and/or their delegates;

o Maintain documentation of risks on the risk register
and prepare risk reports for submission to the
Board; and

o Represent management to provide a confirmation

to the Board on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems.
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Risk Owners

o Heads of departments and business units,
operational level units and managerial individuals
collectively assume the ownership of risks within
their functional areas and all responsibilities

associated with managing such risks;

o Implement risk mitigation measures and internal

controls that embed into day-to-day activities; and

o Report to the Risk Management Working Group on
any changes or developments regarding risks.

Internal Audit

o Independently monitor and review the adequacy
and effectiveness of functionality of the risk

management and internal control practices;

o Facilitate the Risk Management Working Group
with the risk identification, assessment and

reporting processes; and

o Utilise results of risk assessments to compile a

riskbased internal audit coverage plan.

Internal Control System
Control Environment and Monitoring Activities

The Group’s internal control systems include an
organizational structure with clearly defined delegation of
authority and responsibility. Policies and procedures were
established to govern business operations and internal
controls to be implemented as management intends.
The Group's company secretary, internal and external
legal advisors and other management together oversee
adherence to relevant laws and regulations including the
Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance and the Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards, etc.
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Budgeting and performance measuring criteria were
established by the management for its day-to-day
monitoring of business operations. Heads of departments
and business units regularly meet to review business
performance, the risks associated with their operational
activities and the relevant internal control measures to be
embedded in the processes to mitigate the risks the Group
is facing. The management also regularly prepares monthly
reports to the Board on the Group's performance.

The Group conducts business based on the principles
of fairness, honesty and integrity and is committed to
the highest level of standards of ethical behavior and
accountability. Its code of conduct sets out the important
principles and expectations of appropriate business
conduct to ensure the Group's employees’ compliance
with the code. The Group’s whistleblowing policy enables
a transparent working environment and provides channels
and guideline to all employees the procedures to disclose
any misconduct, malpractice or irregularity of which they
become aware. The Group did not receive any report of

whistleblowing incident during the Year.
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The Company’s policy and procedures on disclosure
of inside information provides guidelines in relation to
handling and dissemination of inside information of the
Group to ensure inside information is disseminated to the
public in an equal, timely and effective manner. The policy
outlines the internal procedures for the identification
and reporting of actual or potential inside information,
the obligations of the Group and duties of officers in
accordance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFO"), Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong.
Specifically, inside information is disseminated via the
electronic publication system operated by the Stock
Exchange before the information is released via other
channels, such as the press, wire services or posting
announcements on the Company’s website. As soon
as an employee becomes aware of actual or potential
inside information, or when any director, officer or
employee becomes aware of any disclosure of non-public
insider information or breach of this policy, he/she must
promptly report to his/her respective departmental in-
charge, who will further communicate with the Group’s
company secretary. The matter will be assessed and the
appropriate course of actions will be determined by the
Board of Directors. Audit trail of meetings and discussions
concerning the assessment of inside information will be

maintained.

The inside information policy makes specific references to
the SFO, guidelines issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission and the Model Code issued by the Stock
Exchange. It also echoes the code of conduct for how
confidential information or inside information of the
Group should be handled.
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Review of Effectiveness of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

During the Year, the Audit Committee, with the delegated
authority from the Board, has conducted annual review
of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group including the relevant
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management procedures to provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against failure to achieve business

objectives and material misstatement or loss.

Management has provided confirmation to the Board that
the Group's risk management and internal control systems

are effective.

Based on (i) meetings with executive Directors to discuss
risks and internal controls concerning the Group’s
business operations and financial reporting process, (ii)
review of internal audit and external audit reports, (iii)
review of reports on the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management system, and (iv) the monitoring of
significant issues and material internal control defects
through reviews conducted by the internal audit, the Audit
Committee concluded that the Group's risk management
and internal control systems are effective. There were no
significant control failings, weaknesses or significant areas

of concern identified during the Year.

The Audit Committee also reviewed and was satisfied with
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience,
training programs and budget of the employees of the
Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting

functions.
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Internal Audit Function

The internal audit function’s main responsibilities include

the followings:

(a) independently review and evaluate the adequacy,
effectiveness and efficiency of risk management
and internal control systems regarding the financial,
compliance and operational performance and

safeguarding of assets;

(b) facilitate management in identification of risks,
and development of risk mitigation and monitoring
strategies as part of the risk management

framework;

(c) monitor operational compliance with the Group’s

established policies and procedures; and

(d) provide advices to the management and conduct
special reviews in specific areas concerned by the
management in addition to the planned audit

activities.

The internal audit function carries out assessment based
on the internal audit annual plan approved by the Audit
Committee, and reports to the Audit Committee of
the Board periodically on status of implementation of
agreed audit plan and any significant risk exposures and
governance and control issues including fraud risks.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors, having
made appropriate enquiries, are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements on a

going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the auditor to the shareholders are
set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” from pages

102 to 111 in this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Lam Suk
Ling, Shirley, the company secretary of the Company,
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training for the year ended 31 March 2018.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
The Board endeavours to communicate with shareholders

through annual and other general meetings directly.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full
information of the Group to shareholders through the
publication of announcements, circulars, interim and
annual reports. Updated information of the Group is also
available to shareholders through the Company’s website.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend general meetings
of the Company at which Directors are available to answer

shareholders’ questions.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

Procedures for convening a special general meeting by
shareholders

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to
convene a SGM of the Company. Shareholders holding in
aggregate of not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company may send a written request to the Board
to request for the SGM.

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, must state the purposes of the meeting and
must be deposited at the Company's head office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Suites 5-6,
40/F., One Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Place, Central,
Hong Kong or at the Company’s branch share registrar
and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited,
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make
necessary arrangements, and the shareholders concerned
would be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving
effect thereto in accordance with the requirements under
Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the
“Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is received.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at

general meetings

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a
proposal (which may properly be put to the meeting) for
consideration at a general meeting of the Company:

(a) any number of members representing not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of the

Company on the date of the requisition; or

(b) not less than 100 members holding shares in the

Company.

B Rz A
BEBHBRREBIAG 2R

BREBEREZTSARARAZRRRR
RE-AABFETNIRARBAHREAR+7
Z—ZBERAMEZTGTREEARKUNER
BRBRERARE -

KEBBRRERAFEB2EABAKEAYHAE
ZERORBEERARRZENRERERERE
TEEME (MU ABEBPRBELESSHRR
2 E 51 BA0ES-6F ) AR Al 2 BB RN
BEFELOIRESEZEARAR (MIEAE
BERANBRISIHAFA L22E) -

—BEREEBUBR ARABREARE
—NAN—FREE([REE]) B74GRZRE
RREETHREFLLELZ S MBEBKRR
BAEXNALEEZBBRER-

BRRRBERAE LIREZRZIEF

ATHEREBRARABBRRAE LIREEZH
(ERARKRELEIEARZ) UHEE:

(@ MNBEKREHEARAAREESLR
Dz 2 ERBERARG 3K

(b)  AIRI00IFEARARRRMN 2R -

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % I tp 6 B B #% )8 45 B8 44 7] Annual Report 2018 4



The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the
shareholders concerned, together with a statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred
to in the proposal must be deposited at the Company’s
head office and principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Suites 5-6, 40/F., One Exchange Square, 8 Connaught
Place, Central, Hong Kong or at the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Standard Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong. The Company would take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements,
and the shareholders concerned would be responsible
for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in
accordance with the requirements under Sections 79
and 80 of the Companies Act once valid documents are
received.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than
a retiring Director for election as a Director at a general
meeting, the shareholder should follow the “Procedures
for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director of the Company”, which can be found on the
website of the Company.
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Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and

concerns to the Board in writing via the following channel:

The Company Secretary

Chinlink International Holdings Limited
Suites 5-6, 40/F., One Exchange Square
8 Connaught Place

Central, Hong Kong

E-mail: shirleylam@chinlinkint.com
Telephone: (852) 2126 6333

Facsimile: (852) 2126 6399

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at

the general meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There was no significant change in the Company’'s

constitutional documents during the Year.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities and other particulars of
the subsidiaries are set out in note 50 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2018 are set
out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2018 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on page 112 of this

annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend (2017: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2018 is provided in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 13 to 41
of this annual report.

ANALYSIS OF MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The sales to the top five customers for the Year amounted
to HK$1,114.0 million, representing an increase of
190.5% from HK$383.5 million for the year ended 31
March 2017.
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The top five customers in the Year represented
approximately 88.6% of the total revenue as compared
to approximately 73.9% for the year ended 31 March
2017. The largest customer in the Year which is from
international trading segment accounted for approximately
58.6% of the total revenue in the Year as compared to
the largest customer in last year of approximately 29.6%
of total revenue for the year ended 31 March 2017 which
was from international trading segment. Four out of the
top five customers are located in Hong Kong and Macau

and one is located in the PRC.

The purchases from the top five suppliers amounted to
HK$1,056.4 million, representing an increase of 185.4%
from HK$370.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2017.

The top five suppliers in the Year represented
approximately 95.1% of the total purchases as compared
to approximately 87.1% for the year ended 31 March
2017. The largest supplier in the Year which is from
international trading segment accounted for approximately
63.9% of the total purchases in the Year as compared to
the largest supplier in last year of approximately 38.4% of
total purchases for the year ended 31 March 2017 which
was from international trading segment. The top five

suppliers are located in Hong Kong and Macau.

Maintaining good relationships with customers and
suppliers is fundamental to the Group’s operations and
success. The Group is keen to foster a satisfactory and
balanced demand and supply and maintains close relations
with its customers and suppliers.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company
are set out in the section headed “Major Risks” in the
Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 13 to
41 of this annual report and notes 4, 45 and 46 to the

consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

A separate environmental, social and governance report
complying with the disclosure requirements under
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules will be published by the
Group separately, in any event no later than three months

after the publication of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year ended 31 March 2018
are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2018, together with the
reasons therefor are set out in note 38 to the consolidated

financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of movements in the convertible bonds of the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2018 are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company has no reserves available for distribution to
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) as at
31 March 2018.
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Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus account of the Company is
available for distribution. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of

contributed surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2018 and

up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Weibin

Mr. Siu Wai Yip

Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley
Mr. Lau Chi Kit

Non-executive Director
Ms. Fung Sau Mui

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond

Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Li
Weibin, Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley and Ms. Fung Sau Mui
shall retire from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. Being eligible,
the abovementioned Directors shall offer themselves for

re-election.
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The directors who have served on the boards of the RAFERERNRBZEARREBBARRREMNE
subsidiaries of the Company during the Year and up to the NAEEZGEBIEFTOT:

date of this report were:

Mr. Li Weibin
TEMEE

Mr. Lau Chi Kit
2B AE

Mr. Wong Kam Hong
mIBFEEL

Ms. Guo Li Na
= e

Mr. Wang Hong Li
FRNFEE

Mr. Liu Wei
2EEE

Ms. Zhang Yu Mo
RRALL

Ms. Fu Hang
B+

Ms. Gao Ya Qing
SYi3: kegen

Mr. Siu Wai Yip
mEELE

Ms. Fung Sau Mui
HHEELL

Mr. Kwan Kam Ming
oknk i

Mr. Tang Yi Feng
E—IgEAE

Ms. Wang Hong
FaIL+

Ms. Duan Shan Shan
E5 3 3 22 4

Mr. Rachid Bouzouba
Rachid Bouzouba%t 4

Mr. Tian Jin
ML £

Mr. Li Hao
TREHE
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Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley
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Mr. Tai Wing Wah
BoKELE

Mr. Loo Chi Kwan
EEELEAE

Ms. Zhao Ying
ML+

Mr. Liu Shu Li
IR S A&

Mr. Adrian Valenzuela
Adrian Valenzuelaft 4

Ms. Wen Lin
Pk e

Mr. Yang Zhao
BEELE
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the four executive Directors, Mr. Li Weibin, Mr. Siu
Wai Yip, Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley and Mr. Lau Chi Kit,
have entered into a service agreement with the Company
for no fixed term which may be terminated by one

month’s notice in writing by either party respectively.

The non-executive Director, Ms. Fung Sau Mui and each of
the two independent non-executive Directors, Ms. Lai Ka
Fung, May and Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene have entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed term

of one year commencing on 18 February 2018 respectively.

The independent non-executive Director, Dr. Ho Chung Tai,
Raymond has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing
on 17 December 2016.

No Director being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired
service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than normal statutory

obligations.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions

of the Directors and the chief executive of the Company

and their respective associates in the shares, underlying

shares and debentures of the Company and its associate

corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),

as recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant

to the Model Code of Securities Transactions by Directors

of Listed Companies, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.3125 each and

underlying shares of the Company
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Approximate
percentage of

the total
Number of number of
Number of underlying issued shares of
Name of Directors Capacity ordinary share shares Total the Company
EXRRRC BT
RoEHZ
Exns 54 LEREE HERGEE @it BHED
(Note 1)
(HiE1)
Mr. Li Weibin (“Mr. Li") Beneficial owner 16,055,600 778,018 16,833,618
FEELE((ZxE]) EREAA (Note 2)
(H2)
Interest of controlled 333,612,758 641,150,442 974,763,200
corporation (Note 3) (Note 4)
XAt EE RS (Hi#3) (Krita)
991,596,818 145.03%

Annual Report 2018 44t  CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % [ Ht 43 [ B2 33 it 45 i 4 W)




Directors’ Report

R R

Approximate
percentage of

the total

Number of number of

Number of underlying issued shares of

Name of Directors Capacity ordinary share shares Total the Company

NG IR

BB

EEpE EL) EEREE HEROEE @t BAEA

(Note 1)

(Hist1)

Mr. Siu Wai Yip Beneficial owner - 542,804 542,804 0.08%
BRELE EHREBA (Note 5)
(Hrits)

Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley Beneficial owner - 542,804 542,804 0.08%
MR Lt ERBBA (Note 5)
(Hrits)

Mr. Lau Chi Kit Beneficial owner 200,000 361,869 561,869 0.08%
BEGEE ERBBA (Note 5)
(H1it5)

Ms. Fung Sau Mui Beneficial owner - 180,935 180,935 0.03%
BEETL BREBA (Note 5)
(H1it5)

Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond Beneficial owner - 361,869 361,869 0.05%
EREL ERBBA (Note 6)
(Hiite)

Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May Beneficial owner - 180,935 180,935 0.03%
REEL+t EBBA (Note 5)
(Hrit5)

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene Beneficial owner - 180,935 180,935 0.03%
gLt EEBBA (Note 5)
(Hrit5)
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Notes:

Based on 683,719,250 ordinary Shares of the Company
issued as at 31 March 2018.

These underlying shares represent 778,018 share options
at an exercise price of HK$6.41 per share granted on 24
April 2013 (subject to adjustment).

These shares are held by Wealth Keeper International
Limited (“Wealth Keeper”), the entire issued share
capital of which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Li. Accordingly, Mr. Li is deemed to be interested in the
entire 333,612,758 shares held by Wealth Keeper by
virtue of the SFO.

These underlying shares are convertible bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$362,250,000 held
by Golden Lion Ventures Limited (“Golden Lion"”). The
convertible bonds will be converted into 641,150,442
shares at an initial conversion price of HK$0.565 per
share. Mr. Li beneficially owns 75% of the issued share
capital of Golden Lion. Accordingly, Mr. Li is deemed to be
interested in these 641,150,442 underlying shares held by
Golden Lion by virtue of the SFO.

These underlying shares are share options at an exercise
price of HK$6.41 per share granted on 24 April 2013

(subject to adjustment).

These underlying shares are share options at an exercise
price of HK$7.5175 per Share granted on 17 December
2013 (subject to adjustment).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of

the Directors or chief executive of the Company or any of

their associates had any interests or short positions in the

shares, underlying shares or debenture of the Company or

any associated corporations.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 21 September 2012, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Scheme”), which was approved by
the Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the

Company held on the same date.

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Group
to grant share options to the eligible participants as

incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group.

According to the Scheme, the Board may grant share
options to the eligible participants as defined in the
Scheme to subscribe for such number of shares as the
Board may determine. Share options granted should
be accepted within 28 days from the date of the letter
of grant. Upon acceptance of the share options, the
grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way of
consideration for the grant. Subject to the terms of the
Scheme and all applicable laws, the Board has the power
to determine the period within which payments or calls

must or may be made.

The exercise price of share options shall be determined
by the Board, which shall be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of the grant,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets of
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the grant; and (iii) the nominal value

of a share.
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The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all share options to be granted under
the Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company must not exceed 10% of the total number of
shares in issue of the Company on the date of approval
and adoption of the Scheme provided that the Company
may at any time seek approval from its Shareholders to
refresh the limit to 10% of the shares in issue as at the
date of approval by the Shareholders in general meeting
where such limit is refreshed. Share options previously
granted under any share option schemes of the Company
(including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in
accordance with such schemes or exercised options) will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the limit as
refreshed.

The total number of shares issued which may fall to
be issued upon exercise of the share options granted
under the Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) to each eligible participant in any
12-month period up to and including the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant unless such grant has been duly approved
by ordinary resolution of the Shareholders in general
meeting at which the relevant eligible participant and his
associates abstained from voting. Share options granted
to substantial shareholders or independent non-executive
Directors or any of their respective associates in any
12-month period in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
issued share capital on the date of grant and with a value
in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance
by the Shareholders.

The period during which a share option may be exercised
will be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion,
save that no share options can be exercised more than
10 years after it has been granted. There is no general
requirement that a share options must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised. The Scheme
will expire on 20 September 2022.
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At the special general meeting of the Company held on 27
March 2017, the Company was authorised to refresh the
scheme mandate limit to issue a maximum of 67,000,243
shares options under the Scheme. Notwithstanding the
forgoing, the shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the

shares in issue from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, no share options
were granted, exercised and cancelled and a total of
90,467 share options were lapsed. As at the date of this
report, the total number of share available for issue under
the Scheme is 76,101,253, which represents approximately
5.74% of the total number of shares in issue of the
Company as at 25 June 2018 (i.e. 1,324,869,692 shares).

The movements in the share options granted under the
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2018 are shown

below:

Number of share options

ERRAR-_FT—tEF=ZA-t+LRETZ
BERBFRIRE £ AR BV EREE &R
R BEIAREZAT 81 #175&%67,000,2431)
Bl @BEA L REZTEI AR
) ] HL A B AR T &I PRI BB W R TT (R 2
PIERARITERRBETERAY TRITZRK
DEEMAE RS N EBETR D ETRN
30% °

HE_ZT-N\FZAZ+—AHILFE TEE
ARAEIER - 1T KAk sH - A 2£90,46710 B IR
MR - AR S HER - % AT 8118 T Al 8847
2D BB A76,101,2530  HEE N AR A
RZZE—N\FENAZ+REAZERTRGE
# (BN1,324,869,692/% (%19 ) 2 #15.74% -

HE_Z- N\F=ZA=+—-HILFE BE
ZATEIR L 2 BREZE IR

BREHE
Date of Exercise
Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed grant of Validity price
At during during during during At share period of of share
Name or category of participants 1 April 2017 the Year the Year the Year the Year 31 March 2018  options share options options
R-B-tF KEER REER KEER KEER  RIE-NE BREZ BREZ
SREZHENE BA-H it [y H# %%  ZB=t-8 KBS BREZEXRS TRE
HK$
BT
per share
Bk
Executive Directors
HiTEE
Mr. Li Weibin 778,018 - - - - 778,018 24-04-13 24-04-14 10 6.4100
FREAE —Z£MA 23-04-23 (Note 1)
—tme —“RMEMA-TMAE
ZZEMAZT=ZH
(H#1)
Mr. Siu Wai Yip 542,804 - - - - 542,804 24-04-13 24-04-14 10 6.4100
Bexrs —ZEMA 23-04-23 (Note 1)
—tme —“RMEMA-TMAE
ZZEMAZT=ZH

(Wit1)
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Number of share options
BREYE
Date of Exercise
Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed grant of Validity price
At during during during during At share period of of share
Name or category of participants 1 April 2017 the Year the Year the Year the Year 31 March 2018 options share options options
RZB-tE KEER KEER KEER KEER  RIE-NE BREZ BREZ
SRECHLZARA mA-B il Eix:3 i) F34 ZAZt-B  BHAH BREZENS Eix: 3
HK$
B
per share
R
Ms. Lam Suk Ling, Shirley 542,804 - - - - 542,804 24-04-13 24-04-14 to 6.4100
i es —Z%mA 23-04-23 (Note 1)
~tmAe -“REMAZTHMAZE
Z=¥mAZt=H
(Hi1)
Mr. Lau Chi Kit 361,869 - - - - 361,869 24-04-13 24-04-14 to 6.4100
ELtitd —Z£mA 23-04-23 (Note 1)
~tmAe “REMAZTMAZE
Z=¥mA=t=H
(Hi1)
Non-executive Director
*HTES
Ms. Fung Sau Mui 180,935 - - - - 180,935 24-04-13 24-04-14 to 6.4100
BAlRL —Z£mA 23-04-23 (Note 1)
ZTEA -MEMAZTMAZE
Z=EMAZt=H
(#rit1)
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUFHTES
Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond 361,869 - - - - 361,869 17-12-13 17-12-14 1o 7.5175
HEREL -Z#+Zf 16-12-23 (Note 3)
++A -REFZAttRZE
ZZFtZA+TRBE
(Hit3)
Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May 180,935 - - - - 180,935 24-04-13 24-04-14 to 6.4100
RRERL —Z£mA 23-04-23 (Note 1)
—tmA -mENA-+tMAZR
ZZEWMAZT=H
(Hit1)
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene 180,935 - - - - 180,935 24-04-13 24-04-14 to 6.4100
RERRL —ZEMA 23-04-23 (Note 1)
—tmA -mENA-+tMAR
ZZEMAZT=H
(Hit1)
3,130,169 - - - - 3,130,169
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Number of share options
BREYE
Date of Exercise
Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed grant of Validity price
At during during during during At share period of of share
Name or category of participants 1 April 2017 the Year the Year the Year the Year 31 March 2018 options share options options
RZB-tE KEER KEER KEER KEER  RIE-NE BREZ BREZ
SRECHLZARA mA-B il Eix:3 i F34 ZAZt-B  BHAH BREZENH Eix: 3
HK$
B
per share
R
Others
H
Employees 2,352,148 - - - - 2,352,148 24-04-13 24-04-14 to 6.4100
{31 —Z%[mA 23-04-23 (Note 1)
ZTEA -MEMAZTMAZE
ZZEMAZT=R
(#rit1)
1,176,075 - - - (90,467) 1,085,508 29-11-13 29-11-14 10 77375
—Z£1-A 28-11-23 (Note 2)
—thA -mE+-A=+NBZE
ZZE+-AZtNH
(#ri2)
Other eligible participants 2,533,085 - - - - 2,533,085 24-04-13 24-04-14 to 6.4100
ApaAR2AE —Z£mA 23-04-23 (Note 1)
ZtTEA -MEMAZTMAZE
ZZEMAZT=R
(#rit1)
9,191,477 - - - (90,467) 9,101,010
Notes: B 5t -
1. The validity period of the share options are vested into 1. R, BB ZA T ALEE: ()8

five tranches with (i) the first 20% of the share options
shall become exercisable from 24 April 2014 until 23 April
2023 (both days inclusive); (ii) the next 20% of the share
options shall become exercisable from 24 April 2015 until
23 April 2023 (both days inclusive); (iii) the next 20% of
the share options shall become exercisable from 24 April
2016 until 23 April 2023 (both days inclusive); (iv) the
next 20% of the share options shall become exercisable
from 24 April 2017 until 23 April 2023 (both days
inclusive); and (v) the remaining 20% of the share options
shall become exercisable from 24 April 2018 until 23 April
2023 (both days inclusive).

20% 7 BERLHE - IR - aErm A =+
HE-_Z-_=ZFMNA-+=H (BFEaER
M E) A FATE ()EIR20% 2 AR E - 15
R-ZE-—RAFEWMA-+HBEE-ZT-_=%
MAZ+=B(REERMAB) A FI1{E:
(iH)EK20% 2 BB - R ZT—RFNH
A-t+mMBE-_Z-_=F#mMA-+=8 (8
BEEMB)A T (vEX20%2 8
BE EgR-_E—+tFOA-+HBAZE=
E_=FWNAZ+=R(BEEERA)T
FATEE (V)R T20% 2 BB HE - B R =
- N \FHNAZ+HAEE=-T=_=FA
Z+=A(BEEEMRBA) A T
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The validity period of the share options are vested into
five tranches with (i) the first 20% of the share options
shall become exercisable from 29 November 2014 until
28 November 2023 (both days inclusive); (ii) the next
20% of the share options shall become exercisable from
29 November 2015 until 28 November 2023 (both days
inclusive); (iii) the next 20% of the share options shall
become exercisable from 29 November 2016 until 28
November 2023 (both days inclusive); (iv) the next 20%
of the share options shall become exercisable from 29
November 2017 until 28 November 2023 (both days
inclusive); and (v) the remaining 20% of the share options
shall become exercisable from 29 November 2018 until 28
November 2023 (both days inclusive).

The validity period of the share options are vested into
five tranches with (i) the first 20% of the share options
shall become exercisable from 17 December 2014 until
16 December 2023 (both days inclusive); (ii) the next
20% of the share options shall become exercisable from
17 December 2015 until 16 December 2023 (both days
inclusive); (iii) the next 20% of the share options shall
become exercisable from 17 December 2016 until 16
December 2023 (both days inclusive); (iv) the next 20%
of the share options shall become exercisable from 17
December 2017 until 16 December 2023 (both days
inclusive); and (v) the remaining 20% of the share options
shall become exercisable from 17 December 2018 until 16

December 2023 (both days inclusive).
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BREZEZBIRATHALEE ()
BH20%ZERE BR=_Z—NF+—A
—t+thBE-_Z-_=F+—A-+/\B (8
FEEMB) AT (DHIR20% 2 AR
B BR-_T—RAF+—AZt+hAE=Z
—=F+—A-t+N\B(BEEEMA)T
FITE () R20% 2 B iE - R =T
—RNET—AZThABE-ZTE-_=F+—
AZ+N B (BEEHEEMB) A FITE: (v)
HR20% 2 ERE BR_T—tF+—A
ZThBEEZZZ=F+—A=+NEB (&
FERWMA)ATIE: RWHBRT20% 28
i R =T \F+—A=F+hAE=
T=F+—AZ+N\B(BEEEmMA)
A FAITfE

EREZAWBRDIEATSAREE ()
B20% 2 ERE - BR _Z—NF+ A
THREZT_=F+ A+ B (BEE
BB ) FITE: (i)EIR20% 2 BAHE -
R ZZE—AF+_ATEHE=ZT ==
FH+ZA+TARB(REERMB)A FIT
7 (iNER20% 2 R R _F—R
F+-_A+TtHE-Z-_=ZF+-A+~
A(BEEEEMB) A FITE: (vEIR20%
CHEBRE BN -_E—+E+-A++LRAE
ZE=F+tZA+AB(BEEERMA)
Al FATIE  R(VER T 20% 2 BEARIE - R =
- NFF+_A+tHREZZT=_=F+=
A+AB(BEEREMA)A T
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The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before the date on which the share options were granted,
i.e. 23 April 2013, 28 November 2013 and 16 December
2013, were HK$0.56, HK$0.68 and HK$0.68 per share,
respectively.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above in “DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS”, at
no time during the year ended 31 March 2018 was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.

ARARBRHOREZERERL A —X
(—E—=F=mWA-+=H —ZET—=F
+—A-+t N \BE-_Z—=F+-A+xH)
2 W EBD R AEK0.56/ 7T 0.6878 T &
0.688 T -

BEROIESFZH

BREXTEERESTRABRARB RIE
M EAE D HERDERESTHEE
ZHEmMER]AREEN  AAR - HER
REARETAHBAREERBEE TN\
FZA=T-HLEFERAZEMKREZE
MRZH REEETUNEBRBARAF LT
] E At )X B 2 B S B 5 T & o

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % I tp 6 B B #% )8 45 B8 44 7] Annual Report 2018 4



Directors’ Report

5l

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND FERRREMALTRES REER
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND BzEERER

SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2018, the Shareholders (other than RZE—N\F=ZA=1+—B KR (EFFHAK
Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had RAIRSITBRABRINREARAZ RN S
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying RO HEEELRARARIERES
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required NEABIRDIEIB6IKFE 2 BELMA AR

to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of TREARAQNE S EEE#SWT
the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company are set out

below:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of RARREBREEERND 2 RE
the Company

Approximate
percentage of

the total
Number of number of
ordinary Interest in shares in
Name of shares of underlying issue of
substantial Shareholders Capacity HK$0.3125 each shares Total the Company
EXRAT
BREE BERITRG
0312582 RAEE By
TERRER B2 L) EEREE g Bt BAES
(Note 1)
(Hrat1)
Wealth Keeper Beneficial owner 333,612,758 - 333,612,758 48.79%
ExBBA
Golden Lion Beneficial owner - 641,150,442 641,150,442 93.77%
EanEBA (Note 2)
(Bi522)
Ms. Cao Wei (“Ms. Cao”") Interest in spouse 349,668,358 641,928,460 991,596,818 145.03%
(Note 3) fl B (Note 4) (Note 5)
Beut([8xt] (Wi3) (Mit4) (H#ts5)
Notes: Bt iz
1. Based on 683,719,250 ordinary Shares of the Company 1. BRRABIRZ_ZE—N\F=ZRA=+—HE%
issued as at 31 March 2018. 77683,719,2500% L@ Mt & -
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2. These underlying shares are convertible bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$362,250,000 held by
Golden Lion. The convertible bonds will be converted
into 641,150,442 shares at an initial conversion price of
HK$0.565 per share.

3. Ms. Cao is the spouse of Mr. Li.

4. These shares comprise (i) 16,055,600 shares personally
held by Mr. Li, and (ii) 333,612,758 shares held by Wealth
Keeper, the entire issued share capital of which is wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. Li. Mr. Li is the spouse of
Ms. Cao. Accordingly, Ms. Cao is deemed to be interested
in the said number of shares respectively held by Mr. Li
and Wealth Keeper by virtue of the SFO.

5. These 641,928,460 underlying shares comprise
(i) 778,018 share options held by Mr. Li; (ii) the
convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$362,250,000 held by Golden Lion. The convertible
bonds will be converted into 641,150,442 shares at
an initial conversion price of HK$0.565 per share. Mr.
Li beneficially owns 75% of the issued share capital
of Golden Lion. Accordingly, Mr. Li is deemed to be
interested in these 641,150,442 underlying shares held by
Golden Lion by virtue of the SFO. Mr. Li is the spouse of
Ms. Cao. Accordingly, Ms. Cao is deemed to be interested
in the said number of shares held by Mr. Li and Golden
Lion respectively by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, no other
persons had any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section

336 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company.

2. % S A A B Golden Liont A 2 A4
4R %E /362,250,000/8 7T 2 A A AR (& % o 7]
IR EH 1Y) PR E T R0.56578 L
1 5641,150,44288 B% 5 °

3. BRETRFREZERB-

4. ZEBRDEBENBFEEBEBATEZ

16,055,600 f& {5 - X (ii)E§ Wealth Keeper
48 .2333,612,758% I& 15 + fiWealth
Keeperz 2# B BITRARFTEELEE
HHA - FTREREL I ZEB At B
BEFRIEET Lt BR AR BB
&4 4 K Wealth Keeperds 5 2 Fr it & B i
MHREERER -

5. 2 %5641,928,460/% 10 B I 10 B2 1B () F %
EHE 2778,018% B4 ¢ (i) Golden
Lion B 2 AN & #2 %8 /£362,250,000/8 7T
ZHBRBRES TRREFBIENSER
{8 9 1%0.5657%8 JT 8 #2 £641,150,442% i%
e ZHEEZB A Golden LionB 1T
R275% AL REBEF 5 REEED -
AR AR Golden LionE B 2% %
641,150,442 AR P HE A @R - T 5%
EhEZTZREB-Bit REZFHKH
B Bt RAERDABATEER
Golden Liont$HB Z BTl 8 B f% 1) 7 ¥ B &

S o

E\

BREXFEZEEN RZ2T—N\F=A=+—
B #SEEMmALTRARF KD AAERD
hoBERAETRARRREZES MK
PIZE336MFEZELMA  KASTHER
REZEFERBER
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected Transactions

Details of the connected transactions under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules are set out in the section headed
“Material Acquisitions” in the Management Discussion

and Analysis of this annual report.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the
Company discloses the following continuing connected

transactions incurred during the Year.

On 28 July 2016, the Financial Guarantee Company (as at
the date of this annual report, an indirect non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) and Xi‘an Dewantong
Commercial Operation and Management Company
Limited*) ("Dewantong”) entered into a financing
guarantee contract ("Dewantong FG Contract 1”). On 30
March 2017, the Financial Guarantee Company and
Dewantong entered into another financing guarantee
contract (“Dewantong FG Contract I1”). On 30 March
2018, the Financial Guarantee Company and Dewantong
further entered into a new financing guarantee contract
("Dewantong FG Contract IlIl”, together with the
Dewantong FG Contract | and Dewantong FG Contract I,
collectively, the “Dewantong FG Contracts”), pursuant
to which the Financial Guarantee Company has agreed to
provide financing guarantee to the lending banks in
favour of Dewantong for procuring Dewantong in

obtaining the bank loans.

*  For identification purpose only
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R ETRAFVAAT KRR EWBEIA TR
AEERNETZHEWERS -

RZE—RELA-_+TNB BREERLD
Al (RAFRABMAARARIMEIRZEN B
AR EAREEANEELEETEARAA
([EEBEDFTI—HREEREN([EE
BREEREN])) R_T—tF=-A=+
H BEERAFNEEEBIUS—HRE
EREH([EEEMERREON]) - A=
T-N\F=-ZA=1TH BEERAFAEZSE
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BEEREHN) Bt BEERQAFERE
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The principal terms of the Dewantong FG Contracts are set EEARMEEREOZEEZGRHRFINAT
out below:

Approximate

Guaranteed guarantee  Guarantee
Contract Date of Contracts amount income  service period
CL BHNEH EReE BOERKA EREBHE

(RMB in million) (RMB in million)
(ANREBEEL) (ARBHERL)

Dewantong FG Contract | 28 July 2016 3.000 0.075 28 July 2016 to
EEARERRELN —E-R"FtA 27 July 2017
—t+NH ZE-RFtAZT/NHE
“E-+tFtAZ++A
Dewantong FG Contract Il 30 March 2017 5.000 0.125 30 March 2017 to
EEBREZRAN “T-t¥=A=tH 29 March 2018
—E—+tF=A=1+HZE
“Z-NE=ZA=Z+ANA
Dewantong FG Contract Ill 30 March 2018 4.000 0.100 30 March 2018 to
EERREERAHN “E-\F=ZA=tH 25 March 2019
—2-N\F=f=1HE
—E-NE=ZA=t+HA
During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group HE_Z—N\F=ZA=+—HLFE X%
has received/receivable from Dewantong for financing EREEEAREERENEYR EKES
guarantee services fee of total approximately RMBO.14 AREERREERS £ AK%140,000
million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.17 million) T (FAE R 4170,0008 ) (ZF—+H4F:
(2017: approximately RMBO0.21 million (equivalent #H AR M210,0007T (4 49250,000%8
to approximately HK$0.25 million)) pursuant to the JL) ) e

Dewantong FG Contracts.

The transactions pursuant to the Dewantong FG Contracts ARARBMITE SRITRB BT L AERE
constituted continuing connected transactions of the RERERZS0%KE WREBEEEARE
Company under the Listing Rules as Mr. Li, an executive ERENETZIRSHEKR EWHRBIBBTAR
Director and the controlling shareholder of the Company, A RHERER 7 BEHEEBREERE
indirectly holds 50% of the equity interest of Dewantong. HNzE—FTFBERARABHES AT
Further details of the Dewantong FG Contracts are set —~NFtAZF+N\NRB ZE—+tF=ZRA=+
out in the announcements of the Company dated 28 July AR—E—NFZA=Z+TBZRAHA-

2016, 30 March 2017 and 30 March 2018 respectively.
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On 2 May 2017, the Financial Guarantee Company and
Xi‘an Hui Jing Zhuo Yuan Information Technology
Company Limited* (“Zhuo Yuan”) entered into a
financing guarantee contract (“ZY FG Contract”) and a
consultancy services contract (“ZY CS Contract”),
pursuant to which the Financial Guarantee Company has
agreed to provide financing guarantee to the lending bank
in favor of Zhuo Yuan for procuring Zhuo Yuan in
obtaining the bank loan and the Financial Guarantee
Company has also agreed to provide logistics consultancy

services to Zhuo Yuan in return for services income.

The principal terms of the ZY FG Contract and ZY CS
Contract are set out below:

Directors’ Report

5l

RZZE—+tFRAZH MEERARHERA
ZESETEERMARAR ([EX])F]Z
—MREEREN ([ETHERREN]) &
—EARBAELD (ETHARBEEN]) -
Bl MEERRARCRAENETRR R

AERRITIREBEERIAE R IETESR
TERLKBERRARTEREMETREMR
W) 7 AR 755 DA ZE BXUAR 75 WK AE S B3R o

ZEREFNDOT -

Approximate
guarantee/
consultancy
service income
BHER/
A RERA
(RMB in million)
(AR®RET)

Guarantee/consultancy
service period

’R/EARYE B

Guaranteed
Contract Date of Contracts amount
X BHAH EReE
(RMB in million)
(ARBBET)
ZY FG Contract 2 May 2017
ETREERED “E—+&RACH
ZY CS Contract 2 May 2017 Not applicable
ETHARBEH “E—+ERAZH TiER

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
has received/receivable from Zhuo Yuan the financing
guarantee services fee and consultancy services fee
of total approximately RMB0.30 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$0.36 million) (2017: approximately
RMBO0.39 million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.45
million)) pursuant to the ZY FG Contract and the ZY CS
Contract.

*  For identification purpose only
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0.115 2 May 2017 to 30 March 2018
“E—+FRHAZHE
—“E-NF=ZA=1H

0.206 2 May 2017 to 30 March 2018
“Z—+FAAZHZE
—E-NF=ZA=1H

HE-_Z-NE=ZA=Z=+-—BHLFE K&
EREETRERREORBETHEARSEE
HNEW ERETHEERREERRE
ARBEAEHELHARK300,000T (FHE
M 49360,00087T) (ZE—+F - HARK
390,0007T (#HE K 49450,000/87C) ) -
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The transactions pursuant to the ZY FG Contract and ZY
CS Contract constituted continuing connected transactions
of the Company under the Listing Rules, as 56% of the
equity interest of Zhuo Yuan is held by the relatives of
Mr. Li. Further details of the ZY FG Contract and ZY CS
Contract are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 2 May 2017.

On 27 March 2017, the Financial Guarantee Company and
Shaanxi Gun Shi Xin Tian Di Cultural Investment Company
Limited*(“Gun Shi”) entered into a financing guarantee
contract (“GS FG Contract 1”) and on 28 March 2018, the
Financial Guarantee Company and Gun Shi entered into a
new financing guarantee contract (“GS FG Contract 11",
together with the GS FG Contract I, collectively, the "GS
FG Contracts”), pursuant to which the Financial
Guarantee Company has agreed to provide financing
guarantee to the lending banks in favor of Gun Shi for
procuring Gun Shi in obtaining the bank loans.

The principal terms of the GS FG Contracts are set out

BN IETZ56% MBI MFERE 2 RB R
B -HRBETREERSE O RETE AR
BRKWETZXSBRETRUNETARA
ZRERERG BHEIREERAAOR
BLTHEARBENZE-THBANRKRAA
BFHRR-ZE—tFRA-_BZRMA-

R-Z—tF=ZA-+tH BEERAFHA
BRAR ORISR ERBR AR (1EA])
AI—REERED ([REMERREN
I DRAER-ZZE-N\EF=A-_+\A RE#E
RAFRERAI L - BERRFRED (IR
ARMERREHAN] ERROBEERELD
P SEA I RARERREN]) Bt BE
ERAGBERBENMRAA/Z B ABERRT
REBMBEZERAREROEBGSRITER

BROBMEERANVZIEGREIIMT

below:
Approximate
guarantee/
Guaranteed consultancy  Guarantee/consultancy
Contract Date of Contracts amount service income  service period
BHER/
aH BHAH EREE BARBUA  EBR/FAREHE
(RMB in million) (RMB in million)
(AREEBERT) (AREEBEER)
GS FG Contract | 27 March 2017 4.500 0.1125 27 March 2017 to
RORERRAN “EtEZRAZtt 26 March 2018
= “E-tF=AZt+tHE
—E-NFZAZ+RA
GS FG Contract Il 28 March 2018 4.000 0.1000 28 March 2018 to
ZAREERE L “E-A\F=ZRA=FN 15 March 2019
= ZE-\E=AZTNBE

~2-AFZA+EA

*  For identification purpose only
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During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group has
received/receivable from Gun Shi the financing guarantee
services fee of approximately RMBO.11 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$0.13 million) (2017: approximately
RMBO0.12 million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.14
million)) pursuant to the GS FG Contracts.

The transactions pursuant to the GS FG Contracts
constituted continuing connected transactions for the
Company under the Listing Rules as 68.13% of the equity
interest of Gun Shi is held by the relative of Mr. Li and
the remaining 31.87% of the equity interest of Gun Shi
is held by Hao Hua (as defined below). Further details of
the GS FG Contracts are set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 27 March 2017 and 28 March 2018,
respectively.

On 19 September 2017, the Finance Lease Company and
Xi'an Hao Hua Zhi Ye Company Limited* (“Hao Hua")
entered into the asset purchase agreement and the finance
lease agreement (together, the “Sales and Lease-back
Agreements”), pursuant to which the Finance Lease
Company agreed to purchase certain assets (being lifts and
escalators) from Hao Hua and thereafter lease back the
assets to Hao Hua for a lease payment.
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The principal terms of the Sales and Lease-back

Agreements are set out below:

EROMBHEZ ETE2GERHINAT

Total
Agreements Date of Agreements Consideration lease payment  Lease period
15 1% B 4 RE BEENR HEHH
(RMB in million) (RMB in million)
(AR®BERL) (AR%EERT)
Sales and Lease-back Agreements 19 September 2017 16.0000 17.2000 19 September 2017 to
ERERBE —E-tFENATNA 18 September 2018
Tt EAATHIRE
“Z-N\FAATNR
In addition to the above principal terms, the Finance Lease BrEFEZEFIN BEHEARRERD

Company charged Hao Hua a handling fee of
RMB320,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$380,800
and equivalent to 2% of the principal amount of the
lease) under the Sales and Lease-back Agreements. The
obligation of Hao Hua under the Sales and Lease-back
Agreements is also secured by personal guarantee
provided by Mr. Li and the corporate guarantee provided
by Shaanxi Songri Zhi Ye Company Limited*, a company
owned as to 50% by Mr. Li.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group has
received/receivable from Hao Hua the lease payment
(including interest income and handling income of
RMB1.12 million) of approximately total RMB8.60 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$10.20 million) (2017: Nil)
pursuant to the Sales and Lease-back Agreements.

*  For identification purpose only

HEiRZEE T WREUEEFEE AR320,000
7T (FZ5 R 49380,800/8 T MEENEE
SRZ2%) HEERERDEARREEBETZE
FTBAFEERBZEAEREIRANRBEE
EBRAA (—HBFLEERA 0% ER Z
NED) R EEERERER-

HE-_Z-—N\E=ZA=1+—-BHLEE BE
EREHABRE AEER K EBUCEE A
ENF(REMNEBRARFEBRAAR
#1,120,0007T) & £ 49 A R #8,600,0007T
(A% 410,200,00087L) (ZT—t45F:
).
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The transactions pursuant to the Sales and Lease-back
Agreements constituted continuing connected transactions
of the Company, as 60% of the equity interest of Hao
Hua is owned by Mr. Li, an executive Director and the
controlling shareholder of the Company. Further details
of the Sales and Lease-back Agreements are set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 19 September
2017.

The guarantee amount and financing guarantee services
income charged to Dewantong, Zhuo Yuan and Gun Shi
were based on the credit risk assessment to respective
parties and the prevailing market bank loan rate in the
PRC. The consultancy services income charged to Zhuo
Yuan was based on the scope of services provided. The
lease payment from Hao Hua was based on prevailing
market rates and terms for similar finance lease

arrangements.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that the

transactions were entered into:

(i) by the Group in the usual and ordinary course of

business;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or

from independent third parties;

(iii) in accordance with the terms of the relevant
agreements and the contracts mentioned above
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole; and

(iv) have not exceeded the relevant maximum amount
capped in accordance with the announcements of
the Company as mentioned above.
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The Company’s auditor, were engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor of the Company
has issued an unqualified letter containing his findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the Year are set out in notes 12 and
49 to the consolidated financial statements and include
transactions that constitute connected transaction and
continuing connected transactions for which the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules have been complied.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS"” above, no contracts of significance to
which the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or in existence
during the Year.

ARAZEMCEZEREEESEANAE
B2 BBZEREERF30005: [F& 2
FHELYBFER AN EEZE] 2R
B FETA0N [ R EE_LH AL FF

BHER S EHAN AT RE RN REZF

BREEBEXS ARAZRBMERE TR
FUASCIHRBEHBREZR NG EFHE
ERASEMBECRERERS 2 HEHS
RN AR A O AL BRI RN X2

552 F

BEALXRS

RAEER REBFAVLZEABEALR
FEHRFEAMIERRM T 12249 BEEX
BEETLEMRABETNREREZCHERS R

EERNEXEGNZER

frEX TRAER S | —HiFTREE N NAF
EARSIAFERTMER TEFEAAD
A HEERARSEEMMEARLAE
FERRHEERETHAEEAREZEANS
#y o

EEAN
RAGEER TRIVAFAEABAALEES
HAEABABD EBERRTRZAL -
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices
are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” from
pages 48 to 72 of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

The employees of the Group are one of the most
important assets and stakeholders of the Group and
their contribution and support are values at all times.
The Group regularly reviews compensation and benefits
policies according to industry benchmark as well as
the individual performance of employees. Other fringe
benefits, mandatory provident fund and share options are
provided to retain loyal employees with the aim to form
a professional staff and management team that can bring
the Group to different levels of success.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in the section headed “FINANCIAL
REVIEW” in the Management Discussion and Analysis
from pages 13 to 41 of this annual report and the section
headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME" from pages 82 to 88 of
this annual report, the Company has not entered into any
equity-linked agreements during the Year.

PREMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
Pursuant to the Bye-Laws, the Directors, secretary and
other officers and every auditor for the time being of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them, shall
or may incur or sustain by or by reasons of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duties in their respective offices or otherwise in relation
thereto.
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The Company has taken out insurance against all losses
and liabilities associated with defending any proceedings
which may be brought against Directors and other officers
of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that

had a significant impact on it.

EMOLUMENTS POLICY

The emoluments policy of senior management of the
Group is set up by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Company's operating
results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company had adopted the Scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees. Details of the Scheme
are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
above.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-Laws of the Company, or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-

rata basis to existing Shareholders.

DONATIONS
During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group made
donations amounting to approximately HK$0.11 million.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was

held by public as at the date of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
of the Company the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 and
discussed with the management of the Company on
auditing, risk management, internal control and financial
reporting matters. Information on the composition of the
Audit Committee is set out in the Corporate Governance

Report from pages 48 to 72 of this annual report.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Li Weibin
Chairman
Hong Kong, 25 June 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 7 A% B Rl e

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
ZEPSEBERERD A

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Chinlink International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the
Group”) set out on pages 112 to 315, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 March 2018, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key audit matter

BRELSBE

Valuation of investment properties

REYEILE

We identified the valuation of investment properties
as a key audit matter due to the significance of the
balance to the consolidated financial statements
and the significant unobservable inputs and
judgments involved in determining the fair value.
BPSREDEHEZRNREREREE RAAS
RRYHEAVBRRMNEHFTEEREETRTER
PSR 2 BRAAIE 8 A B & 6 -

As set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying amount of the Group’s
investment properties as at 31 March 2018
amounted to HK$3,872 million which is stated
at fair value as determined based on valuation

performed by independent qualified professional

valuer.
BMmAEMBEREAMEI16E BEEBEZE
EMER_ZT—N\NF=ZA=+—BZEAEBEAR

3,872,000,0008 70 i@ A EREEAERME
TZIEEMEEZAFEZY -

The valuation of investment properties requires
the application of significant judgment and
estimation in determining the appropriate valuation
methodology, adoption of significant assumptions
and use of various unobservable inputs in the
valuation models. The valuation is sensitive to the
underlying assumptions and inputs such as the
market comparables and discount rate used which
can have a significant impact on the valuation.
REVEZHEEREBETEASHEN L EHE
BRAARBEABRER LKA ZETAE R R AER
JEARE XA K- HERSIIEBRE LT
BRIEHNBRRGRARBUERXEHABITE
Mz LS AErR S EEEKNERTE-

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMzERNMEERRELER

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of
investment properties included:

BHEBAREMEAEZREFERE:

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent qualified

professional valuer;

. FEBLAEBRERGEMZEN BEORK
BEM
o Obtaining an understanding from the

independent qualified professional valuer of

the valuation methodology, the performance

of the property markets, significant
assumptions adopted and key inputs and
data used in the valuation;

. MBI EERSEMGEMTBEELTE Y
EmSERE - HERMAEAZERREMAMA

RAZETZHABELRBE:

o Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology, the significant judgments and
assumptions applied, including the market
comparables used and adjustment factors
adopted based on our knowledge of the
industry; and

. RBHRFPEITRZ TR SHREETTE IR
RERAEGREBER (BEMEBZTHAE
HBEZSREMNALBARZ)RERE:

o Checking the arithmetical accuracy of the
valuation calculations and, on a sample
basis, the key inputs and data to available
market data and evidence.

. RMREEZEGEFNE A Bt
NATATSEIELBE 2 T2 AEREUE -
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Key audit matter (continued) How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRERSEE (£)

Valuation of trade and loan receivables

JEWE ZHREREXNELZ 151E

We identified the valuation of trade and loan
receivables as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balances to the consolidated
financial statements and significant judgments
involved by management in the valuation process.
BMKREKE S RE R EWE R 2 (GEBR AR
EREER REAREQRERAMBEHRAMSIETE
EREBRBEMGERERY K2 TR E-

The Group has trade receivables of HK$100.3
million, loan receivables of HK$131.0 million and
an allowance for bad and doubtful debts of HK$0.6
million as at 31 March 2018.
EEER T N\F=ZA=-t+—RAZEKESZKRSE
#$100,300,0007% 7T & # & 5% %131,000,000/% 7T
K R R 5 /3600,0008 7T °

As disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements, the management determines
the allowance for bad and doubtful debts with
reference to the credit history of customers, age of
debts, collateral receivable, past settlement records
and subsequent settlements.

BANGE A RERM 24T E ERELERF
ZIEELHE EBKRE  BYIEMm BEAFELE
RHEREABETREREE-
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Our procedures in relation to the valuation of trade

and loan receivables included:

BPEEREKEZRAMEREREEZRFBHE:

o Understanding and evaluating the key
controls relating to the preparation of aging
analysis of trade and loan receivables and
determination of allowance for bad and
doubtful debts;

. THREFEERERERE SRERERE
PEREROMREETRBRRBEE 2 T EEH:

o Assessing the reasonableness of allowance
for bad and doubtful debts made with
reference to credit history of customers,
collateral receivable, settlement records
including default or delay in payments
and actual collection after the end of
the reporting period for trade and loan
receivables;

. AE2EEPZEERSE  BYWERR &8
o8 (BEEREIEENR) IR HERRE
EWE 5 RE R EKRER 2 BRBGRIE R
REGARZBERETARE:

o Testing the accuracy of the aging analysis of
the trade and loan receivables, on a sample
basis, to source documents;

. HIRXHRmEEERSENE F5RERE
WE R BRI DT =& LEHE
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Key audit matter (continued)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(continued)

BREREE (&)
Valuation of trade and loan receivables (continued)

EREGHRAREWRESZ 151E (E)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

BEMzBRnMEE@REREE (&)

Testing the subsequent settlements, on a

sample basis, to source documents; and
EMEEEAARXH 2 EBEZBL &

Evaluating the historical accuracy of the
allowance estimation made by management
by comparing the historical allowance made
against the actual settlement and actual loss
incurred.
RRERAEENRERFES 2 ERER L&
BIERLE FEERBIEL 2 ELBEHM
FT R EHENE -
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or

have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for

overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR

THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to

continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 7 A% B Rl e

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the

independent auditor’s report is Stephen C. L. Yuen.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 June 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

A 7 4H B B Lt 4 v W AR %

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt TERT FHE T
Revenue A 5 1,257,726 518,834
Cost of sales and services S5 5 I AR 7% A AR (1,110,523) (425,198)
Gross profit EM 147,203 93,636
Other income, gains and losses Ha g A - Wz g5 18 7 70,680 14,824
Gain on fair value change of investment &%~
properties NEEEH W= 16 161,017 142,066
Loss arising from acquisition W g — B AR EE
of a subsidiary Z B8 40 (101,654) -
Selling and distribution costs SHE Ko sEA A (11,703) (8,804)
Administrative expenses TEAX
— equity-settled share-based —ERHEEURS
payments BER 2R (1,882) (4,311)
— other administrative expenses —HEMTHAX (101,524) (78,619)
(103,406) (82,930)
Finance costs 81 B AR 8 (167,598) (105,489)
(Loss) profit before tax BREEAT (B8 R T (5.461) 53,303
Income tax expense Frisfif = 9 (23,665) (28,479)
(Loss) profit for the year NEE (FE)EF 10 (29,126) 24,824
Other comprehensive income H2EWA (BAX)
(expense)
Item that may be subsequently HEAJETHEE
reclassified to profit or loss: Bm oA -
Exchange difference arising on HREGINEBEE
translation of foreign operations ZEH ERE 270,037 (125,625)
Total comprehensive income (expense) AFE2ERA (FX)
for the year B8 240,911 (100,801)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

A 7 4E B B Bt 4 v W AR %

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % % — /\4E=H =+ —H L4

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt TERT FHE T
(Loss) profit for the year EBAEREE (FE)
attributable to: i Al
Owners of the Company ZN/NSIEZZS N (77,877) 1,337
Non-controlling interests FEFE B A 2R 48,751 23,487
(29.126) 24,824
Total comprehensive income EBAEAFEE2EEA
(expense) for the year (BEZ) 4%
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NETER =N 141,378 (100,362)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR i R 99,533 (439)
240,911 (100,801)
(Loss) earnings per share gk (EER)EZR 14
~ Basic — &R HK (11.44) cents4ll  HK0.42 cents
— Diluted . -1 HK (11.44) centsE 4l HK0.42 cents7 1l
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

0 IR Ol R

At 31 March 2018 JAZF— /\FE=H=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\E —+F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$ 000
Jiokza FExT FAET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment LN 15 24,378 23,497
Investment properties s R /ES 16 3,871,563 2,806,186
Intangible assets EmILEE = 1,756
Goodwill Bk 17 42,716 -
Available-for-sale investment A HERE 18 1,239 -
Prepayment and deposit paid for a life ~ AFRERRE 2B
insurance policy BERETIZES 19 12,215 -
Refundable deposit for land auction THIRE 2 ARERS 20 - 28,220
Amounts due from former subsidiaries & Y A1 B & A 7] BR 18 21 = 13,607
Deposits and prepayments e RIENFIE 3,128 1,777
Finance lease receivables e B & T E FRIE 22 125,269 -
4,080,508 2,875,043
Current assets RBEE
Inventories e 23 872 2,843
Trade receivables FEWE 5ERTE 24 100,277 29,713
Trade receivables from related FEWEERNFIZE 5
companies BRIA 24 269 -
Loan receivables FEUE 3R 24 130,986 138,542
Bills receivables B W E 5 24 — 45,308
Finance lease receivables U RS & RIE 22 76,531 -
Other receivables, deposits and HiEWRE ek
prepayments TR FRIE 37,647 25,897
Amounts due from former subsidiaries & Y A1 i B A 7] BR 18 21 21,305 5,793
Restricted deposits X PR il 7 3K 25 61,927 -
Pledged bank deposits DR T IE R 26 448,550 359,997
Bank balances and cash RITEGFRIAES 27 193,082 95,988
1,071,446 704,081
Current liabilities REBAE
Deferred revenue EIEU A 2 2,736
Trade payables FERE 5RIA 28 74,345 38,665
Other payables and HibEAERER
accruals JEsTE A 76,471 57,074
Loans from staffs BTEX 29 30,857 5,155
Construction costs accruals FESTE KA 30 164,576 25,368
Receipts in advance TR FKIA 31 46,147 44,792
Deposits received from tenants MK ziZE 31 19,623 15,577
Amounts due to related companies B EE RN A BRIA 32 68,186 203,912
Amount due to a director Bl —REBRE 32 43 1,000
Amount due to ultimate holding JE A B ARAE R A T
company BRTE 32 - 844
Amounts due to former subsidiaries FET R M B A 7] BR 18 21 8,365 -
Provision for warranty REBE 126 145
Financial guarantee contracts BLEERE D 41 3,180 2,977
Tax payable JE 1~ B 1E 7,042 6,028
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 33 683,494 414,561
10.0% convertible bonds 10.0% A] A% & 55 34 - 76,723
Conversion option derivative BRA R R E S 2 AR
embedded in convertible bonds WLTET A 34 = 121
7.5% coupon bonds 75%FEEESH 35 - 206,688
Obligations under finance leases wE SRR 749 783
1,183,206 1,103,149

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % I tp 6 B B #% )8 45 B8 44 7] Annual Report 2018 4



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

5 A IR DL R

At 31 March 2018 A~ F— /\FE=H=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
NOTES HK$'00_0 HK$ 000
iz FET FAT
Net current liabilities RBEEREHE (111,760) (399,068)
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBER 3,968,748 2,475,975
Non-current liabilities kRBEEF
3.0% convertible bonds 3. O%—Hﬁ‘ﬂifé%? 34 287,802 -
9.0% coupon bonds 9.0%EEEH 35 355,967 -
12.0% coupon bonds 12.0%= 5 55 35 119,099 -
Obligation arising from a put option M FEFE AR AR R AR R4
to a non-controlling shareholder AR o 2 36 81,049 -
Deferred tax liabilities RILEHIBEE 37 276,511 215,193
Receipts in advance iﬁ\ﬂﬁlmlﬁ 31 24,026 25,515
Bank and other borrowings RIT R EH A E K 33 412,180 662,285
Amounts due to related companies e ERRIRIE 32 560,541 -
Amounts due to former subsidiaries FERH BT B A A BR 1A 21 - 7,337
Obligations under finance leases BhE AR B AR 144 698
2,117,319 911,028
1,851,429 1,564,947
Capital and reserves EAXR#E
Share capital I 38 213,662 209,376
Reserves &t 1,560,282 941,955
Equity attributable to owners of ROFIHEE AEIEZ
the Company = 1,773,944 1,151,331
Non-controlling interests JEIE R M = 77,485 413,616
1,851,429 1,564,947

= —N\FERNAZ+REHAEST
ﬁé‘%ﬂz ?;%31552%?@%5‘%#&2%&&%
- WA MRS

The consolidated financial statements on pages 112 to

315 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board

-

of Directors on 25 June 2018 and are signed on its behalf NS
by:

LI Weibin SIU Wai Yip
B WmEHX
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF BE

Annual Report 2018 44t  CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % [ Ht 43 [ B2 33 it 45 i 4 W)




¥
&
=
=3
N
]
g
=
=
-.WI 8€6'€SS - 8€6'€SS (&t9) - - 1144 515l - 0L Ly1'SLE 08v'7LI m
= - - - (C783] - - 1344 619 - - - - Lo Jajsuel] =
o - . - 107'€ - - - - - (107'¢) - - AW suoido azeys Jo 3INH3H04 Wm»
b 5 LIEY - LLEY - - - - - - LIEY - - VN ZUEY LY spuswied paseq-aleys =
[ e EHTHRE papas-A1nba Jo uoniuboday o
— ..m (80L'8) - (80'8) - - - - - - - (80L'8) - V%Y saleys Aleuipio mau Jo anssi b
7)) o ZHEYBELLE 0} 3|qeIngine SIS0 Uoiesuel] B
&b # g - seedss - i - - - - - Sgese 08vnLl (seEk) 2 EN Gy smspasiapy B
+
c ; _ ; ‘ e &
111 (108'001) (6€t) (z9¢'001) LEE' - (669'101) - - - - - - BHY 183k 3} o} ALIOdU
I«“d _ﬂ (XH)BTHHy  (ssuadxs) ansuayaidwion ejo mﬁw
1
O ; -
G W (579'sz1) (926°€7) (669'101) - - (669'101) - - - - - - EESE suonesado E
i ub1310} JO UONe[SUR) U0 =
1S h ZT34E Uiy pouon z
— W (B &g buisue sduassyp 3bueydx3 - @
= v XMEETHE  osuadxs anisuayaudwo 110 m
Q K 7287t (87'€T LEE'L LEE'L - - - - - - - - WEE LY Jeak 3y} 1o} joiq g
# 2
m © 018LLL'L 55071y 65L'169 £69'1 - (650'6) 88l'€l 087y - 17 820'£09 968'7€ B-HuHY-&-H 9107 udy | v M
[ = <
o z
3 iu < (W2R) (OB (EH) Q
v % o (Weaon) (Ao (o) =
= .. m Yyt Yt Yyt Ut Yt Yyt Ut Yt Yyt Ut Ygt Yyt z
(3] 5_%., - 000,SYH 000,$3H 000.$XH 000,3H 000,$3H 000.$¥H 000,3H 000,$3H 000.$¥H 000,$3H 000,$1H 000,$XH =
e S M BERw i3 £ (B9RE) 48Ry LEEE! YrIx 4% YENE Yy BReH 2 Z
1) nf\m o} WEELE HEBY ELE RELX ERE %
”.m ] fyinba s)sa1a)ul [e30)-qn§ (sasso| EIVELE] EINELET] EINELE EIVELE] EINELET] EIVELE wnjwaid |eyde) =
— esoL uljjoayuod pajejnwinye)  Aunba uonejsuel JojenBay  snjdins 1RYI0 suondo aleys aleys z
e b k f101e|nbi z
= 51 -uou 0} spyoid spuoq fioimers aleys o)
m An U d|qenqLuy paurejay 9|q11aAu0)
© x5 = Ye#EIyE
O w,»w k) fuedwo) ay} Jo siaumo 0} 3|qeInquIY




: A
T—HIEERE

it 5

AY

o B

Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

Notes:

(iii)

The entities established in the People’'s Republic of China
(the "PRC") are required to appropriate 10% of its
net profit, as determined under the China Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises (2006) and other
relevant regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance of
the PRC, to the statutory surplus reserve until the balance
reaches 50% of the registered capital.

Subject to the approval of equity holders of the entities
established in the PRC, statutory surplus reserves may be
used to net off with accumulated losses, if any, and may
be converted into capital, provided that the balance of
statutory surplus reserve after such capitalisation is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

Pursuant to the Interim Measures for the Administration
of Financing Guarantee Companies issued at 1 September
2010 by the Shaanxi Province government authorities
in the PRC, companies providing financing guarantee
services shall establish unearned premium reserve equal
to 50% of guarantee premium recognised during the year
and indemnification reserve of no less than 1% of the
outstanding guarantee balances.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’'s
interests and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Other reserve represents (i) the difference
between the amounts by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received that is recognised directly
in equity and (ii) the deemed contribution from the
controlling shareholder of the Company.

(iii)

R EARKNE ([HE])RINERA
# E AR E910% (AR 35 o B B BB 28 40 2
TEGEEEN (ZTTRF) REMA
FROET) BB EXERHEE BEER
FRIZEBEE B A HI50% o

EERTEKI N EEBOESR A AE
WERT EERBFEEN ARBHERE
B(nA) DTABREELS HHEZER
ERETRRFEREBRTBEREIMER
#925% °

REFERAERTHFAR_F—FFN
A—BZMH (MEEERIABDERET
WE) RE RHBBEMERREZARA
RIAIHAEEERES GEERF AR
EVERICABIS0% ) - AREREEEES
(MERKRBBERE RN %) °

WEGHALERENE R BEHN 2R E
ERNRAWNE R EEEERZD IRE
HmR P AN AR M IR 2 AR
EEE R AR E M B F) 2 H 4
wnEB K EEEFERER 2 AR
HEEENERERZENREKRREZ
AFEZBZZBROVERKRE AR RE
PRz HE -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HAEBemER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —+F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FExT FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES e
(Loss) profit before tax MrEERT (B8R ) )& A (5.461) 53,303
Adjustments for: HEIEE -
interest income from money lending EEF WA (16,538) (15,884)
Interest income from finance leases mERERB WA (8,829) -
Bank interest income R1TF B A (8,669) (5,213)
Finance costs BT 78 B 7R 167,598 105,489
Loss arising from acquisition of U B — R BB 2 A
a subsidiary EXCEE 101,654 -
Premium charge on life insurance ASRBIRE 2
policy RE 28 -
Imputed interest income from FE U B B B 2 7]
amounts due from former RIEZHER B
subsidiaries g A (1,905) (1,670)
Depreciation of property, W WE K&
plant and equipment e 3,308 3,681
Reversal of allowance for bad and RIREBRER D
doubtful debts, net SFEE (245) (273)
Adjustment on carrying amount of e — B BEANTARIE
amount due to a related party ZHREERAE (47,780) -
Equity-settled share-based LR 4 E AR D
payments HEM 2 1,882 4,311
Provision for warranty recognised REREER - 326
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEME WEKZE
plant and equipment 2 (Wz) B8 (3) 8
Amortisation of intangible assets M EEEE 1,756 2,291
Gain on fair value change of REMEZ
investment properties N EE S S (161,017) (142,066)
Gain on fair value change of mATB|RES 2
conversion option derivative BmRETET A
embedded in convertible bonds NEEZESHWZR (121) (7,753)
Operating cash flows before movements & & & & & &7
in working capital KEBEME 25,658 (3,450)
Decrease in inventories FER D 1,971 408
Decrease in accrued revenue RN e - 3,123
Increase in trade receivables JE UL E Z ER IR hI (62,173) (23,007)
Increase in finance lease receivables JE U Bh B TH & FIE L 0 (197,050) -
Increase in bills receivables JFE UK 22 1 42 D - (45,308)
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables JEWEEE N 7l 2
from related companies B 5RE () md (216) 208
Increase in other receivables, HapEWERIE - He &
deposits and prepayments SEERE Pl (10,325) (6,101)
Decrease (increase) in loan receivables — FEULE FOm 4 (340) 10,955 (65,540)
(Decrease) increase in deferred revenue IEZEU A (554> ) 1% h0 (2,734) 679
Increase in trade payables JET & 5 BRI5 18 AN 35,680 25,001
(Decrease) increase in receipts U IE ORd)
in advance bl (134) 6,531
Increase (decrease) of deposits M1 P UER 2 ¥ & 1N
received from tenants CRA) 4,046 (8,352)
Increase in other payables and H bR R
accruals FEET B AN 15,794 24,179
Utilisation of provision for warranty REBBFER (19) (400)
(Decrease) increase in financial MEERED
guarantee contracts CRLA) 10 (83) 710
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

A B e

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
Wizt FET FHET
Net cash used in operations wEF AR e FE (178,630) (91,319)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ERNBEBENEH (614) (60)
Profits Tax paid outside BERTEBAIMEE 2
Hong Kong M (2,986) (1,934)
Interest received 2 U F 8 17,218 20,263
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REXBERAZHRS
ACTIVITIES HH (165,012) (73,050)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXK
Net cash inflow on acquisition of B —EWE LA
a subsidiary ZHEEBMAFE 40 111,450 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEWE BER&E
plant and equipment Z PTG FRIE 11 2
Interest received 2 B 8,509 5,213
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE BEKR
equipment B (3,062) (2,350)
Additions of investment properties RNEERERE
under construction and MELBE
leasehold land T (32,389) (322,392)
Placement of pledged bank deposits FEEEMEITER (572,691) (140,000)
Placement of restricted deposits 78X $I1F % (61,927) -
Placement of deposit for life FEASRBRREZ
insurance policy b (12,084) -
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 4z [@ 2 3 # 88 1717 7K 505,964 1,862
Refund of refundable deposit RETHRE
for land auction REZRS 28,220 -
Transfer of deposit paid for acquisition WEREWED 2
of investment properties ReHEE - 32,312
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REXBERAZRE
ACTIVITIES R (27,999) (425,353)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HAEBemER

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —tF
HK$000 HK$'000
FBT FAET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES g
Proceeds from issue of 12.0% BT12.0%EREFH
coupon bonds FT 5 318 117,176 -
Expenses on issue of 12.0% BITI2.0%RBEHFZ
coupon bonds X (3,515) -
Proceeds from issue of 9.0% BT9.0%ZBESH
coupon bonds FTig 318 350,000 -
Expenses on issue of 9.0% EIT9.0%REEHZ
coupon bonds il 2 (21,000) -
Proceeds from issue of 3.0% EIT3.0% A IR EH
convertible bonds Fr{S 3k I8 58,000 -
Acquisition of additional interests in WIERMEB AR Z
subsidiaries BEHME 2= (366,536) -
Interest paid B F B (84,605) (139,168)
Borrowings from bills discounted MAEEREL
with recourse AR EEMESER - 45,308
New other borrowings raised #TI8 H B R 259,620 44,637
New bank borrowings raised LR ITE R 907,102 1,229,341
Repayment of other borrowings EBEEMER (197,802) (54,211)
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITER (937,881) (518,652)
Loans from staffs BTEX 6,610 3,753
Advances from related companies REBBERARZBK 412,323 153,407
Repayment of advances from BERBBERRZ
related companies R (52,535) -
Advance from a director KE—REFZEK 148,993 1,000
Advance from ultimate holding REEEERRARZ
company IR - 844
Repayment of advance from B8 2k B AR R A
ultimate holding company 2B (844) -
Repayment of obligations of BEREHESE
finance leases HRE (803) (798)
Repayment of loans from staffs BEEITEXR (749) (10,878)
Increase in bank overdraft RITHE LM 15,447 126
Repayment of bank overdraft EBERTEX (10,540) -
Repayment to a director BE—REEHNE (149,979) (16,320)
Repayment of 10.0% convertible bonds 1€ i&10.0% A] 2 i% {& % (77,071) -
Repayment of 7.5% coupon bonds BEBIS%EEGES (206,688) -
Repayment of 8.0% coupon bonds BiE8.0%REESH - (200,000)
Repayment of 12.0% coupon bonds Bi&12.0 /o BfEH - (538,000)
Capital injection from a non-controlling & & 3F#2% HxHx?Z
shareholder EE 108,201 -
Proceeds from rights issue HER% P15 FR0R - 558,335
Expenses on issue of shares BRHBEITHAX - (8,708)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

A B e

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % ~ % — /\4FE= =+ —H IL4FE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FH& T FHET
NET CASH FROM FINANCING MEXLBFREZ
ACTIVITIES HEFE 272,924 550,016
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND BeERBELEEER
CASH EQUIVALENTS EANFAE 79,913 51,613
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ROB—BAzBER
AT 1 APRIL HEEEEB 95,988 48,975
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE HNEERSE 2
RATE CHANGES B4 17,181 (4,600)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R=ZA=+—BzH&
AT 31 MARCH, EREEEER
represented by bank balances and cash REXRITEF LIRS 193,082 95,988
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

GENERAL AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted limited liability entity and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate
and ultimate holding company is Wealth Keeper
International Limited (“"Wealth Keeper”),
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the
ultimate controlling shareholder of Wealth Keeper
is Mr. Li Weibin (“Mr. Li"), the Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company. The address of
the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate

Information” to the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are
trading of consumer goods (including trading of
furniture and fixtures) and electronic components,
interior decoration works in Hong Kong and Macau,
property investment, financial advisory, provision of
financing guarantee services, finance lease services
and consultancy services and logistic services in the
PRC.

The presentation currency of the consolidated
financial statements is Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"),
which is also the functional currency of the

Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

50 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

GENERAL AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity of the Group
in light of the fact that, as of 31 March 2018,
the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by approximately HK$111,760,000.

The directors of the Company closely monitor the

liquidity of the Group. Taken into account of:
(i) internal financial resources;

(ii) the availability of the Group's credit facilities
of approximately HK$1,138,764,000 as at 31
March 2018, of which HK$1,088,788,000

has been drawn down; and

(iii)  loan facilities from Mr. Li of approximately
HK$400,000,000 pursuant to the revolving
loan facility letter entered into between the
Company and Mr. Li on 1 April 2018.

The directors of the Company consider that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to
finance its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the
foreseeable future. On this basis, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

—RENMEEREE (F)

REEGRETBERRE ERAEE
HE-Z—- )/ \F=ZA=Z+—HBZn®
BfEBEHEREEEL111,760,000
B ARREEEEEEZEEALE
LARESTRENME -

ARAEFTTNERAEBZEERR
B - AT R

(i) AR HEIR

(ii) AEBR_ZE—-—NF=AH
Tt HUEBZEEMRE
#91,138,764,0008 70 H &
1,088,788,000/8 T2 42 BN : &

iy ZEERBFLLERABED
400,000,000 7T IREAR
AEFEAN T N\FEMA
—HE M Z EIREREE KT
HATo

AAFMEFRA AREBELRLT
HEESWRE LGB RBTER
7 T 546 2 I BA 2 A 7 A - 48 98 b
B RAMBRENRBELEE
G o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the
first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of deferred tax
assets for unrealised losses

Amendments to HKFRSs As part of the annual
improvements to HKFRSs
2014—2016 cycle

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group's performance
and financial positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

50 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 “Disclosure initiative”

The Group has applied these amendments for the
first time in the current year. The amendments
require an entity to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the
amendments also require disclosures on changes in
financial assets if cash flows from those financial
assets were, or future cash flows will be, included

in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following
to be disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash
flows; (ii) changes arising from obtaining or losing
control of subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the
effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv)

changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of these items is provided in note 47.
Consistent with the transition provisions of
the amendments, the Group has not disclosed
comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the additional disclosure in note 47, the
application of these amendments has had no
impact on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

PR REBTERUBR
EEA([FEMBREER])
(#&)

FAGEAFETHR (BETA) [HE
TEME]

AEBERANFEREEREAZEFER
RAERTABERE IR H(E M WK
EREENTIHEREETHMELENE
BEH(BRFERASRFRESEH)H
BERER - ULIN ZFERTATRE
MeERMEEMSRESREDFT AZR
KREREFHAREZHZIRENR
B AEREBERSSREEZEH-

LER ZEETRZREENATE
Mr(MERSREZZH: (DVRE
HREMB AR REMER 2 2B
FREL B8 : (i)NEEXTEEH 5
& (WA FEZD: MvEBEE-

RS EE BRI 28R
HA K A7 RIERF BT A 2B
RS0 - 7R S TSR U 2 L
BER B M 47 Z IR B - B
CETHES 2 BES L BRI S
RERVE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

New or revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments'

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers and the related
amendments'

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts*

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign currency transactions

and advance consideration'

HK(IFRIC) = Int 23 Uncertainty over income tax
treatments?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
measurement of
share-based payment
transactions’

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance contracts'

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment features with
negative compensation?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of assets
and HKAS 28 between an investor and its
associate or joint venture?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%ok 11 B B e 2 M Bk

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % ~ % — /\4FE= =+ —H IL4FE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. PE 5] R RIEET B B I K ]
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL HEA (BB KEBREER])
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (#&)

(continued)
New or revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective BB R R ER 2T BT E
(continued) BRI EER (F)
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan amendment, curtailment BEAGHER BELHRE e
or settlement? 195 (B3TK)
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term interests in A ER REZREREERAL
associates and joint F0% (BIR)  REREF
ventures?
Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the annual EAQHER BB BN BREER
improvements to HKFRSs F28% (B3R) ZE-WEE-F-RF
2014-2016 cycle’ BE EENEL—H
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of investment A ER REANZFER
property’ F40% (BATK)
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to EABBRS AR BREER
HKFRSs 2015—2017 cycle? BRI (BFTR) ZE-RFEZT-+F
B E R
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after ! RZE—N\EF—A—B=zzEHRE
1 January 2018. 2 FEHB AR
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 2 RZEBE-NF-—A—HxkzERHA
1 January 2019. ZEFEEB AR
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 3 RiGETE 2 BB 2 &RARZFE
a date to be determined. BRI AR
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 4 RZE-—F—A—BzzEHRE
1 January 2021. 2 FEHB AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and

impairment requirements for financial assets.
Key requirements of HKFRS 9:

o all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms that give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured
at fair value through other comprehensive
income (‘FVTOCI"). All other financial assets
are measured at their fair value at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%ok 11 B B e 2 M Bk

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

o in relation to the impairment of financial
assets, HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit
loss model, as opposed to an incurred
credit loss model under HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement”
("HKAS 39"). The expected credit loss
model requires an entity to account for
expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and
risk management policies as at 31 March 2018, the
directors of the Company anticipate the following
potential impact on the initial application of HKFRS
9:

e REBTERUBR
EEA([FEMBREER])
(#&)

BEREVBREERFESR (2R T A

(%)

. HEeMEEZREMS BF
s HmE R EIR B RIRTE
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BEXE -EHEEEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

Classification and measurement:

Equity securities classified as available-for-sale
investments carried at cost less impairment as
disclosed in note 18: these securities qualified for
designation as measured at FVTOCI under HKFRS 9,
however, the Group plans not to elect the option
for designating these securities to be measured at
FVTOCI and will measure these securities at fair
value with subsequent fair value gains or losses
("FVTPL") to be recognised in profit or loss.

All other financial assets and financial liabilities will
continue to be measured on the same bases as are
currently measured under HKAS 39.

Impairment:

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of the expected credit loss
model of HKFRS 9 will result in earlier provision
of credit losses which are not yet incurred in
relation to the Group's financial assets measured
at amortised cost and other items that subject
to the impairment provisions upon application of
HKFRS 9 by the Group. Based on the assessment
by the directors of the Company, if the expected
credit loss model were to be applied by the Group,
the accumulated amount of impairment loss to be
recognised by the Group as at 1 April 2018 would
be immaterial as compared to the accumulated
amount recognised under HKAS 39 mainly
attributable to expected credit losses provision
on trade receivables. Such further impairment
recognised under expected credit loss model would
reduce the opening retained profits at 1 April 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

50 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with

customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
“"Revenue”, HKAS 11 "Construction contracts”
and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. Specifically, the

standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue

recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a
customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations
in the contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the

performance obligations in the contract
° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the

entity satisfies a performance obligation
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with

customers” (continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.,e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive

disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS
15 in relation to the identification of performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations,
as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result
in more disclosures, however, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the
timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the

respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model
for the identification of lease arrangements and
accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees.
HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts
on the basis of whether an identified asset is
controlled by a customer. Distinctions of operating
leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured
at cost and subsequently measured at cost
(subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for
any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at that
date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the
classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to those classified as
investment properties while other operating lease
payments are presented as operating cash flows.
Under the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation
to lease liability will be allocated into a principal
and an interest portion which will be presented as

financing cash flows.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised
an asset and a related finance lease liability for
finance lease arrangement where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in
potential changes in classification of these assets
depending on whether the Group presents right-of-
use assets separately or within the same line item
at which the corresponding underlying assets would
be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease. Furthermore, extensive

disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$23,731,000 as disclosed in note 43. A
preliminary assessment indicates that certain of
these arrangements will meet the definition of a
lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they

qualify for low value or short-term leases.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

Furthermore, the application of new requirements
may result changes in measurement, presentation
and disclosure as indicated above.

Except as described above, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of other
new and revised HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the Group's consolidated financial

statements in the foreseeable future.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except
for investment properties and certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and

services.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment”, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36

“Impairment of assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for

the asset or liability.
The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
o has power over the investee;
o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns

from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its

returns.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when

the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group’s

accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Changes in the Group's ownership interests in

existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group's relevant components of equity and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves
between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain

purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in
the event of liquidation are initially measured at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-

transaction basis.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost established at the date of the
acquisition of the business less accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units ("CGUs") or groups of CGUs that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
which represents the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and is not larger than an operating

segment.

A CGU or group of CGUs to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU or group
of CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less
than the carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit or group of CGUs.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination

of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a

business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the
Group identifies and recognises the individual
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to the financial
assets and financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price
is then allocated to the other individual identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair
values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction
does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase

gain.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the

Group's activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passed.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from provision of financing guarantee
services is recognised on a straight-line basis over

the guarantee period.

Revenue from provision of logistic services is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the contract
period.

Revenue from provision of financial advisory

services is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial

recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

The Group's policy for the recognition of revenue
from interior decoration work is described in the
accounting policy for interior decoration contracts
below.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of
revenue from finance leases and operating leases
is described in the accounting policy for leasing
below.

Interior decoration contracts

Where the outcome of an interior decoration
contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and
costs are recognised by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract activities at the
end of the reporting period, measured based on
the proportion of the value of work certified by
independent surveyors relative to the total contract
sum, except where this would not be representative
of the stage of completion. Variations in contract
work, claims and incentive payments are included
to the extent that they have been agreed with the

customers and its receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of an interior decoration
contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract
revenue is recognised to the extent of contract
costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the
period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

50 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Interior decoration contracts (continued)

Where contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses exceed
progress billings, the surplus is shown as accrued
revenue in the consolidated statement of financial
position. For contracts where progress billings
exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus
is shown as deferred revenue in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other

leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases
are recognised as receivables at the amount of the
Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Group's net investment outstanding in respect of
the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset. Other than investment properties
measured under fair value model, such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leasing (continued)
The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised
as assets of the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as

a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs (see

the accounting policy below).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which

they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leasing (continued)
Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property
interest which includes both leasehold land
and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element separately based on
the assessment as to whether substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless
it is clear that both elements are operating leases
in which case the entire property is accounted
as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire
consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold
land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element at initial

recognition.

When the property payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the leasehold land and building
elements, the entire property is generally classified
as if the leasehold land is under finance lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group's operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling

interests as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
and state managed retirement benefit scheme
in the PRC are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors,
employees and consultants providing similar
services are measured at the fair value of the equity

instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the
equity-settled share-based payments is expensed
to profit or loss on a straight line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of the reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding

adjustment to the share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in the share options reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from accounting
profit as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of

goodwill.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through

sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings
and leasehold land (classified as finance leases)
held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes (other
than construction in progress) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss.
Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties
are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets other than construction in progress
less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.

Annual Report 2018 44t  CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % [ Ht 43 [ B2 33 it 45 i 4 W)

TESHEE(A)

ME BERRE

ME -BEMREBEREFIEEESMH
FER m R AT ARG 2 B ED
FEET (REABRERE) (£
TR BERABRERRATER
HEZRFHRERE (8 R&EE /MK
RE 25 -

REE -HERITHAZMERNE
YRR AARAE A B FERRRLE &5 1B
SIE-KABREXERLRLEER
BEMEREAKEEFTBRRENL
B8 SRR AR o 5% F R R e A e /] it
EREREFOBELSEEENNY
X BEARB - ZRFEEREEANR
ABRERZERERELBYMEEE
HREESETE-

FEDNBERERER  AMEEE
(ERITRERINKA BEEERE
et Al E B F I RIS EE - B FT A
ERFEH FREEMTETNENE
WEHRERS ARG ZEAE
BEERNRRR-




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%ok 11 B B e 2 M Bk

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same
basis as owned assets. However, when there is
no reasonable certainty that ownership will be
obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in

profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
properties under construction for such purposes).
Investment properties include land held for
undetermined future use, which is regarded as held

for capital appreciation purpose.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. All of
the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as
investment properties and are measured using
the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties
are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment
properties under construction are capitalised as part
of the carrying amount of the investment properties
under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the

period in which the property is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives (other than those not
yet available for use) is recognised on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being

accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets that are not yet available for use
are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated

impairment losses.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect

of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis

can be identified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect

of goodwill above) (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
(if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an
asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value
in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have
been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to
the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect

of goodwill above) (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or a CGU) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs

necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle that obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions (continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money
is material).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party to

the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL)
are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into financial assets
at FVTPL, available-for-sale (“AFS"”) financial
assets and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective

interest basis for debt instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as AFS or are not classified as
(a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity

investments or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at the
end of each reporting period (see accounting policy
in respect of impairment loss on financial assets

below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including deposit paid for a life insurance policy,
trade receivables, trade receivables from related
companies, bills receivables, loan receivables, other
receivables and deposits, amounts due from former
subsidiaries, restricted deposits, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment (see accounting policy

on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables (continued)

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would

be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of

the financial assets have been affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of

impairment could include:

J significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal

payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-

organisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions

that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective

interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will

not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost,
if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables and accruals, loans from staffs, amounts
due to former subsidiaries, amounts due to related
companies, amount due to a director, amount due
to ultimate holding company, construction cost
accruals, the liability component of convertible
bonds, coupon bonds, obligation arising from a put
option to non-controlling shareholders and bank
and other borrowings are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components

The components parts of the convertible bonds are
classified separately as financial liability and equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. A conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity

instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated by measuring the fair value
of similar liability that does not have an associated

equity component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Convertible bonds contain liability and equity
components (continued)

The conversion option classified as equity is
determined by deducting the amount of the liability
component from the fair value of the compound
instrument as a whole. In the case where
convertible bonds were issued to acquire non-
financial assets, the conversion option would be
initially recognised at fair value. These conversion
options are recognised and included in equity,
net of income tax effects, where applicable, and
is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain
in equity until the conversion option is exercised,
in which case, the balance recognised in equity
will be transferred to share premium. Where the
conversion option remains unexercised at the
expiry date of the convertible bonds, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to retained
profits. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
upon conversion or expiration of the conversion
option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating
to the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period
of the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Convertible bonds contain liability component and
conversion option derivative

A conversion option that will be settled other than
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is a conversion

option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the liability component
and conversion option derivative are recognised
at fair value. In subsequent periods, the liability
component of the convertible bonds is carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The conversion option derivative is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability
and derivative components in proportion to their
relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to
the derivative components are charged to profit
or loss immediately. Transaction costs relating to
the liability component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability portion and amortised over
the period of the convertible bonds using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at
the date when derivative contracts are entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which
event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss
depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host
contracts are treated as separate derivatives when
they meet the definition of a derivative, their risks
and characteristics are not closely related to those
of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%ok 11 B B e 2 M Bk

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Obligation arising from a put option on shares of a

subsidiary written to a non-controlling shareholder

Put option written to a non-controlling shareholder,
which will be settled other than by exchange of
fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of shares
in a subsidiary is treated as a derivative financial
instrument and is recognised at fair value upon
initial recognition. Any changes of fair value in
subsequent reporting dates are recognised in profit

or loss.

The gross financial liability arising from the put
option is recognised when contractual obligation
to repurchase the shares in a subsidiary is
established even if the obligation is conditional
on the counterparty exercising a right to sell
back the shares to the Group. The liability for the
share redemption amount is initially recognised
and measured at present value of the estimated
repurchase price with the corresponding debit
to the non-controlling interests. In subsequent
periods, the remeasurement of the present value
of the estimated gross obligation under the written
put option to the non-controlling shareholders is

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in

accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group
are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured
at the higher of:

(i) the amount of obligation under the contract,
as determined in accordance with HKAS
37 "Provisions, contingent liabilities and

contingent assets”; and

(ii) the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation

recognised over the guarantee period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised

borrowing for the proceeds received.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
consideration received and receivable is recognised

in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 3, the directors
of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects

both current and future periods.

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies
The following is the critical judgment that the
directors of the Company have made in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation
arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the directors
of the Company have reviewed the Group’'s
investment property portfolios and concluded
that the Group’s investment properties are held
under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group's deferred taxation on investment
properties, the directors of the Company have
determined the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through
sale is rebutted. Accordingly, deferred taxation in
relation to the Group’s investment properties has
been measured based on the tax consequences of
recovering the carrying amounts entirely through

use.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning

the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that

4,

REet B RATIREZ
EFERR (&)

fEt T HEEZ X ZRIR

RBEMR HREANEIEBRRUALK
HifEat M EEcEZRFLAAE
AEBRAREER T EFRFREAEE

may have a significant risk of causing a material EEABECREBELERFAR 2
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and BT

liabilities within the next financial year.

Valuation of investment properties KEYFEZ IEE

The Group's investment properties are stated at
fair value based on the valuation performed by
an independent qualified professional valuer. In
determining the fair value, the valuer has applied
significant judgment and estimation in determining
the valuation methodology, adoption of significant
assumptions and use of various unobservable inputs
in the valuation models, including prices realised
on actual sales or asking prices or market rent of
comparable properties. Comparable properties
are analysed and carefully weighed against all the
respective advantages and disadvantages of each
property in order to arrive at a fair comparison
of market values. As at 31 March 2018, the
carrying amount of investment properties was
HK$3,871,563,000 (2017: HK$2,806,186,000).
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment assessment of trade and loan
receivables

The management estimates the allowance for bad
and doubtful debts based on the recoverability of
trade and loan receivables. The Group takes into
consideration the objective evidence in estimating
the recoverability of trade receivables from major
customers and assessed individually at the end of
the reporting period. Objective evidence includes
credit history, age of debts, collateral receivable,
past settlement records including default or delay
in payments and subsequent settlements. Where
the actual outcome is different from the original
estimates, it will impact the carrying amount
of trade and loan receivables and allowance
for bad and doubtful debts. As at 31 March
2018, the aggregate carrying amount of trade
and loan receivables is HK$231,532,000 (2017:
HK$168,255,000).
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision for financing guarantee contracts

The Group makes estimate on costs required to
fulfil the relevant obligation of guarantee contracts
when the guaranteed amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Such estimation is
based on the available information as at reporting
date and is determined by the Group’s practical
experience, the default history, the collateral
held and financial position of relevant customers
assessed on an individual basis in the industry and
taking into consideration of industry information
and market data. Where the actual obligation the
Group requires to fulfill is more than expected, a
material provision may arise. Amount of corporate
guarantee provided by the Group is disclosed in
note 41.

Impairment of goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March
2018 was HK$42,716,000 (2017: nil). The Group
is required to carry out an impairment assessment
of goodwill at the end of the reporting period by
comparing the recoverable amount with carrying
amount of the relevant CGU. In determining
the recoverable amount, the Group assesses the
value in use of the CGU to which the goodwill
has been allocated by discounting the estimated
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU
to the present value. Significant judgment and
assumptions were required in the process such as
the use of discount rate and growth rate during the
forecast period. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment loss

may arise.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

REVENUE 5. WA
AREBZREZWASHAOT :

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as

follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Revenue from interior EREE LI
decoration work WA 114 2,098
Revenue from international RE 5
trading A 1,115,887 405,350
Revenue from financing A ERR
guarantee services A 17,001 16,958
Revenue from logistics services — #7% AR 75 W A 874 980
Revenue from financial B 75 68 8 AR 7%
advisory services PN 5,690 -
Revenue from property MR E
investment PN
- Rental income —HE WA 27,172 22,611
— Management fee income —EBREBEIWA 65,621 54,953
Interest income from BERME
money lending PN 16,538 15,884
Interest income from BMERSF B
finance leases WA 8,829 -
1,257,726 518,834
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of
the Company, being the chief operating decision
maker ("CODM"), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance
focus on the types of goods supplied and services

provided by the Group.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments
under HKFRS 8 “Operating segments” are as

follows:

(i) Interior decoration work —interior decoration

works in Hong Kong and Macau

(i) International trading—trading of consumer

goods and electronic components

(iii) ~ Financing guarantee services—provision of
corporate financing guarantee services and

related consultancy services

(iv) Logistics services—provision of logistics

services

(v) Finance lease services—provision of finance

lease services

(vi) Property investment—leasing of property
and provision of property management

services

Note: The Group has commenced the finance lease

services during the year.

The revenue streams and results from these
segments are the basis of the internal reports
about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the CODM in order to
allocate resources to segments and to assess their

performance.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Financial advisory and money lending businesses are
not reviewed by the CODM and therefore they are
not separately presented. Revenue from financial
advisory and money lending businesses is presented

as unallocated revenue.

No segment assets or liabilities is presented as
the CODM does not review segment assets and

liabilities.

Segment revenue and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s
revenue and results in by operating and reportable

segments:

Year ended 31 March 2018

TEHEFR (&)

MHEERREEEBRAEATIERE
REEEMN Hib YEBEF25 8
BEEREEEBRAZIA/RDE
WA o

PHEENABIA2NIEAEES
@ﬁm%mﬁ%%%%ﬁé&ﬁﬁo

LRI L ONSES
AEBIZEBERATZERD
ARZEEDIWMT

HBEID

D Z W

Year ended 31 March 2017

BE-E-N\¥ BE-Z-+tF
ZA=t-HLEE ZA=t-HL%E
Segment Segment
Segment  profit (loss) Segment profit (loss)
revenue  for the year revenue for the year
KEEDH KEE D
AHEA EHF (FB) AHEA & (EE)
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Interior decoration work TRARHIRE 114 (4,966) 2,098 (7,304)
International trading BRE 5 1,115,887 22,134 405,350 2,369
Financing guarantee services & 2R R 7% 17,001 13,299 16,958 10,697
Logistics services mim Bk 874 (2,261) 980 (2,928)
Finance leases BEME 8,829 3,955
Property investment MERE 92,793 183,542 77,564 109,563
Revenue and result for DEELET YN
reportable segment ES 1,235,498 215,703 502,950 112,397
Unallocated revenue Z N ON 22,228 15,884
Total st 1,257,726 518,834
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEER (&)
(continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued) DEBUT A K EELE (4E)

Year ended 31 March 2018

Year ended 31 March 2017

BE2-E2-N\%§ BE-E-t&
ZA=t-HLEE ZA=t-HIL%E
Segment Segment
Segment  profit (loss) Segment profit (loss)

revenue  for the year revenue for the year
REESH KEEDH
AWWA  EHF (FB) AHBA & F (EE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER THT THET
Unallocated revenue ROBERA 22,228 15,884
Unallocated income, AOBWA - Yoz
gains and losses KEE 70,314 6,798
Equity-settled share-based KR EE UKD BER 2
payments NE: (1,365) (3,116)
Unallocated gain on APEREME
fair value change of ZRTEEE
investment properties e 26,011 67,310
Loss arising from YE-HNBAREELZ
acquisition of a subsidiary B8 (101,654) -
Gain on fair value change of Ak &% 2 14
the derivative components ~ TEHH 72 A FE
of convertible bonds -l 121 7,753
Unallocated corporate APBEEE
expenses Fx (69,221) (48,234)
Finance costs BT RR AR (167,598) (105,489)
(Loss) profit before tax BRELAT (E1E) &7 (5,461) 53,303
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies as
described in note 3. Segment profit/loss represents
the profit/loss earned/suffered by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs,
equity-settled share-based payments in relation
to central administrative staff, gain on fair value
change of investment properties (except for gain on
fair value change of certain investment properties),
loss arising from acqusition of a subsidiary, other
income, gains and losses (except for reversal of bad
and doubtful debts), directors’” emoluments and
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resources allocation and

performance assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % % — /\4E=H =+ —H L4

SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(continued)

Geographical information (continued)

The Group’s revenue from external customers

and information about its non-current assets by
geographical location of the assets are detailed

TEHEFR (&)

i &K ()
REBKEINBELPZWARREE
SIS 2 ERBDEEEHFIBWN
T

below:
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets (note)
RENPEF 2HA ERBEE (i)
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\§ —E—tF —E-N\f S 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER THET
Hong Kong and Macau BB REN 1,066,657 49,670 62,248 20,519
The PRC F 191,069 469,164 3,876,409 2,839,140

1,257,726

518,834 3,938,657 2,859,659

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing over 10.0%
of the total revenue of the Group are as follows:

Wi FRPDEETBEERIA-

FEEFER
ERWAMGEAREEBUA10.0%A £
EmT

2018 2017

—E-N\E e

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FET

Customer A BEA 737,444 153,594

Customer B’ BB 262,417 103,681

Customer C' PO N/A T 38 2 77,541
1 Revenue from international trading segment 1 BRE 5 n a2 WA

2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over
10.0% of the total revenue of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % ~ % — /\4FE= =+ —H IL4FE

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND 7. HKA WEREBEH
LOSSES
2018 2017
—2-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Other income H A
Interest income FEWA 8,669 5,213
Imputed interest income from JE Wi AT BT B & &)
amounts due from former REZHE
subsidiaries FEIA 1,905 1,670
10,574 6,883
Other gains and losses HthhZmREE
Adjustment on carrying amount  JEft —REEEARRE 2
of amount due to a related FREEAE
company (note 32) (H1iE32) 47,780 -
Gain (loss) on disposal of HEWE W&
property, plant and SE S pal
equipment (E18) 3 (8)
Net foreign exchange gain b 5 OF s 11,957 220
Reversal of allowance for bad RIBEREERD
and doubtful debts, net HEE 245 273
Gain on fair value change of AIMBRESZITETA
derivative components of D 2 N EZE
convertible bonds (note 34) Wz (H1iE34) 121 7,753
Others HAh - (297)
60,106 7,941
70,680 14,824
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

FINANCE COSTS 8. HEEA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FH T
Interest on bank and other RITREMER
borrowings 2 H B 64,193 52,596
Effective interest expense on 10.0% AT IR EH 2 B R
10.0% convertible bonds B 10,607 17,722
Effective interest expense 3.0% A ]RES 2 BIR
on 3.0% convertible bonds FMERX 50,393 -
Effective interest expense 9.0%EEFEHFZER
on 9.0% coupon bonds FEF X 26,967 -
Effective interest expense 8O0%EEMBEHZEMR
on 8.0% coupon bonds F B = 14,549
Effective interest expense 75%REEH BB
on 7.5% coupon bonds FMERX 8,312 23,194
Effective interest expense RO%EEEFZER
on 12.0% coupon bonds FEF X 4,901 30,840
Imputed interest expense from  FEF RIIB A 7
amounts due to former RIEZEE
subsidiaries MERX 1,028 900
Imputed interest expense from  E{JBE ARG REZ
amounts due to related HEMNBRAX
companies (note 32) (K1:t32) 19,182 -
Imputed interest expense from A FE4E I& A% B %
obligation arising from put Ron BT E £
option to non-controlling AEEZHE
shareholders FERX 3,808 -
Interest on finance leases REMHER S 87 142
Total finance costs BRI R 189,478 139,943
Less: Amount capitalised in R E Y
investment properties pd-v:Nld
under construction o] (21,880) (34,454)
167,598 105,489
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

8. FINANCE COSTS (continued) 8. BIBHEA (&)
Certain finance costs capitalised during the year REBEZE-ZZE-NF=A=1+—HIL*F
ended 31 March 2018 arose on the general E-BETRE—REEREEZER
borrowing pool of HK$4,821,000 (2017: LBt Ak 4,821,000 . (=T —+
HK$28,035,000) are calculated by applying a % 128,035,000/ 7T ) JhIRA11.6% 2
capitalisation rate of 11.6% (2017: 9.44%) per FEXRE(ZT—EF:9.44% )5
annum. The remaining finance costs capitalised of Hotr T & AR B % B A17,059,000
HK$17,059,000 (2017: HK$6,419,000) arose from BT (=T —+£%:6,419,0008 7T)
the specific borrowings of the Group. ThR B AREE 2 B EE R e
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FiBHHEX
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Current tax: BIEAT 18
Hong Kong BB 2,763 796
PRC 7 4,546 2,572
Macau B P = -
7,309 3,368
(Over) under provision BAFERE (BE)TE:
in prior years:
Hong Kong &5 (141) 13
PRC a3 (2,996) (1,159)
(3,137) (1,146)
Deferred tax (note 37) EIERIA (K1aE37) 19,493 26,257
23,665 28,479
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income
Tax (the "EIT Law"”) and implementation regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the Group’'s PRC
subsidiaries is 25% except that the concessionary
tax rate of 15% is applied to certain subsidiaries
recognised as “Go-west” region development
programme corporate which is entitled to apply the
rate of 15%. The entitlement of this tax benefit is
subject to renewal by respective tax bureau in the
PRC every year.

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at the
maximum progressive rate of 12% on the estimated

assessable profit for both years.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 9. FiSWHEX (&)
The income tax expense for the year can be AEEMERAZMEEEERRE
reconciled to the (loss) profit before tax per the HEmBRERARN BT A (EE) %
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other ZEERWT

comprehensive income as follows:

2018 2017
=E-N\F —E—L+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHE T
(Loss) profit before tax BrFLAT (E518) m A (5,461) 53,303
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax & & i #1851 B &
rate of 16.5% 16.5%&T % (901) 8,795
Tax effect of expenses not ST EERERIBENR 2
deductible for tax purposes MBee 35,042 21,132
Tax effect of income not taxable W ATBEFZ
for tax purposes MGz (11,204) (2,028)
Tax effect of tax losses not M EIERER
recognised Mg 2 13,691 6,661
Utilisation of tax losses B A 2 AT RER
previously not recognised % &8 (5.580) (3,736)
Effect of different tax rates of REMBDEE EiMR
subsidiaries operating in other K& ZHBAGE 2
jurisdictions TRABE w8 (4,246) (1,199)
Overprovision in respect of MAEFEHEE
prior year L] (3,137) (1,146)
Income tax expense for the year ARFEHBHRAL 23,665 28,479
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

10. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. XNFE (F#E)EF
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Loss) profit for the year has AKEE (BE)BMNSHE (G A)
been arrived at after charging T3|EE :
(crediting):
Auditor’s remuneration % S AN B & 2,850 1,850
Depreciation of property, L ER S
plant and equipment e 3,308 3,681
Amortisation of intangible assets £ fZ & &= # 4
(included in administrative (FFATTIR
expenses) F) 1,756 2,291
Provision for warranty REBE
(included in cost of sales (FTASHE R
and services) BR A5 AXAN) - 326
Staff costs (including directors’ 8 IKA
emoluments) (BREEEHS)
Wages, salaries and other HEHMEEM
benefits B 52,762 38,080
Retirement benefits scheme RRAE T E
contributions HR 5,956 4,333
Equity-settled share-based RREREENRO RER 2
payments (Note) (A aE) 1,431 3,090
60,149 45,503
Cost of inventories recognised R AR Z
as expenses FEKA 1,080,606 393,674
Operating lease rentals paid in BHEHEWE
respect of rented properties BENKEHEERS 9,158 8,845
Operating lease rentals paid in BB RAZTREZ
respect of office equipment BENKEHERS 56 1
Gross rental income from WEMEZEE
investment properties WA 4258 (27,172) (22,611)
Less: direct operating expenses  Ji : EETH SR A Z
incurred for investment WEMEEE
properties that generated L EEKE
rental income 3 4,653 5,270
(22,519) (17,341)
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

10. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. AFE (FEB)HMN (&)

(continued)

Note: Amount excluded equity-settled share-based Bzt RIS B E LR R AR R A
payment to consultants of HK$451,000 (2017: BT REHAERTNEBREERR
HK$1,221,000) in connection with the services BREREEBEMIREZ RS
provided by the consultants who solely rendered MZEEBXN 2 REREE AR
services and reported their duties to the Group 19 RER 2 F5451,0008 7 (ZF
during the current and prior reporting periods. — % :1,221,0008 ) - B @R
Such services are similar as in nature to those BEAEEEERMCIRBIEER
rendered by employees of the Group. Lo

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 11. EERETIME

EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ERNZENTNARE(ZE—LEF N

eight (2017: eight) directors and chief executive F)VEERERTBRAEBSMNHIE

were as follows: LU

Directors’ emoluments E=2Ma

Year ended 31 March 2018 BE-ZE-NF=ZA=+—HLEE

Retirement Equity-
Salaries benefits settled
Directors’ and other scheme  share-based Total
fees benefits contributions payments 2018
RERLE
MR RAEHN URGRER @t
- Lok Hit g H TEHR ZR® ZB-N\%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET TR TR TERT
(Note ()
(Hizt0))

Executive directors HITEE

Li Weibin FER - 2,191 18 139 2,348

Siu Wai Yip BEE - 1,708 18 97 1,823

Lam Suk Ling, Shirley MR - 1,446 18 97 1,561

Lau Chi Kit LS - 395 - 64 459

Non-executive director FHITEE

Fung Sau Mui BEiE 192 - - 32 224

Independent non-executive B FHTEE

directors

Lai Ka Fung, May R5E 180 - - 32 212

Chan Sim Ling, Irene B 180 = = 32 212

Ho Chung Tai, Raymond @R 720 - - 130 850

Total et 1,272 5,740 54 623 7,689
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % % — /\4E=H =+ —H L4

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 11. EERETME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Directors’ emoluments (continued) ExWe (&)
Year ended 31 March 2017 BHe—_Z—+F=A=+—HIEE
Retirement Equity-
Salaries benefits settled
Directors’ and other scheme share-based Total
fees benefits  contributions payments 2017
REREE
HFMR RIAEF  URDAER HEt
EE2ika Hipfafl HELS IR “E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THL THL TEL THT
(Note (1))
(i)
Executive directors HITEE
Li Weibin =X -3 - 2,101 20 300 2,421
Siu Wai Yip BEE - 1,639 18 209 1,866
Lam Suk Ling, Shirley W% - 1,387 18 209 1,614
Lau Chi Kit ElEey S - 378 - 140 518
Non-executive director HHTEE
Fung Sau Mui B5iE 183 - - 70 253

Independent non-executive BV HHTEE

directors
Lai Ka Fung, May R5E 171 - - 70 241
Chan Sim Ling, Irene BRiER 171 - - 70 241
Ho Chung Tai, Raymond &% 720 - - 235 955
Total Bt 1,245 5,505 56 1,303 8,109
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES'’ 11. EEREIMS (&)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Directors’ emoluments (continued) ExWe (&)
Note: Kt it
(i) Equity-settled share-based payments represent (i) REREEARD BER 2 5IE

RBEARTDR - —FRMNZIE

share options granted to directors of the Company

under a share option scheme adopted by the
Company in 2012. The value of these share
options is measured according to the Group’s
accounting policies for share-based payment

REHEBETEANESZBR
e SRR WE BB
EABARGAERS FRR52
SHKAHE

transactions.

ETARAESRHEMBER ZHER
EHAB(EEROBREZEIZK
REEE ) B K FE39 -

Details of share options granted to directors of
the Company and other employees, including the
principal terms and number of options granted,
are set out in note 39.

EXATHMTES 2H MR REE R
ARBRAEBEHRHEZ REM X

management of the affairs of the Company and the ffo

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above

were for their services in connection with the

Group.

The non-executive director's emoluments shown EXFRIERTTES 2L R S
EARRBIHEWBRAICEERMEZ

AR 7 M S A

above were for their services as directors of the
Company or its subsidiaries.

The independent non-executive directors’ F RIS IR ITES 2t
EEEARAEETREZRBE M X
directors of the Company. fFo

emoluments shown above were for their services as

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ [ v 4 [ B 7 it 5 R 2+ ] Annual Report 2018 4 #i




11.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Mr. Li is also the chief executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosure above include those

for services rendered by him as the chief executive.

During both years, no emoluments were paid
or payable by the Group to the directors of the
Company as compensation for loss of office or
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group.
There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive

any emoluments in both years.

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, two (2017: three) were directors of
the Company whose emoluments were disclosed
above. The emoluments of the remaining three
(2017: two) highest paid individuals for the year
ended 31 March 2018 are as follows:

11.

EERETHME (&)

S (&)
FRENMBARAZERITHRAER
RELERFEZMEBREERER
TTHRABMEHRB ZME -

WA AEELROALAES
BRI 6 o BB T 10 ) o B
EEESI PN 1 ES P 1 I
M T s HAFH LHmEFLE
BABMABRERAERELAMS
2z

BEI#S
AEBREGEaMEeE s ATH M
Z(CB—+EFE =ZZ)ABRRAIZE
E HMEeEREXBER -BHE=-FT
—N\EZA=Z+—BLEEE BT=
FZ(ZZ—tF - WMB) B AL
ZBemnT

’

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FHET

Salaries, bonus and other benefits Bl ~ 741 & E 12 7 6,058 2,685
Equity-settled share-based RRSEENRG RER

payments pANEN - -

Contributions to retirement RIKENETE
benefit schemes Hax 23 68
6,081 2,753
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

11.

12.

13.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 11. EEREIME (£F)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Employees’ emoluments (continued) BETME (&)
The number of the highest paid employees who e FTINBE 2 WIAARES
are not the directors of the Company whose ZEEHFHEEABET
remuneration fall within the following band is as
follows:
2018 2017

=E-N\F —E—+F
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/% 7T % 1,500,000 7T = 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001% 7T &£2,000,000/% 7T 2 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 T %2,500,0007% 7T 1 -

During the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the five employees with the highest emoluments as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or

as compensation for loss of office.

TRANSACTION IN WHICH A
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY HAS
MATERIAL INTEREST

As detailed in note 40, the Group has acquired a
subsidiary and the related shareholder’s loans due
to Mr. Li and his affiliated companies from a vendor
at a total consideration of HK$312,000,000 during
the year. The vendor is a company wholly owned by
Mr. Li.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year
ended 31 March 2018, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period
(2017: nil).

12.

13.

REBE_T-N\FER_ZT—tF=H
=T -HALEFE AEELERIM
TEEaFMEENME ERR
SIREMAREERMARNEEE 2
ReABBEE-

FRARNEEHEREAEHZX
2

BB FEA0FT FE i - AEE R F AR
—ZEFRE-—RBENBARIRERST
TEREBBARIZBHAREER
#R{EA312,000,00087L EH ABZE
EEREHRBZRAC

[ g=\
HE-_Z-N\F=ZA=+—RHILFE
MY BRI ERRTRE  BRE
HIR AR B SR R RS (=
T—tF B
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % % — /\4E=H =+ —H L4

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. B8R (EB)EF
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) ARNBEBEANEESRERARE S
earnings per share attributable to the owners of the (BB BFNIDBRETIHEFTE:

Company is based on the following data:

(Loss) earnings (E1E) &7
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHEIT
(Loss) earnings for the year AUFFEERERK
attributable to owners of the HERNz
Company for the purposes of ZAN/NECIEF SN
basic and diluted earnings per  JE{hHARREE
share (f51E) & x| (77,877) 1,337
Number of shares It 88
‘000 ‘000
TR’ T &
Weighted average number of RAUGTEERERR
ordinary shares for the EERN
purposes of basic and i AR N4
diluted earnings per share F15E 680,901 317,924
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

14.

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE
(continued)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of basic earnings per share for the
year ended 31 March 2017 has been adjusted for
the effect of rights issue on 19 October 2016 and
the share consolidation on 27 March 2017. Details
of the rights issue and share consolidation are set

out in note 38.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the
computation of diluted loss per share does not
assume the conversion of the outstanding 10.0%
convertible bonds and 3.0% convertible bonds and
the exercise of share options of the Company as

they would result in decrease in loss per share.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the
computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the conversion of the outstanding 10.0%
convertible bonds and the exercise of share options
of the Company as they would result in increase in

earnings per share.

14.

BR(BR)BF (4&)

R ERE—_T—tF=A=1+—
BLEFEZERERNRN 2 BN
BYrHge —E— R ¥+ A+ 1A

ZHEE-_E—+F=ZA-++BZ
BHet s EELRFAE  HR K
MEeEH 2 FBHNHFE3S -

RBE-_T-N\F=ZA=T—HIF
B st EEREEFERYL ERRE KR

B 710.0% A R EH KX3.0% 0]
EHFEEEBL AR ZERED

Bk RARESEHERERR
9\0

RBE-F—tHF=-A=1+—HBLHF
B BEREER W ERR AR

Bt

B Z10.0% A MREFCEEHRR
ARRBREDETE RASHES
BEEHRAFIEZN-

0|
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % % — /\4E=H =+ —H L4

3 2
15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  15. ¥¥ BERRHE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures Construction
land and Leasehold Computer and office Motor in
buildings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles progress Total
RELH GH-#E
REF HEWERE EMRE REAZRE RE ERIR @t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEn TEn T#n TEn TEn TEn TEn
osT A
At 1 April 2016 RZZ-"ENA-A 18,264 1333 2,544 2,134 7,568 852 32,695
Additions HE - 1,716 167 467 - - 2,350
Disposals e - (264) (283) (22) - - (569)
Reclassification Edip] - 280 - (280) - - -
Transfer to intangible assets BHZ &N EE - - - - - (101) (101)
Exchange realignment ERHE - (61) (104) (101) (140) (72) (478)
At 31 March 2017 RZZ—+FZA=1-H 18,264 3,004 2,324 2,198 7428 679 33,897
Additions WE - 784 521 1,245 512 - 3,062
Disposals e - - - (78) - - (78)
Acquisition of Subsidiaries  WEMBA A
(note 40) (Ht40) - il 300 112 233 - 716
Exchange realignment ERHRE - 137 257 270 389 66 1,119
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NE=F=1-H 18,264 3,996 3,402 3,747 8,562 745 38,716
At 1 April 2016 RZE-~4EA-A 1,979 1,018 1,088 428 2,962 - 1475
Charge for the year REERE 609 501 630 344 1,597 - 3,681
Eliminated on disposals & &3 - (264) (270) (25) - - (559)
Reclassification ENDE - 74 - (74) - - -
Exchange realignment ERAE - (52) (41) (19) (85) - (197)
At 31 March 2017 RZE-+EZA=1-H 2,588 1277 1,407 654 4,474 - 10,400
Charge for the year TEERE 609 754 331 370 1,244 - 3,308
Eliminated on disposals (1 &R - - - (70) - - (70)
Exchange realignment EXAE - 115 169 119 297 - 700
At 31 March 2018 WZE-NE=B=1-A 3,197 2,146 1,907 1,073 6,015 - 14,338
CARRYING VALUES EaE
At 31 March 2018 R-B-NE=fA=1-H 15,067 1,850 1,495 2,674 2,547 745 24,378
At 31 March 2017 RZE-+EZA=1-H 15,676 1727 917 1,544 2,954 679 23497
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

15.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, are depreciated
on a straight-line basis at the following rates per

annum:

Over the shorter of the
terms of the lease, or

Leasehold land and
buildings
30 years
Leasehold improvements 10% for owned assets
or over the lease terms
for the leased assets
Computer equipment 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 10%
office equipment

Motor vehicles 20%

At 31 March 2018, leasehold land and buildings of
the Group with carrying value of HK$15,067,000
(2017: HK$15,676,000) were pledged with a bank
to secure a loan granted to the Group.

At 31 March 2018, the motor vehicles with carrying
value of HK$1,427,000 (2017: HK$1,963,000) are

assets held under finance leases.

15.

ME- BERRE (&)

FALME BERREBEREMS &K
ERETI WEGRENE FIRAZ
FREMT:

MELk RAEFHY
BF 30F 2 REE
HEMEHE AEEERI0%K

BHEEEY
HEFH
e B 20%
B -RER 10%
WARHBE
"E 20%

RZE—NF=ZA=+T—H F&HE
SR {E A15,067,0008 0 (=T —+
115,676,000 ) < HE T 18
FEERTRIT EABRTAEERE
R

RZE-—N\F=ZA=Z+—H @\
BEA1,427,0008C (ZF — L F:
1,963,000 70) 2 ABE TV AREMEE
BEZEE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REYHE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T FET
Completed properties held for  #H{ELHBEENZ
rental purpose: =ECI2 47 ES
At 1 April MU H—H 2,034,090 2,078,668
Net changes in fair value RIBHERZ
recognised in profit or loss NTEEEFE 135,006 74,756
Exchange realignment PE W 58 & 203,953 (119,334)
At 31 March (Note (a)) R=A=+—8 (K@) 2,373,049 2,034,090
Leasehold land with MAREBERKAEZ
undetermined future use; HE i
At 1 April I H—H 222,373 209,064
Transfer to investment HEE
properties under EREIRE
construction LS (29,607) -
Net changes in fair value RIE & HER
recognised in profit or loss NEEEBFE 8,646 25,647
Exchange realignment Rz 20,659 (12,338)
At 31 March (Note (a) and (b)) H=A=+—8
(H1&E(a)Fi(b)) 222,071 222,373
Sub-total NEE 2,595,120 2,256,463
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. BREWE (&)
(continued)
2018 2017
—E-N\F TE—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHE T
Investment properties under ERIREME:
construction:
At 1 April RMmA—H 549,723 360,206
Additions NE 127,828 172,253
Acquired on an acquisition of R — BB 2 BB Uk B
a subsidiary (Note (c)) (B3 () 452,034 -
Net changes in fair value RERERZ
recognised in profit or loss DT EEB)FEE 17,365 41,663
Transfer from leasehold land EERANABTERRZ
with undetermined use HE L 29,607 -
Exchange realignment (R 99,886 (24,399)
At 31 March (Note (b) and (c) ~ =R =+—8 (M b)Fc)) 1,276,443 549,723
Total #Et 3,871,563 2,806,186

Unrealised gain on properties EARFEEEREZ
revaluation included WMEE®
in profit or loss for the year REH W= 161,017 142,066
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(continued)

Notes:

(a)

The Group owns the shopping mall building
situated at the east side of Banyin Road, Bagiao
District, Xi'an City, Shaanxi Province, the PRC
(namely, Daminggong Construction Materials
and Furniture Shopping Centre (Dongsanhuan
Branch)) (“Xi'an Commercial Complex”)
and the undeveloped land parcel adjacent to
the Commercial Complex (“Phase 2 of the
Commercial Complex”).

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, it is considered
that the fair value of the building portion of the
logistics park located at Hantai district, Hanzhong
City, Shaanxi Province, the PRC (the "Chinlinke
Worldport”) could be measured reliably in
view of the stage of completion reached. The
whole portion of investment properties under
construction and the remaining undeveloped
leasehold land portion of the ChinlinkeWorldport
(the "Hanzhong Land”) are measured at fair
value.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the
Group acquired the investment property under
construction located at Weiyang District,
Xi‘an City, Shaanxi Province, the PRC (“Zhong
Hui investment property”) through the
acquisition of a subsidiary as detailed in note
40. The fair value of the investment property
under construction as determined by Colliers
International (Hong Kong) Ltd. (“Colliers”) at the
acquisition date was RMB396,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$452,034,000).
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REWE (&)

Bat

(a)

AEEBEAEUNPREREETHLH
BRERYIBRRAZEBY P LE
F(EIRHEEMRE e R=]RIE)
((AZHERR]) MBIFmER
Bz ARAME L ((HERXEEZ
Bl

RZBE-—N\FR-ZFT—tF=H
=t+—H EREEEBTRE
R ERAREFTZAEYRE
ZIEFHD ([EETRSHRE])
ZRAFEWR R SR E IR
ERREMEREER S EE
ZHRTAAEAE LIS ([EHR
T ) HIEAFENE

WA A0 REBEZT
—N\F=ZA=+—HLEFE 4%
EE BN — BRI EE IR
FEREABLTARBENERR
EME([FEREYE]) -5
BYERR(E8)ERARA(E
D) FEEEREAMERKER
H 2 AFE A AR396,000,000
7t (#8 & 7 452,034,000/8 70 ) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(continued)

The Group’s investment properties are categorised
into level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. At the
end of each reporting period, the directors of
the Company work closely with the independent
qualified professional valuer to establish and
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to be used in determining the fair value of
the investment properties. Discussion of valuation
processes and results are held amongst directors of

the Company at least twice a year.

The fair values of all investment properties at 31
March 2018 and 2017 were determined by Colliers
except for the fair values of Xi'an Commercial
Complex and Phase 2 of the Commercial Complex
at 31 March 2017 were determined by Ascent
Partners Valuation Service Limited (“Ascent

Partners”).

For Xi'an Commercial Complex, the valuation has
been arrived at using the income capitalisation
approach. This valuation method estimates the
value of a property on a market basis by capitalizing
rental income on a fully leased basis.

For Phase 2 of the Commercial Complex and
Hanzhong Land, the valuation has been arrived at
using the market approach by making reference
to comparable sale transactions as available in the
relevant markets.

16.

REWE (&)

AEBEZERENESBRRFEEBR
ZHEZB-REBEHRR ARAEF
HEBVAEREEMEMTEE"
NI FBERREERENMERF
BEEBELARBAE AR
EEEFRLYUGBERFRERT®
IR o

FMEREMER-_T—NFR_Z
—+tFE=ZA=+—RAZAFEIESD
hET HATEENERFEKNE
F_HR_E—tF=A=+—H2
ANEERIN ETYBHXAFELHAE
RAR ([XHAFE])EE-

ALEEREZEENERBEAER
ORES - ZBETREBRETEE
EEREENMEES WAATIG R
xRz EE-

BEABE _MRER L ZBET
2ERETSARSAUELRBEERS
ERAMmHERER-
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(continued)

For the ChinlinkeWorldport and Zhong Hui
investment property which are under construction,
the valuation has been arrived at using the residual
approach by making reference to recent sales
transactions of completed properties as publicly
available to determine the adjusted unit rate of the
completed investment properties, less estimated
costs to completion and expected developer’s
profit margin so as to determine the value of the
proposed development as if these were completed

as at the date of valuation.

Both Colliers and Ascent Partners are independent
qualified professional valuers not connected with
the Group and have appropriate qualification and
recent experience in the valuation of similar projects

in relevant locations.

In estimating the fair value of the investment
properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use.

At 31 March 2018, investment properties of the
Group with fair values of HK$3,134,628,000 (2017:
HK$2,662,829,000) were pledged with certain

banks to secure the loan facilities to the Group.
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16.

REWE (&)

REREEP S ERERPERE
MEMS HEDEZ2EETKDE
AR SHERSRARGE
EBCUNEBEEERREMEZER
BEUER RAETERAANRESR
RBERZANEREMBETRZRRZ
BE(BONZENFEREHEERHS
) e

B A RITTFHE R EAS E Y &
ZEBIAERBEXMGEM YEEY
B BURBETHEZEES
BN KR -

REFEENEZAFER WEZ
RREREREAEAKRZAE -

RZZE—N\FE=ZA=+—H8 £&H
A& A3,134,628,0008 L (==
—+ % :2,662,829,00087C) 2 & &
MELERTETRT ERAEEE
B2ERBE 2R
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REWE (&)
(continued)

Set out below is the significant unobservable inputs UNTHRERARAFEFEZERT
used for fair value measurements: ATER R AE

EREAEATABEGABRTA
FEiEZ AR

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable inputs

Fair value as at Valuation Relationship of unobservable
31 March 2018 techniques Key unobservable inputs Weighted average price inputs to fair value
R-E-N§

ZR=t-HZAYE HERE TEFTRRGAE mERLE FTABRERAEEATEZBE
HK$

B

(1) Completed properties held for rental purpose

FHFHBRRNZERRNZ

Xi'an Commercial Complex - fair values determined by Colliers

BERBEAE-BNEELAVE

HK$2,373,049,000
(RMB1,916,000,000)

2,373,049,0003% 7.
(AE#1,916,000,0007T)

Income capitalisation
approach

WABER(LE

Monthly market rent, taking into
account the differences in
location and individual factors
such as frontage and size
between the comparables and
the property

GATSHG BERNEZR

Retail portion: RMB2.35
(equivalent to HK$2.91)/
sqm/day

Office portion: RMB0.99
(equivalent to HK$1.23)/
sqm/day

Car park portion: RMB585

The higher the rent, the higher
the fair value
Hedm ATEER

REHEERARTEL BN E
ENxZRANRESEREZ

(equivalent to HK$725)
per month per lot

TERH: AR¥235T
(1BER2.9187T)
/ERk/8

BREHH  ARB0.997T
(1BEM1.2387T)
/ERk/8

FEH: ARKSSST
(185m725%7T) / A/
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % % — /\4E=H =+ —H L4

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REYX (&)

(continued)
Fair value as at Valuation Relationship of unobservable
31 March 2018 techniques Key unobservable inputs Weighted average price inputs to fair value
R=B-N%F
ZA=Z+-BZAYE HERE TEFTEEBAE METHE TUIRRBAERATEZBE
HK$
B

(2)  Leasehold land with undetermined future use

HAEEARBEZAALH

(i) Phase 2 of the Commercial Complex - fair value determined by Colliers

BEABE_H-3NEE2ATE

The higher the price, the higher
the fair value

BtER ATESS

HK$159,773,000
(RMB129,000,000)
159,773,000/ 7T
( A %129,000,0007T)

RMB1,308 (equivalent to
HK$1,620)/sqm

AR®1,308T
(18%M1,62087) /T %

Direct market approach
EETSE

Price per square metre of gross
floor area which derived
location, and individual
factors, respective plot
ratio, using direct market
comparables and taking into
account of adjustments on
location

RENEZBBEREZETH
KAERUREFRZREWA
BE URABEETHAENL
BUBRE R E 2 BE

(i)~ Hanzhong Land - fair value determined by Colliers

EPt-mhEELATE

HK$62,298,000 Direct market approach Price per square metre of gross  Commercial land: RMB204 The higher the price, the higher

(RMB50,300,000) BEMRE floor area which derived from  (equivalent to HK$253)/sqm the fair value
62,298,000/ 7T the area of land and respective Residential land: RMB253 BRES DTEYS
(AR #50,300,0007T) plot ratio, using direct market  (equivalent to HK$313)/sqm
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comparables and taking into
account of adjustments on

location, land use right terms
and development scale factor

BET: ARB2047T
(BERS3BT) /FH*

FEETi: ARK3T
(BERIBT) /FHK

REtHEREEERRELE
FHABRRAERREE ¥
FREETSTALREER
SHRAMNLE THRAEE
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REYX (&)
(continued)

Fair value as at Valuation Relationship of unobservable
31 March 2018 techniques Key unobservable inputs Weighted average price inputs to fair value
R=B-N%F
ZA=Z+-BZAYE HERE TEFTEEBAE METHE TUIRRBAERATEZBE
HK$
B

(3)  Investment properties under construction

ERREANE

(i) ChinlinkeWorldport (Retail portion & accommodation/office portion) - fair values determined by Colliers

LR MR (RERDRER/MAEHD) -BHEELATE

HK$737,676,000 Residual approach (i) Market rent, taking into Retail portion: RMB4,306 The higher the market rent, the
(RMB595,600,000) HHEE account the differences (equivalent to HK$5,333)/sqm higher the fair value
737,676,000 7T in location, and individual Accommodation/office portion:  THMEHE  ATELR
( AR %595,600,0007C) factors, such as frontage RMB2,736 (equivalent to
and building age, HK$3,389)/sqm
between the comparables  Warehouse portion: RMB280
and the property (equivalent to HK$347)/sqm

mEle LEEMEZR
REMnRARTELSR TEHH : ARHK4,3067T (HER
anEzRnERSEN  5333%1) Ik
SRS B/ HAEHS  ARHE2,736
T (15 13,389% L) /F 3k
BEHNS  ARB2807T (HEH

UTER) /TR R
(i) Expected developer profit 10% The higher the expected
ERREEEN developer profit, the lower
the fair value
BRREERNES
AFEYE
(iii) Construction cost to RMB7,000,000 The higher the cost, the lower
complete AR #%7,000,00070 the fair value
BETHAA KAME A TERE
(iv) Discount rate 9.5% The higher the discount rate,
nRE the lower the fair value
FREMS ATEME
(v) Rate of finance cost 9.5% The higher the rate of finance
B R AR A % cost, the lower the fair value
HBRARERR
ATFEHE
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % % — /\4E=H =+ —H L4

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REYX (&)
(continued)

Fair value as at Valuation Relationship of unobservable
31 March 2018 techniques Key unobservable inputs Weighted average price inputs to fair value
R=B-N%F
ZA=Z+-BZAYE HERE TEFTEEBAE METHE TUIRRBAERATEZBE
HK$
B

(3)  Investment properties under construction (continued)

ERRENE (B)

(i)~ Zhong Hui investment property - fair values determined by Colliers

PERENE-RNEEIATE

HK$538,767,000 Residual approach (i) Market price, taking into Retail portion: RMB14,572 The higher the market rent, the
(RMB435,000,000) HHEE account the differences (equivalent to HK$18,048)/sqm  higher the fair value
538,767,000 7T in location, and individual ~ Office portion:RMBS,096 mEeds ATEES
( AR #435,000,0007T) factors, such as frontage  (equivalent to HK$10,028)/sqm
and building age, Car park portion: RMB3,795
between the comparables  (equivalent to HK$4,700)/sqm
and the property TEHH ARE14,5727 (

ME EERUEZERE  BEM8048ET) /TFHK
EWRARATELENE BOARHH ARES0967T
BMEZRMNERSEN  (HSR10,028%T) /FAK
kS BEIHS ARE3,7957

(54,7008 7T) /F 3k

(i) Expected developer profit 10% The higher the expected
EHRREH RN developer profit, the lower
the fair value
AREEERNEE
RTEHE
(i) Construction cost to RMB42,531,000 The higher the cost, the lower
complete AR 42,531,000 the fair value
BETERA KA#RE A TERE
(iv) Discount rate 7.1% The higher the discount rate,
R % the lower the fair value

AREEE ATELE

(v) Rate of finance cost 7.1% The higher the rate of finance
B AR & cost, the lower the fair value
HRRANEER R TEEE
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REYX (&)
(continued)

Fair value as at Valuation Key unobservable inputs Weighted average price Relationship of unobservable
31 March 2017 techniques inputs to fair value
RZB-t& HERE IETAREAAE mETHE FTUBERBAE
ZA=+-AZATHE HAYEZBE
HKS
B

(1) Completed properties held for rental purpose

BEHERNZERRYE

Xi'an Commercial Complex - fair values determined by Ascent Partners

AREERE-UEEE 22 TE

HK$2,034,090,000 Direct market approach Price per square metre of gross  Retail portion: RMB10,852 The higher the price, the higher
(RMB1,802,000,000) ERTEE floor area which derived from (equivalent to HK$12,249)/sqm  the fair value
2,034,090,000% 7T the construction area, using  Office portion: RMBS,648 BiREE DTESR
(AR #1,802,000,0007T) direct market comparables (equivalent to HK$6,375)/sqm
and taking into account of Car park portion: RMB4,360
adjustments on location, (equivalent to HK$4,922)/sqm
footfall and development scale &5 : AR%10,8527T
factor (REM2,209%T0) /FH K

REREERZEEARRLE MAZHH: ARMS 648
FHAER YRAEETSE  (BER63TSHL) /K
AEALEHERCH RGN BEUHH ARB43607T
E-RRREERERZ A  (BSR492%T) /FHk
B
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % % — /\4E=H =+ —H L4

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(continued)

16.

REWE (&)

Fair value as at Valuation Key unobservable inputs Weighted average price Relationship of unobservable
31 March 2017 techniques inputs to fair value
RZB—t& HERE TEFUREAAR mEFHE FUBRBAE
ZA=Z+-BZAYE HATEZBE
HKS$
BT

(2)  Leasehold land with undetermined future use
HAEEARBEZHELH
(i) Phase 2 of the Commercial Complex - fair value determined by Ascent Partners

BEANEE_H-JUHTEEE A TE

HK$143,357,000 Direct market approach
(RMB127,000,000)  EEMHE
143,357,000 70
(AR
127,000,0007T)
(i) Hanzhong Land - fair value determined by Colliers

EnI-RNETZATE

HK$79,016,000
(RMB70,000,000)
79,016,000 7
( AR #70,000,0007T)

ERMSE
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Direct market approach

Price per square metre of gross
floor area which derived from
the area of land and respective
plot ratio, using direct market
comparables and taking into
account of adjustments on
location, land use right terms
and development scale factor

RELHARZLEERRLE
FhAkERREHARR I
RREETSTALBREER
BARRNE tHEREF
BRERAERZZHE

Price per square metre of gross
floor area which derived from
the area of land and respective
plot ratio, using direct market
comparables and taking into
account of adjustments on
location, land use right terms
and development scale factor

RETHAB LRERELE
FhAERREBARE ¥
RREETSIELEEER
EARME  LHERET
MEERAERZ AR

RMB1,293 (equivalent to
HK$1,459)/sgm

AR®1,293T
(185,459 ) /%

Commercial land: RMB185
(equivalent to HK$209)/sqm
Residential land: RMB223
(equivalent to HK$252)/sqm
HEA: ARB185T
(185 m209% ) /T H %
EEAN: ARB23T
(RER2528TT) /FH %

The higher the price, the higher
the fair value

BtER ATESS

The higher the price, the higher
the fair value
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16.
(continued)
Fair value as at Valuation Key unobservable inputs
31 March 2017 techniques
RZB—t& HES TEFUREAAR
ZB=t-R2AYE
HK$
BT

Weighted average price

MEFHIE

REWE (&)

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
FUBRBAE
HATEZBE

(3)  Investment properties under construction

ERREANE

ChinlinkeWorldport (Retail portion & accommodation/office portion) - fair values determined by Colliers

EEG MR (RERDRER/WAERD) -BHEELATE

HK$549,723,000 Residual approach (i) Market rent, taking into
(RMB487,000,000) HBEE account the differences
549,723,0007% 7T in location, and individual
(AR %487,000,0007T) factors, such as frontage

and building age,
between the comparables
and the property

mEle EERNEZE
RERETH A RAELR
NEANEENERS
ERIEE

(i) Expected developer profit
REFEEERH

(i) Construction cost to
complete

BETMRA

(iv) Discount rate

RRE

(v) Rate of finance cost

MR AR
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Retail portion: RMB3,881
(equivalent to HK$4,381)/sqm

Accommodation/office portion:
RMB2,140 (equivalent to
(HK$2,415)/sqm

TEHH: AR¥3,881
(18%m4,38187) /FH %

TR/ HARHS
ARE2,1407T
(15R2,M5%87) /FH%

10%

RMB56,250,000
AR #56,250,0007

9.5%

9.5%

Annual Report 2018 4 it

The higher the market rent, the
higher the fair value

mEledE ATELR

The higher the expected
developer profit, the lower
the fair value

EHREEENNE
AFEYE

The higher the cost, the lower
the fair value

RAMS R FEMEE

The higher the discount rate,
the lower the fair value

RREHES ATELE

The higher the rate of finance
cost, the lower the fair value

FHRANEES A TELE
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

GOODWILL mE
HK$'000
FExT
CoSsT N
At 1 April 2017 and RZE—+FMUA—BRK
31 March 2018 —E-N\F=ZA=1+—H -
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries RUEEMNE A AR EA
(note 40) (B a£40) 42,716
At 31 March 2018 RZE—NF=ZA=+—H 42,716

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
has been allocated to MCM Holdings Limited and
its subsidiaries which are principally engaged in the

financial advisory services, together as one CGU.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a
5-year period, and a discount rate of 14%. The
cash flows projections beyond the 5-year period
are extrapolated using a steady 3% growth rates.
This growth rate is based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts and does not exceed the average
long-term growth rate for the relevant industry.
Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/
outflows which include budgeted sales and gross
margin, such estimation is based on the unit's
past performance and management’s expectations
for the market development. The directors of the
Company believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount of the assets
of the CGU to exceed the aggregate recoverable
amount of the CGU.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

17. GOODWILL (continued) 17. BE (&)
During the year ended 31 March 2018, the HE-_Z- \HE=ZA=+—HL#F
directors of the Company determined that there is E-AArEEREHEBELERE:

no impairment of the goodwill.

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 18. HAHHHERE
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Unlisted investment: FETERE:

— equity securities, at cost —ERES KA 1,239 -
The unlisted equity investment represent investment FELETREIRERN MM L
in unlisted equity securities issued by a private CMABRBBET I IITRARESFR
entity incorporated in Singapore. It was measured & o HNMEMRIBER AR EF=
at cost less impairment at end of the reporting REAEEAFEMGTHERK L
period because the range of reasonable fair value MARRIZEEFRRA AT ETEASES
estimates was so significant that the directors of =i

the Company were of the opinion that the fair

value cannot be measured reliably.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

PREPAYMENT AND DEPOSIT PAID
FOR A LIFE INSURANCE POLICY
During the year, Chinlink Alpha Limited (“Chinlink
Alpha”) which is the subsidiary of the Group,
entered into a life insurance policy with an
insurance company on Mr. Li, a director of the
Company. Under the policy, Chinlink Alpha, being
the beneficiary and policy holder, is required to
pay an upfront payment for the policy. Chinlink
Alpha may request a partial surrender or full
surrender of the policy at any time and receive
cash back based on the value of the policy at the
date of withdrawal, which is determined by the
gross premium paid at inception plus accumulated
guaranteed interest earned and minus insurance
premium charged (the “Cash Value”). If such
withdrawal is made at any time during the first
to the fifteenth policy year, as appropriate, a pre-
determined specified surrender charge would be
imposed.

At the inception date, the upfront payment is
separated into deposit placed, prepayment of
life insurance premium and prepaid charges,
amounting to US$1,431,000 (equivalent to
HK$11,228,000), US$92,000 (equivalent to
HK$725,000) and US$17,000 (equivalent to
HK$131,000), respectively, according to the terms
set out in the policy. The prepayment of life
insurance premium is amortised to profit or loss
over the insured period and the deposit placed is
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The deposit placed for the life insurance
policy carries guaranteed interests at interest rate
of 2.25% per annum plus a premium determined
by the insurance company during the tenures of the
policy. The effective interest rate of 2.79% on initial
recognition was determined by discounting the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the insurance policy, excluding the financial
effect of surrender charge.
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19. PREPAYMENT AND DEPOSIT PAID 19. ASRBREZASRERE
FOR A LIFE INSURANCE POLICY Fi&E (&)
(continued)
Particulars of the insurance policy are as follows: REREFBFOT:

Guaranteed interest rates

BRA=
Insured sum Upfront payment The first Sixth year
five years and onwards
BREE SRNEREN BEF EXNERAEZ
US$5,019,000 (equivalent to US$1,540,000 (equivalent to 3.90% per annum 2.25% per annum
HK$39,384,000) HK$12,084,000) FF3.90% B§F2.25%
5,019,000 7T 1,540,000% 7T
(#H%%39,384,0007%8 7T ) (18%7412,084,0007% 7T )
The carrying amounts of deposit placed and RZE-NF=ZA=+—H ' ASER
prepayment of life insurance premium at 31 March RREB OIS RIENFIBZEE
2018 are set out as below: BEFN BT
2018
—E-N\F
HK$000
FERT
Deposit paid EfEZEe 11,387
Prepayment TE IR 701
Prepaid charges ER &R 127
12,215

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ [ v 4 [ B 7 it 5 R 2+ ] Annual Report 2018 4 #i




20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

REFUNDABLE DEPOSIT FOR LAND
AUCTION

The amount represents refundable earnest money
of RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to HK$28,220,000
at 31 March 2017) paid to the PRC government
authority for the expropriation of land for auction
to be held by the PRC government authority.
The purpose for acquisition of the land is for the
phase 1 development of a construction material
wholesale and logistics park (“Project”) in
Hanzhong City of the PRC. Such earnest money
would be refunded by the relevant authority of
the PRC upon the completion of the auction. The
auction was completed in June 2014 and the land
has been included in investment properties under
construction.

The Group originally intended to acquire the
adjacent land for the development of phase 2 of
the Project and used the earnest money to offset
the land cost upon acquisition of the adjacent
land. During the year ended 31 March 2018, after
further consideration of the development progress,
the Group has requested the earnest money to be

refunded and settlement was received.
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21.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO FORMER
SUBSIDIARIES
Amounts due from/to former subsidiaries are

unsecured and non-interest bearing.

The amounts due to former subsidiaries with
principal amount of approximately HK$9,536,000
was initially with no fixed repayment term and
repayable on demand. Agreements were entered
with former subsidiaries on 31 March 2016 and
agreed that the amounts due to former subsidiaries
are repayable on 31 March 2019. Accordingly, such
balances are classified as non-current liabilities at
31 March 2017 using effective interest method of
14% per annum. During the year ended 31 March
2018, imputed interest expense of HK$1,028,000
(2017: HK$900,000) was recognised to profit or
loss and the carrying amount of HK$8,365,000 is
shown under current liabilities at 31 March 2018.

Amounts due from former subsidiaries initially do
not have a fixed repayment terms. As at 31 March
2016, the directors of the Company reassessed
the expected settlement time and consider the
former subsidiaries would be able to settle the
amounts due to the Group with principal value of
HK$17,684,000 on 31 March 2019. Accordingly,
such balances are classified as non-current assets at
31 March 2017 using effective interest method of
14% per annum. During the year ended 31 March
2018, imputed interest income of HK$1,905,000
(2017: HK$1,670,000) was recognised to profit or
loss and the carrying amount of HK$15,512,000
is included in the balance of amounts due from
former subsidiaries shown under current assets
at 31 March 2018. The remaining balance of
HK$5,793,000 is repayable on demand.

21.

FE W FE A4 A B BB X B AR IH

FEHs, e A< AT BT BB 2 R BRI A R
KRBB -

A& A #19,536,0007% JT 2 & 1+ Al #
BAARESVYERETEERPRE
BREREBBE-ARAIR_ZT—AEF=
A=+ —BHEgkB ARG iR
BEEMAMBARKREANRZSE
—NEZA=+—RAEE-A ©
—TE—+E=ZA=+—B ZEHF
REF14% 2 BEMNBEDEEIER
PaE-#HEz_T - NF=ZA=1+—
AIEFE - (HEREF%1,028,000%
70 (=% —+ 4 : 900,000 70) KA 18
HWFER M IRMEES, 365,000 05 A&
R-ZE—-NFZA=Z+—RBzhrdsa

f&e

FEURRT I B A RIBR B AR W) I & F 18
HHe-RZZE—AR"E=ZA=+—8"
RABESEHTEHERENHR
TRBAMBABBINR=ZZ—NEF
A=+ —RENBEXRAEBZHRIE
(A% &17,684,00087T) A It B
TE—+FEZA=+—H ZESBE
BEFI14% 2 BERENEEZDEEIER
FEE-HE_T—N\F=-H=71—
HIEFE HEFEUAIT,905,000%
T (ZZE—+%:1,670,000/ L)
Bam AR LIREE5,512,000% 7T
FARZZE-NEZA=+—AHZR
HEEBE N ZERAMBAREEZ
4EER o R T A5 845,793,000 TTAEK B

B

o
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FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

Certain plant and machinery of the Group are
leased out under finance leases. All interest rates
inherent in the leases are fixed at the contract date

over the lease terms.

22.

EHmEREERE
AEBREMELAELEE THRE R
Hez-FrEHEREMETHYRNEHA
ZEHHEBEE-

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
TExT FET
Analysed as: WA
— Current assets —REEE 76,531 -
- Non-current assets —JERBEE 125,269 -
201,800 -
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22.

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 22.

(continued)

Minimum lease

FEUWmEHERE (&)

Present value of

payments minimum lease payments
BEAESR BREHAENARZEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-NE  —TF ZB-NFE —TLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET TER THET
Finance lease receivables EURMERETERSE:
comprise:
Within one year —FR 97,873 - 76,531 -
In more than one year but ~ —F &R
not more than two years TEBMEF 88,214 - 77,794 -
In more than two years but ~ &A% E
not more than five years THEBLF 56,936 - 47,475 -
243,023 - 201,800 -
Less: unearned B AR
finance income BEMWA (41,223) - N/ATE A N/AT i F
Present value of minimum  &IEEUIEE
lease payment receivables ZEE 201,800 -
Less: Amount due for B ARI2EAR
settlement within HEZHE
12 months (shown Cily=yik
under current assets) BE) (76,531) -
Amount due for settlement  ZER12MH BB &S
after 12 months Z B 125,269 -

Effective interest rates of the above finance leases
range from 12.89% to 19.66% per annum.

Finance lease receivables are secured over the plant
and machinery leased.

FRBEREZEEANENTFEE
12.89%%219.66% °

FEW Bt & E RIS AP E R B K
MR R -
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INVENTORIES 23. FE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FHT
Raw materials R = 5
Finished goods 217X, i 872 2,838
872 2,843
TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN 24, EREFRE BERERKEWK
RECEIVABLES AND BILLS EiE
RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables FEUNE FHER18
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Trade receivables FEWE 5 8R1B 100,844 31,112
Less: Allowances for bad and B RIZEER
doubtful debts BiE (567) (1,399)
100,277 29,713
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN 24, BRESKRE BRERKER
RECEIVABLES AND BILLS EE (&)
RECEIVABLES (continued)
Trade receivables (continued) JEIWNE FHR1E (&)
The following is an aging analysis of trade BERRERARZEZEAHZF|EIR
receivables (net of allowance for bad and doubtful BSERE (R RERER) 2REKRD
debts) presented based on the invoice date at the T

end of the reporting period:

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FHEIT

0—30 days TEr=+1+H 86,365 5,415

31—90 days =+—HBENATH 10,774 24,079

> 90 days =l 3,138 219

100,277 29,713
The Group's credit terms for its major customers of AEBRTEERARMHIEREEBE
interior decoration work and international trading HZEIBEFPZEENBERLRE
are usually 7 days to 1 year. The credit terms —F o AEELATEARMITRERE
granted by the Group to other trade debtors of BB EMBSEBAZEEN—

interior decoration work and international trading mAE=1TH:

are normally 30 days.

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ [ v 4 [ B 7 it 5 R 2+ ] Annual Report 2018 4 #i




24,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN
RECEIVABLES AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

Customers related to financing guarantee services
are required to settle either on monthly instalments
in arrear or upon signing of the financing guarantee
services contracts or relevant consultancy services
contracts. As at 31 March 2018, among the trade
receivables, balances of HK$578,000 (2017:
HK$78,000) are related to financing guarantee
services which was aged within 30 days (2017:
HK$78,000 was aged within 30 days).

The Group's credit terms for its customers related
to logistics services and financial advisory services
are normally 30 days.

Before accepting any new customers, the Group
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality
by investigating their historical credit record and
defines credit limits by customers on individual
basis. Recoverability and credit limit of the existing
customers are reviewed by the Group regularly.
Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances
are receivables with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$83,549,000 and HK$29,198,000 as at 31
March 2018 and 2017, respectively, which are
neither past due nor impaired. The directors of the
Company considered that trade receivables which
are neither past due nor impaired are of good
credit quality and there are continuous subsequent
settlements from these customers.
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F=ZA=1+—H0 REKESKREH "
578,000/ L (= F —+ 4 : 78,000/8
TL) 2 EREREERRS AR Rk
B=THA(ZZ—+1F 78,0008 T
HEZERAZTAR) -
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E o

EEZEFRHFEFPAH AEEEHRE
HBEEECBRMABZEERRP
ZERERRRENERARAEREFE
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN 24, BRESKRE BRERKER
RECEIVABLES AND BILLS 2B (&)
RECEIVABLES (continued)
Trade receivables (continued) JEIWNE FHR1E (&)
Included in the Group's trade receivable balance AEEEKESRBEESRA ZER
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of IRI5 2 B HRTEE £16,728,000% 7T
HK$16,728,000 (2017: HK$515,000) which are ZE—+F:51500087T) R
past due as at 31 March 2018 for which the Group E-NFZA=Z+—BIHEAEHAKRAK
has not provided for impairment loss. The Group SEYARBREEBRELE®R K&
does not hold any collateral over these trade WA ZEREKE S RIERE A
receivables. The average age of these receivables is BERGD - ZERBEREZRETEH AR
22 days (2017: 52 days). Z+ZH(ZE—+tF A +=H)-
Aging of trade receivables which are past due but BB EERBE C ERE 5 KB 2 Bk
not impaired e
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET
0—30 days Tx=+H 8,325 -
31—90 days =+—H=E=N+H 5,265 505
91—365 days n+—HZ=BA-THH 2,582 10
> 365 days —BEANTHHMRLE 556 -
Total at 16,728 515
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TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN
RECEIVABLES AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but

not impaired (continued)

In the opinion of the directors of the Group, trade
receivables in relation to financing guarantee
services are not significant. For the remaining
balances, the Group has maintained long term
relationship with those existing customers who
have a strong financial position with continuous
subsequent settlement and there is no historical
default of payments by the respective customers.
The Group has assessed the recoverability of these
customers and consider that there has not been
a significant change in their credit quality. The
directors of the Company believe that the amounts

are still recoverable.

24,

EWE 5 RIE BRERKER
5B (#)

BEBEBERREZEEESEREZKE
e (&)

AEBEERS BEERREZIE
WEZRBLTEKR - BREHTE -
SEEZFREEFPRERB#EE
REBEFPHRAEREMBMRRL B FF
BRERN BEMKBERL EIE
R AEBEFEREEPERE
NAERBRBREZEEEEZRBEAR
o ARNREFHEZERRDAR
PAdg m o

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful RIZEREE
debts
2018 2017
—E-N\F —TtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Balance at 1 April RO A—B 2 &% 1,399 1,672
Amount written off as H3E (E S AT e m
uncollectible A (587) -
Impairment losses recognised MIEWE 5 ERIBHER
on trade receivables VRN kit 121 -
Amount recovered during the year & [ Ug[6] 7 & 58 (366) (273)
Balance at 31 March R=A=+—HB2&#% 567 1,399
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24,

TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN
RECEIVABLES AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful
debts (continued)

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts included
individually impaired trade receivables with
an aggregate balance of HK$567,000 (2017:
HK$1,399,000) which had been in financial
difficulties or had disputes with the Group. The
directors of the Company make impairment losses
based on the recoverability of trade receivables.
The directors determine the allowance for bad
and doubtful debts with reference to the credit
history of customers, age of debts, collateral
receivable, past settlement records and subsequent

settlements.

Trade receivables from related companies

As at 31 March 2018, trade receivables from related
companies of HK$269,000 (2017: nil) were aged
within 30 days based on the invoice date at the end
of the reporting period.

24,

BWEZIRE  BRERRER
5B (#)

RIZEBELEEDEVIEE# I EAR
SEEDBEZERREEKE K
AR BB R567,0008 70 (ZE—+
%:1,399,0008 L) c AR A EER
B EWE 5 BR8] e B 1 e R
BEEE EF2EEFP2EERL 8
EIRE - AT B G  BEAE L
REGREBEEFEET REERREME-

EWREEARZE ZRE
R-ZE—N\F=ZA=+—H8 EKHA
BNRIZE 5RE269,00008 L (==
—tEF R)RERRERREER
iR A=1THRN-
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TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN
RECEIVABLES AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Loan receivables

Loan receivables of HK$130,986,000 (2017:
HK$138,542,000) represents the outstanding
loan receivables from independent third parties
which are unsecured and carry interest at fixed-
rates ranged from 11.0% to 18.0% per annum
(2017: fixed-rates ranged from 11.0% to 18.0%
per annum). The weighted average effective
interest rate of the loan receivables is 15.60%
(2017: 15.47%) per annum. The amounts at both
31 March 2018 and 2017 are repayable within 12
months from the loan advance dates.

Bills receivables

As at 31 March 2017, bills receivables of
HK$45,308,000 were aged within 60 days from
respective date of receipt of the bills. The entire
balance of the bills receivables were discounted
to banks with recourse and their corresponding
liabilities were included in bank and other

borrowings as disclosed in note 33.
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£ :138,542,0008 7L ) 5 E W L
ZHZEABEER ZREAEK
ARBFREEMNENFIN.0%E
18.0% (ZE—tF - BHEMEXEGF
11.0%%18.0% ) 5T 8 o B E K 2 M
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24,

TRADE RECEIVABLES, LOAN
RECEIVABLES AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Transfers of financial assets

The following were the Group’s financial assets as
at 31 March 2018 and 2017 that were transferred
to banks by discounting bills receivables on a full
recourse basis. If the bills receivables are not paid
on maturity, the Group is required to pay the
unsettled balance. As the Group has not transferred
the significant risks and rewards relating to the
bills receivables, it continues to recognise the full
carrying amount of the bills receivables and has
recognised the cash received on the transfer as a
secured borrowing. The bills receivables are carried
at amortised cost in the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position.

24,

BWEZIRE  BRERRER
5B (#)

TREEER

TIHBAEBR _ZT-—NFR_F
—tF=A=t—HZ2REE M
AEBEREERBARUZE 2SR
BETRT - MERZERIHHR
X RTERBRAKRE SN KRG
B AAKRERAERERUER
Z B KRR K [0 5 A AR R R R
EEEAEEZELERERRD 2R
EREEMER - ERERAEHK
ARAEB G MR KRIIR -

Bills receivable
discounted to banks

with full recourse

MEZHEHEREZ
EERFRITZ
EBWE
2018 2017
—E-NE —E—LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Carrying amount of FrgZEEE Y
transferred assets BREE - 45,308
Carrying amount of HEaEZ
associated liabilities BREE - 45,308
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RESTRICTED DEPOSITS

The Group's short term restricted deposits
represented balances deposited in banks in the
PRC, which management believes are of high
credit quality and does not expect high credit risks
in this respect. The Group’s restricted deposits
are principal protected, with initial term of 35
days to 91 days and are restricted for obtaining
a guaranteed interest rate return and are
denominated in RMB.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

The pledged bank deposits represent deposits
placed to certain banks as securities in return for
the banks to provide loans to the Group’s financing
guarantee services customers and banking facilities
for international trading business. These pledged
bank deposits have a maturity of less than a year
as at 31 March 2018 (2017: a maturity of less than

one year).

At 31 March 2018, pledged bank deposits carry
interests at an average rate of 1.20% (2017:
1.42%) per annum.
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27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 27.

At 31 March 2018, the entire bank balances
HK$193,082,000 (2017: HK$95,988,000) are
current deposits, carrying interest at market rates
ranged from 0.01% to 0.35% (2017: 0.01% to
0.60%) per annum. The bank balances and cash
that are denominated in currencies other than
functional currency of the relevant group entities

are set out as below:

RITEERES
RZZE—NE=ZA=1+—8 " 2ZR7T
#17193,082,0008 L (ZF — 4
95,988,000/ 7T ) & )& BIfF 5 & F
FF0.01%20.35% (—ZF—+F:
0.01%%0.60% ) Z TG F M EFE »
EBREEEREUNEEBUIINZER
FEZRITEFRBSHNAT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZE—LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T T T
usD ETT 551 8,173
RMB AR 206 62
MOP SR FS T 12,608 12,655
28. TRADE PAYABLES 28. ENEZRE

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of

the reporting period:

RERREMRZEZBHE2IIEN
BHRBEZREINAOT

2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET
0—30 days TE=1H 66,611 27,841
31—90 days =+—H=EANT+H - -
> 90 days h+HBNRE 7,734 10,824
74,345 38,665

The credit period on purchases of goods is usually KEEnsEEHRER—EAZE=

@A -

from 1 month to 3 months.
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29. LOANS FROM STAFFS

29. ETER

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Loans from staffs BETEX 30,857 5,155

30.

The amount to the extent of HK$12,057,000 (2017:
HK$5,155,000) is loans from staffs employed by
two PRC subsidiaries. These loans are repayable
within a year after the date of withdrawal and
unsecured and the effective interest rate of the
loans is 12.5% (2017: 12.5%) per annum. The
remaining amount of HK$18,800,000 (2017: nil) is
loans from two employees in Hong Kong which are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable by
31 December 2018.

CONSTRUCTION COSTS ACCRUALS
The amount represented the construction costs
accrued for the Group’s investment properties
under construction.

Annual Report 2018 44t  CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % [ Ht 43 [ B2 33 it 45 i 4 W)

30.

©REE12,057,00087L (=2 —+4F:
5,155,000/ 7T ) Jh W & 1 B B B8 A 7]
BAZEBEIER - ZSERARRIVE
—FREEAEER ERZ2EBRFF
ER125% (ZZE—EF:12.5%) °
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31. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE AND 31. FAWRREREEF RE &
DEPOSITS RECEIVED FROM €
TENANTS
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHE T
Receipts in advance from: KB TFI%IEZ AU FRIE :
— International trading —ERE S 8,931 8,436
— Logistics services — ¥ AR 7% 127 145
— Property investment —MEHRE 56,656 61,726
- Financing guarantee services ~— — @& EIRRE 4,459 -
70,173 70,307
Analysed as: IATEEZ DM
Current mE 46,147 44,792
Non-current FEMRB 24,026 25,515
70,173 70,307
Receipts in advance from property investment REMEERE ZFEWRFIAEERPE]
represented the rental income and management VZREMEEERB CENETZ
fees received in advance under the contracts of FEWHSRAREREE -ZEHIEBRE
provision of property management services with B TAMGRIE R M P WA 2 R & 5 5
tenants. The amounts are non-interest bearing. RIFAEEERSETRERAAE
Receipts in advances and deposits received from HomesnBRIERDAG (FWA
tenants are classified as current and non-current BG #FTa) o

liabilities based on the timing of performance of
the related management services and the expiry of
rental periods respectively as stated on the relevant

contracts.
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AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED
COMPANIES, A DIRECTOR AND
ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY
Amounts due to related companies in which the
controlling shareholder of the Company (who is
also a director of the Company) has significant
influence or controlling interest to these related

companies are unsecured and non-interest bearing.

The repayment terms of certain amounts due to
related companies amounting to HK$605,766,000
ranged from two years to five years. Accordingly,
such balances are classified as non-current
liabilities as at 31 March 2018 and adjustment
on their carrying amounts using the effective
interest rate of 14.0% per annum amounting to
HK$47,780,000 was recognised in profit and loss
and HK$16,627,000 was recognised in equity, and
the imputed interest expense of HK$19,182,000
was recognised to profit or loss. The remaining
balances of the amounts due to related companies
amounting to HK$68,186,000 are repayable on
demand and classified as current liabilities.

Amounts due to directors and ultimate holding
company are unsecured, non-interest bearing and

repayable on demand.

Annual Report 2018 44t  CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % [ Ht 43 [ B2 33 it 45 i 4 W)

32.

BNBERT —BREER
RAERRARRE

N RERAR (RRARZERER (71
RARBTESF) NAFHERAREEXN
FENYEBIED) RARBEMANE

B o
N

[

FE{S BEE A B 2 & T 718605,766,000
BULZEFANTMFEZRF - Atk

ZEEBN T N\F=ZA=+—

HoBEAFERBAE MERAEERF
EEEFI40%TENREOERES
¥H47,780,000/8 L N 18 25 A FE R
16,627,000/ T N NHER - A K&
HEF B FIX19,182,000/8 LA 18 25
NHER - ENBERREREBE B T &%
68,186,000/ T AIE ERKEE W H
EARBAaE-

ENEEREERERA
B &/,\EETE g

BRI S IR




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

%ok 11 B B e 2 M Bk

For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

33. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 33. (BITREMER

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Borrowings related to bills HEAEREZEHRER
discounted with recourse EBAZE - 45,308
Bank borrowings, secured RITENR - BEA 960,398 968,477
Other borrowings, unsecured HhE 5 IR 125,368 58,060
Bank overdraft RITHEX 9,908 5,001
1,095,674 1,076,846
Carrying amount repayable*: JEEZRREE -
Within one year —F KN 678,956 409,168
More than one year, but not midm—F N
exceeding two years 168 38 R 5F 345,718 277,806
More than two years, but not midmma - S
exceeding five years BilARF 54,496 367,547
More than five years BBRF 11,966 16,932
1,091,136 1,071,453
Carrying amount of the bank SEREREEGRZ
borrowings that contains a RITEREmE
repayable on demand clause (BTRRBEEET)
(shown under current liabilities)
— Within one year ——FR 914 881
— More than one year, but not — il —FET
exceeding two years 7B iR W 909 879
- More than two year, but not  —#BBMFET
exceeding five years HRiA T F 2,715 3,633
1,095,674 1,076,846
Less: Amount due within one year i : —F RN E| Bk & F %
or contains a repayable B SRAE R RRI B R
on demand clause shown RRBEEET
under current liabilities ZHRIE (683,494) (414,561)
Amount shown under ERBABET AR
non-current liabilities ZBRIA 412,180 662,285
* The amounts due are based on scheduled DHRBE IR IR E RS s EE

repayable dates set out in loan agreements.

BrEFAHESR-
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BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(continued)

The banks overdraft carried interest at Hong Kong
Prime Interest Rate (2017: Hong Kong Prime

Interest Rate) per annum.

At 31 March 2018, the Group’s variable-rate
bank borrowings of HK$960,398,000 (2017:
HK$968,477,000) carry interest rate at Hong Kong
Interbank Offer Rate (“"HIBOR") plus 2.5%/3.75%
or Hong Kong deposit rate plus 0.5% or London
Interbank Offer Rate (“LIBOR") plus 2.0% or based
rate fixed by People’s Bank of China ("PBOC Rate”)
plus a premium per annum (2017: HIBOR plus
2.5%/3.75% or Hong Kong deposit rate plus 0.5%
or LIBOR plus 2.0% or based rate fixed by PBOC

Rate plus a premium per annum).

As at 31 March 2018, other borrowings are
unsecured, carry interest at a fixed-rate of 12.0%,
12.5% or 18.0% per annum (2017: a fixed-rate
12.0% or 12.5% per annum) and are repayable
at maturity dates ranged from 20 April 2018 to
21 March 2019 (2017: 22 April 2017 to 23 March
2018).
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33. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 33. RITREMER (&)
(continued)
The ranges of effective interest rates per annum REERITREMERZ FERMX
(which are also equal to contracted interest rates) BE (MBERALOMERR)NT:
on the Group’s bank and other borrowings are as
follows:
2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—tF
Effective interest rate: BEIEFE:

Fixed-rate borrowings & 7E F R B 5% 12.00% —18.00% 12.00% —12.50%
Variable-rate borrowings FEEEFEEH 1.37% —7.13% 1.25%—7.50%
At 31 March 2018, the variable-rate bank R-ZZ—)N\FZA=+—H AEEMN
borrowings of approximately HK$960,398,000 AR{E 15,067,000/ (ZF—t%F:
(2017: HK$968,477,000) are secured by the 15,676,000 7C) 2 %  BiE R & i@
Group's property, plant and equipment with A F1EA3,134,628,0008 T (=&
carrying value of HK$15,067,000 (2017: —+ % :2,662,829,0008 ) 2 & &
HK$15,676,000) and investment properties W) 5 VE I 1R AR5 49960,398,00078 7T
with fair value of HK$3,134,628,000 (2017: (ZZ—+% :968,477,0007 7T ) 2 3E

HK$2,662,829,000). BElE M ERITER -
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS
10.0% Convertible bonds

On 23 December 2015, the Company and
an investor entered into a convertible bonds
subscription agreement and pursuant to which the
Company agreed to place convertible bonds with
aggregate principal amount of US$10,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$77,505,000) to
the investor with maturity date on 29 June 2017
(the "10.0% Convertible Bonds”). The issue of
10.0% Convertible Bonds was completed on 30
December 2015.

The 10.0% Convertible Bonds were issued at par
and carried an interest rate of 10.0% per annum,
which was payable semi-annually in arrear from the
date of issue. The holder of the 10.0% Convertible
Bonds has the option to either convert them into
the Company’s ordinary shares at a conversion price
of HK$6.75 per share, subject to conversion price
adjustments, (including share consolidation, share
subdivision, share reclassification, capitalisation
issue and other events which have dilutive effects
on the issued share capital of the Company as set
out in the respective subscription agreements), at
any time during the period commencing from 8
February 2016 up to the close of business on the
date falling ten days prior to the maturity date.
The conversion shares shall rank pari passu in all
respects with all other existing shares outstanding

at the date of the conversion.
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34.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
10.0% Convertible bonds (continued)

No early redemption at the option of the holders
of the 10.0% Convertible Bonds is allowed except
when (i) the shares of the Company cease to be
listed or admitted to trading, or when the shares
of the Company are suspended from trading for a
period equal to or exceeding 30 consecutive trading
days; or (i) there is a change of control over the
Company as set out in the respective subscription
agreements and trust deed.

Save as disclosed above, the terms and definitions
of the 10.0% Convertible Bonds are set out in the
respective subscription agreements and disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 24 December
2015.

The 10.0% Convertible Bonds may not exchange
a fixed number of the Company’'s own equity
instrument for a fixed amount of cash. Therefore,
the 10.0% Convertible Bonds contain two
components, the amortised cost liability component
(including closely related early redemption option)
and conversion option derivative. The fair values of
the liability component and the conversion option
derivative of the 10.0% Convertible Bonds were
determined at the respective date of issue. The
amortised cost liability component represented the
present value of the contractual stream of future
cash flows discounted using the prevailing market
interest rate of similar non-convertible instruments
on initial date of recognition. The effective interest
rate of the liability component of the 10.0%
Convertible Bonds is 24.94%. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the liability component is carried
at amortised cost while the conversion option
derivative is measured at fair value, with changes in

fair value recognised in profit or loss.

34.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
10.0% Convertible bonds (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, effective
interest of HK$10,607,000 (2017: HK$17,722,000)
was recognised in profit or loss. No Convertible
Bonds was converted and the Convertible Bonds
was fully redeemed on 29 June 2017.

3.0% Convertible bonds

As detailed in note 40, the Company issued 3.0%
convertible bonds with an aggregate amount of
HK$312,000,000 on 22 May 2017, HK$30,000,000
on 21 July 2017 and HK$28,000,000 on 22
November 2017 (collectively referred as “3.0%
Convertible Bonds"”) respectively as consideration
for acquisition of subsidiaries and the provision
of financing the construction cost of investment
property acquired through the acquisition.

The 3.0% Convertible Bonds were issued at par
and carried an interest rate of 3.0% per annum,
which was payable quarterly in arrear from the date
of issue. The 3.0% Convertible Bonds shall mature
on the date falling on the second anniversary
of the respective date of issue. The holders of
the 3.0% Convertible Bonds have the option to
convert in whole or in part of the outstanding
principal amount of the convertible bonds into the
Company’s ordinary shares at a conversion price
of HK$0.565 per share, subject to conversion price
adjustments, (including share consolidation, share
subdivision, share reclassification, capitalisation
issue and other events which have dilutive effects
on the issued share capital of the Company as set
out in the respective subscription agreements), at
any time during the period commencing from date
of issue of convertible bonds up to and including
the maturity date of the convertible bonds. The
conversion shares shall rank pari passu in all
respects with all other existing shares outstanding
at the date of the conversion.
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34.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
3.0% Convertible bonds (continued)

No early redemption of the 3.0% Convertible
Bonds is allowed by the Company and 100% of
the outstanding principal amount of the convertible
bonds shall be redeemed on the maturity date if not
converted.

The 3.0% Convertible Bonds contain liability

components and equity components.

On issuance of HK$312,000,000 convertible
bonds, the fair value of liability component of
HK$209,403,000 was recognised and the fair
value of HK$326,403,000, representing equity
element, was recognised and presented in equity
heading “convertible bonds equity reserve” at
initial recognition. The effective interest rate of
the liability component was 23.76% per annum.
Deferred tax liability of HK$16,929,000 was
recognised to the convertible bonds equity reserve

on initial recognition.

On issuance of HK$30,000,000 convertible
bonds, the fair value of liability component of
HK$20,089,000 was recognised and the fair
value of HK$9,911,000, representing equity
element, was recognised and presented in equity
heading “convertible bonds equity reserve” at
initial recognition. The effective interest rate of
the liability component was 23.88% per annum.
Deferred tax liability of HK$1,635,000 was
recognised to the convertible bonds equity reserve

on initial recognition.

34.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
3.0% Convertible bonds (continued)

On issuance of HK$28,000,000 convertible
bonds, the fair value of liability component of
HK$19,224,000 was recognised and the fair
value of HK$8,776,000,
element, was recognised and presented in equity

representing equity
heading “convertible bonds equity reserve” at
initial recognition. The effective interest rate of
the liability component was 22.44% per annum.
Deferred tax liability of HK$1,448,000 was
recognised to the convertible bonds equity reserve
on initial recognition.

The relevant fair value measurement was
carried out by Colliers, an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected to the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, part of
the 3.0% Convertible Bonds were converted into
13,716,814 ordinary shares of the Company with
an aggregate par value of HK$4,286,000. Deferred
tax liability of approximately HK$420,000 was

derecognised upon conversion.

During the year ended 31 March 2018,
effective interest was HK$50,393,000, of which
HK$4,264,000 was capitalised in investment
properties under construction and the remaining

amount was recognised in profit or loss.
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35.

COUPON BONDS
7.5% Coupon bonds

Pursuant to the bonds instrument dated 15
July 2015, 7.5% coupon bonds with principal
amount of HK$116,000,000 and HK$84,000,000
(collectively referred as the "7.5% Coupon
Bonds”) were issued by the Company at par to
independent third parties on 15 July 2015 (the
“Issue Date 1") and 31 August 2015 (the “Issue
Date 2"), respectively.

The 7.5% Coupon Bonds are denominated in HK$
and carry interest at 7.5% per annum. Interest is

payable annually in arrears.

The 7.5% Coupon Bonds will mature on the second
anniversary of the issue date which is 15 July 2017
(“Maturity Date 1”) and 31 August 2017 (the
“Maturity Date 2”). The Company can redeem
the 7.5% Coupon Bonds in whole or in part, at
par together with interest calculated at the rate of
7.5% per annum accrued thereon from Issue Date 1
and Issue Date 2 and up to the date of redemption
less any interests paid by the Company on it, by
giving not less than 10 business days’ notice to the
holder(s) of the 7.5% Coupon Bonds at any time
from the Issue Date 1 to the Maturity Date 1 and
Issue Date 2 to Maturity Date 2, respectively.

The directors of the Company considered that
the fair values of the redemption options of the
7.5% Coupon Bonds at 31 March 2017 were

insignificant.
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COUPON BONDS (continued)
7.5% Coupon bonds (continued)

Transaction costs relating to the 7.5% Coupon
Bonds of HK$16,000,000 were included in the
carrying amount of the 7.5% Coupon Bonds. The
effective interest rate of the 7.5% Coupon Bonds is

11.61% per annum.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, interest
charged on the 7.5% Coupon Bonds was
HK$8,312,000 (2017: HK$23,194,000), of
which HK$3,491,000 (2017: HK$9,708,000) was
recognised in profit or loss and HK$4,821,000
(2017: HK$13,486,000) was capitalised in

investment properties under construction.

The 7.5% Coupon Bonds were fully redeemed upon

their maturity during the year.

9.0% Coupon bonds

Pursuant to the placing agreements dated 30 June
2017 and 27 July 2017 respectively, 9.0% coupon
bonds with principal amount of HK$200,000,000,
HK$100,000,000 and HK$50,000,000 (collectively
referred as the "9.0% Coupon Bonds") were
issued by the Company at par to the independent
parties on 25 July 2017 (the
August 2017 (the "Issue Date 4") and 25 August
2017 (the “Issue Date 5") respectively.

"Issue Date 3"), 4

The 9.0% Coupon Bonds are denominated in HK$
and carry interest at 9.0% per annum. Interest is

payable annually in arrears.
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35.

COUPON BONDS (continued)
9.0% Coupon bonds (continued)

The 9.0% Coupon Bonds will mature on the second
anniversary of the Issue Date, which are 24 July
2019 (the “Maturity Date 3”), 3 August 2019
(the "Maturity Date 4") and 24 August 2019 (the
“Maturity Date 5") respectively. The Company
can redeem the 9.0% Coupon Bonds in whole or
in part, at par together with all accrued and unpaid
interest calculated at the rate of 9.0% per annum
accrued thereon from Issue Date 3, Issue Date 4
and Issue Date 5 respectively and up to the date of
redemption less any interest paid by the Company
on it by giving not less than 10 business days’
notice to the holder(s) of the 9.0% Coupon Bonds
at any time from the Issue Date 3 to the Maturity
Date 3 and Issue Date 4 to Maturity Date 4 and
Issue Date 5 to Maturity Date 5, respectively.

The directors of the Company consider that the
fair values of the redemption options of the 9.0%
Coupon Bonds at 31 March 2018 are insignificant.

Transaction costs relating to the 9.0% Coupon
Bonds of HK$21,000,000 are included in the
carrying amount of the 9.0% Coupon Bonds. The
effective interest rate of the 9.0% Coupon Bonds is
11.90% per annum.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, interest
charged on the 9.0% Coupon Bonds of
HK$26,967,000 was recognised in profit or loss.
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COUPON BONDS (continued)
12.0% Coupon bonds

Pursuant to the subscription agreement dated
1 December 2017, 12.0% coupon bonds with
principal amount of US$15,000,000 (the “12.0%
Coupon Bonds"”) were issued by the Company at
par to independent third parties on 1 December
2017 (the “Issue Date 6").

The 12.0% Coupon Bonds are denominated in US$
and carry interest at 12.0% per annum. Interest is

repayable semi-annually in arrears.

The 12.0% Coupon Bonds will mature on the
third anniversary of the Issue Date 6, which is 5
December 2020 (the “Maturity Date 6").

No early redemption of the 12.0% Coupon Bonds
is allowed by the Company except upon the
occurrence of certain events or circumstances as set

out in the bonds instrument.

Transaction costs relating to the 12.0% Coupon
Bonds of HK$3,515,000 are included in the carrying
amount of the 12.0% Coupon Bonds. The effective
interest rate of the 12.0% Coupon Bonds is
12.99% per annum.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, interest
charged on the 12.0% Coupon Bonds of
HK$4,901,000 was recognised in profit or loss.
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36.

OBLIGATION ARISING FROM A PUT
OPTION TO A NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

On 26 October 2017, two subsidiaries of the
Company, Chinlink Mega Limited (”“Chinlink
Mega”) and Chinlink Finance Lease Company
Limited (“Chinlink Finance Lease”), entered into
a capital increase agreement with FF & FR1% & 12 J%
A A 7F)("Zhong Jinlv") in relation to the capital
injection by Zhong Jinlv into Chinlink Finance Lease
and the respective rights and obligations of Chinlink
Mega and Zhong Jinlv in Chinlink Finance Lease
after the capital increase. The maximum capital
injection by Zhong Jinlv is RMB120 million which
will be made in stages.

On the same date, the parties also entered into a
put option agreement pursuant to which Zhong
Jinlv shall be granted a right to request Chinlink
Mega or its nominee to acquire its shareholding
interest in Chinlink Finance Lease during the period
of 30 days from the third anniversary of the date
of the first capital contribution by Zhong Jinlv
or upon the occurrence of certain events during
the period from the date of registration with the
relevant PRC industry and commerce authorities
of the first capital contribution by Zhong lJinlv to
the third anniversary of the date of the first capital
contribution by Zhong lJinlv. The consideration for
the repurchase of the relevant shareholding interest
shall be equal to the amount of capital contributed
by Zhong Jinlv in Chinlink Finance Lease, and
payable in cash by Chinlink Mega or its nominee
to Zhong Jinlv within 20 business days from the

receipt of the written notice from Zhong Jinlv.
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OBLIGATION ARISING FROM A PUT 36. MIEERRRE LA LEE
OPTION TO A NON-CONTROLLING BEZEE (&)
SHAREHOLDER (continued)

Chinlink Finance Lease was wholly-owned by TEFSREAEREPIE2EHR
Chinlink Mega. After capital injection, the ﬁ°§§5§§?§’%¢3|§iﬁ&qﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ’\ﬁt
percentage shareholding of Chinlink Mega and ErsmEHE RET D LD RIE
Zhong Jinlv in Chinlink Finance Lease became 7%62.5% }%37.5% °

62.5% and 37.5% respectively.

At initial recognition, the obligation arising from A HERRT - [M IEE IR AR BRI R
the put option to the non-controlling shareholder 5E%$EF$Z7¥KTE?EI{EFHE\EEEZ{:’I4%)
represents the present value of the obligation TNHBERBSEAELRE ZX
to deliver the purchase consideration amount HERERA P BRARER  WHEE
using a discount rate of 14%. This amount has RIEERRE RS Tl R ©

been recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position with a corresponding debit to the
non-controlling interests.

DEFERRED TAXATION 37. EZEHIE

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities RREFEERMMER 2 ERRELERIE
recognised and movements thereon during both BEREZHET:

years:

Tax allowance
Fair value  on financing

gain on guarantee 3.0%
investment contracts convertible
properties recognised bonds Total
BRABE 3.0%
RENEZ BREHNZ GIE-Y:s
ATENE BWER B BEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TER THER THER
1 April 2016 RZZ—R"EMA—H 199,803 1,114 - 200,917
Charge (credit) to nk e (GtA)
profit or loss BE 26,741 (484) - 26,257
Exchange realignment R E S (11,924) (57) - (11,981)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—tF=A=+—H 214,620 573 - 215,193
Charge to equity for the year FRINK S - - 19,592 19,592
Charge (credit) to mea (5tA)
profit or loss Bx 26,517 (179) (6,845) 19,493
Exchange realignment R ES 22,186 47 - 22,233
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\E=ZA=+—H 263,323 441 12,747 276,511
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37.

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had unused tax losses of HK$287,187,000 (2017:
HK$238,412,000) available for offsetting against
future profits which are subject to the confirmation
from Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department
and the PRC tax bureau. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised due to unpredictability of
future profit streams. As at 31 March 2018,
included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$83,472,000 which will expire in 5 years from
the year of origination which is ranged from 2019
to 2023, the remaining balances of unrecognised
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely (2017:
HK$100,900,000 which will expire in 5 years from
the year of origination which is ranged from 2018
to 2022, the remaining balances of unrecognised

tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely).

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned by the PRC subsidiary from 1 January 2008
onwards. No deferred taxation has been provided
for in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of certain PRC subsidiaries
amounting to HK$1,403,563,000 (2017:
HK$1,175,587,000) as the Company controls
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it is
probable that the profits will not be distributed in

the foreseeable future.
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38. SHARE CAPITAL 38. WA
Number Nominal
of shares value
& E (IR
HK$'000
FHEL
Ordinary shares: il
Authorised JETE
At 1 April 2016 of RZZE—RFMHHA—H
HK$0.0125 each FRT{E0.0125% T 5,000,000,000 62,500
Increase in authorised share A T AR A
capital (Note i) (KrEti) 15,000,000,000 187,500
Increase in authorised share 38 0% E A
capital (Note ii) (Hi&tii) 30,000,000,000 375,000
Share consolidation (Note /i) D& o (B aii) (48,000,000,000) -
At 31 March 2017 and RZE—+F=ZA=+—HK
31 March 2018 of —E-NFZA=+—H
HK$0.3125 each SR MEE0.31255 T 2,000,000,000 625,000
Issued and fully paid BEITEREE
At 1 April 2016 of RZE—RFNA—H
HK$0.0125 each SR MEE0.01258 T 2,791,676,819 34,896
Rights issue (Note /) g (K7ati) 13,958,384,095 174,480
Share consolidation (Note ii) a0t (B atii) (16,080,058,478) -
At 31 March 2017 of RZZE—tF=HA=+—H
HK$0.3125 each SR EEC.31258 T 670,002,436 209,376
Shares issued on REEH3.0% A] #2 A% & b5
conversion of 3.0% BT 2D
Convertible Bonds (Note iii) (B aziin ) 13,716,814 4,286
At 31 March 2018 of RZZE-—NF=A=+—H
HK$0.3125 each B ME{E0.3125% T 683,719,250 213,662
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38. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 38. WA (4&)

Note i: Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed at the Hiati: RBARFTR-_Z—RETATAI
special general meeting of the Company held at HRETBRRFENRG LBBZ
19 October 2016, the authorised share capital of TRABR AAAELREHN
the Company was increased to HK$250,000,000 15,000,000,0000% & i I #5 % i€ A%
divided into 20,000,000,000 ordinary shares by K 1% N £=250,000,0008 7T (9 A
the creation of an additional 15,000,000,000 20,000,000,0000% & & fx ) - Z
ordinary shares. Immediately following the EERAE MGG HER(EELRE
increase in authorised share capital, the rights BE-BRRHDEZRRERRKRS)
issue on the basis of five rights shares for every AW kA $£13,958,384,0950% i
one share held was effected and a total of IRIEET  BEER174,479,81178
13,958,384,095 ordinary shares were issued with JTe
an aggregate par value of HK$174,479,811.

Note ji: Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed at the Wiiti- REARXAAR T —LF=A
special general meeting of the Company held at T ERBETZREENARE L
27 March 2017, the authorised share capital of BBz EBRBR KNQAIFHEE
the Company was increased to HK$625,000,000 =% %8 9M30,000,000,000% & 3@ A
divided into 50,000,000,000 ordinary shares by 1% 7E MR AN 48 J1 £625,000,000
the creation of an additional 30,000,000,000 7 7T (9 /50,000,000,000% &
ordinary shares. Immediately following the BR) cBEREIEATERAIGME
increase in authorised share capital, the share Rmpas(EERE2RERME
consolidation on the basis of every 25 issued B0.01258B T 2 B BT RARELT
and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.0125 each LT@ERE M RIKREEC31258
consolidated into 1 share of HK$0.3125 each was TZBRMD)EEE - KR A ZE
implemented. The structure of the Company's E R AR 22 625,000,000 T
authorised share capital was changed from % A50,000,000,000% & & %
HK$625,000,000 divided into 50,000,000,000 % 5625,000,0008 .0 A
ordinary shares, to HK$625,000,000 divided 2,000,000,000f% @ik - "R A2
into 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares. The issued B 1TRR A $209,375,76 178 L0 A
share capital of the Company was changed from 16,750,060,914 L @A% & 8 &
HK$209,375,761 divided into 16,750,060,914 209,375,761 L9 £A670,002,436
ordinary shares, to HK$209,375,761 divided into & & AR o
670,002,436 ordinary shares.

Note jii: During the year ended 31 March 2018, Wi mMBE_ZT—-—NF=ZA=+—

13,716,814 ordinary shares of the Company,
with aggregate par value of approximately
HK$4,286,000 were issued upon the partial
conversion of 3.0% Convertible Bonds. Details are
set out in note 34.

HEFEAN AQARBEEBENR
4,286,000/ 70 213,716,814 &
BB RIS EIR3.0% AT R ESH
PRI BT o FHIBE H AT 7534 o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 21 September
2012 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors, eligible employee and

consultants (collectively, the “Grantees”).

On 24 April 2013, 93,100,000 share options
(the “Share Options 1") were granted to the
Grantees who are entitled to subscribe for a
total of 93,100,000 new shares at an exercise
price of HK$0.58 per share with nominal value of
HK$0.0125 each in the capital of the Company
upon the exercise of the Share Options 1 in full.
Share Options 1 granted are exercisable from 24
April 2014 to 23 April 2023 and are vested in five
tranches given that the Grantees remain in service
with the Group at the beginning of each exercisable
period with (i) 20% shall become exercisable from
24 April 2014 to 23 April 2023; (ii) 20% shall
become exercisable from 24 April 2015 to 23 April
2023; (iii) 20% shall become exercisable from 24
April 2016 to 23 April 2023; (iv) 20% shall become
exercisable from 24 April 2017 to 23 April 2023;
and (v) 20% shall become exercisable from 24 April
2018 to 23 April 2023.
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39.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(continued)

On 29 November 2013, 15,000,000 share options
(the “Share Options 2”) were granted to the
Grantees who are entitled to subscribe for a
total of 15,000,000 new shares at an exercise
price of HK$0.70 per share with nominal value of
HK$0.0125 each in the capital of the Company
upon the exercise of the Share Options 2 in full.
Share Options 2 granted are exercisable from 29
November 2014 to 28 November 2023 and are
vested in five tranches given that the Grantees
remain in service of the Group at the beginning
of each exercisable period with (i) 20% shall
become exercisable from 29 November 2014 to 28
November 2023; (ii) 20% shall become exercisable
from 29 November 2015 to 28 November 2023;
(iii) 20% shall become exercisable from 29
November 2016 to 28 November 2023; (iv) 20%
shall become exercisable from 29 November
2017 to 28 November 2023 and (v) 20% shall
become exercisable from 29 November 2018 to 28
November 2023.

39.
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EF=F+—HZ+N\BTE:
(iN20% AR = —HF+— A
—tThABEZZ-_=F+—A=+AN
BT (ii)20% AR ZF— R F
+—AZt+hBEZE-_=F+—A
—FHNANHITE: (iv20%F AR -F
—+F+—AZt+hBE-_ZE-_=%F
T—AZFTNBTE: R(v)20%# 8]
RZE2—N\F+—A=Z+LBE=Z
—=F+—A=-+NBFE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(continued)

On 17 December 2013, 4,000,000 share options
(the “Share Options 3”) were granted to the
Grantee who is entitled to subscribe for a tota
of 4,000,000 new shares at an exercise price
of HK$0.68 per share with nominal value of
HK$0.0125 each in the capital of the Company
upon the exercise of the Share Options 3 in full.
Share Options 3 granted are exercisable from 17
December 2014 to 16 December 2023 and are
vested in five tranches given that the Grantees
remain in service with the Group at the beginning
of each exercisable period with (i) 20% shall
become exercisable from 17 December 2014 to 16
December 2023; (ii) 20% shall become exercisable
from 17 December 2015 to 16 December 2023;
(iii) 20% shall become exercisable from 17
December 2016 to 16 December 2023; (iv) 20%
shall become exercisable from 17 December
2017 to 16 December 2023; and (v) 20% shall
become exercisable from 17 December 2018 to 16
December 2023.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

39. BRERTE (A)

(continued)
The table below discloses movement of the

Company'’s share options:

TREEADNT 2 BRES

Number of

share options

BREZE

At 1 April 2016 RZFE—R"FMOA—H 110,600,000
Adjustments upon rights issue (note /) TALRGETTRE (Witi) 139,542,056

Adjustments upon share
consolidation (note i)
Forfeited during the year (note iij)

I A PFHETT
JEE (KAL)
F LW aZiii)

(220,595,438)
(20,355,141)

At 31 March 2017 RZZE—tF=A=+—H 9,191,477
Forfeited during the year (note iii) F R (B i) (90,467)
At 31 March 2018 RZE—-NF=A=+—H 9,101,010

Note i. As a result of the rights issue, adjustments are
required to be made to: (i) the exercise prices
and the number of the ordinary shares falling to
be issued upon exercise of the outstanding share
options in accordance with the terms of the share
option scheme; and (ii) the conversion price of the
convertible bonds. Details of the adjustments are
set out in the announcement dated 18 November
2016.

Note ji: As a result of the share consolidation, adjustments
are required to be made to the Company’s
outstanding share options in accordance with
the terms of the share option scheme. Details of
the adjustments are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 27 March 2017.

Note iii: Share options were forfeited due to the
termination of service of certain staff and
consultants during the year.

Bratic HERSIERES - ()RR 12 B8 B i 5t 2
ZAGFRATE 18 AR AT 152 22 1 PO 7 7%
TRITNEBR ZITEERKE
Ko (ii)A] 2 B 25 2 R B (B 1 39
B -HEFBHRAMA-_T X
Ft—ATNBZRMHA-

Bratii - R A BF BRERERE S
ZAGFRET AN B AR TTE 2 BB AR A
EHAZE - AEFBHRAQAAR
HE-_T—tF=-A=-++tBHZA
G

Hatii - ARFEETETIRBERK LR
i 25 BB B B2 W -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME 39. BBRESE (&)
(continued)

The following table discloses movement of and TEREBEAAR ZATHERE .S
weighted average exercise prices of the Company's B R NEFEITEE:

exercisable share option:

2018 2017
“Z2-N\% e
Weighted Number of Weighted Number of
average  exercisable average exercisable
exercise price options  exercise price options
mEFEH Ky T A7
TRE  BREZE IHE  EREHE
HKS HK$
per share per share
=1 Bk
BT B
Exercisable at the beginning A/ A 4]
of the year 1 6.6235 5,514,886 0.600 44,240,000
Share option become RERTFTRL
exercisable during the year ~ EERR#E - 1,820,202 - 26,914,393
Adjustments upon rights issue 1 A% B 55 % - - - 78,930,841
Adjustments upon share NN
consolidation A - - - (132,357,263)
Share option forfeited during FF P32 U2
the year = - (54,280) - (12,213,085)
Exercisable at the end ARER
of the year 118 6.6124 7,280,808 6.6235 5,514,886
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 39. BBRESE (&)
(continued)
The consultants provided services related to ZEBEMRBEEEYRIRGES L
the development of logistics services business BRERRGES R RS - 25 B
and financing guarantee services business. The B LA & HEE RSB RHRS
consultants solely rendered services and reported MERKE ZBE - AHERGEASLEER
their duties to the Group since the last reporting BEREZRBEEEM-

period. Such services are similar as in nature to

those rendered by employees of the Group.

As at 31 March 2018, the number of share options R-ZZE—N\EF=ZA=1+—H REEBEH
granted expected to vest has been reduced to SERK AT - TEERER B A 2 5 B AR £ B
reflect historical experience of forfeiture of 0.90% B AR RZ 10,90 % B 15 H BB A%
of options granted prior to completion of vesting REOFELEE  RNEREERDERE
period and accordingly the share option expense AR BT REMFNTETERRE
has been adjusted. The impact of the revision of the R R EREREEDAERRE -

original estimates, is recognised in the profit and
loss with a corresponding adjustment to the share
options reserve.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

On 22 May 2017, the Group completed the
acquisition of (i) the entire issued capital of
Zhong Hui Global Limited (“Sale Share")
and (ii) the shareholder’s loans due by
Zhong Hui Global Limited (“Zhong Hui")
and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Zhong
Hui Group”) (“Sale Loan”) to Mr. Li,
Chairman of the Company) and his affiliated
companies at a total consideration of
HK$312,000,000.

Zhong Hui is a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI"”) in January 2013
with limited liability and was then wholly
owned by Bestwin International Investment
Limited (the “Vendor”). The Vendor which
is wholly owned by Mr. Li. Zhong Hui is
an investment holding company and its
principal asset is its investment in Real
King International Holdings Limited (”Real
King"”), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability. Real King wholly
owns ESBE (AL)ELEEEERAA
("ESEME (FEZX) ") which was established
in the PRC and owns a 100% interest in
the investment property under construction
located at the junction of Fengcheng Tenth
Road and Wenjing Road, Weiyang District,

Xi'an, Shaanxi Province, the PRC.
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BIFEEEDEXRXAQFE
EEEEREBB AR ZBRE
ER(IHEER]) BREA
312,000,000 7T, °
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EEBeBAREE ([XES
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A ERAEBERKREER
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

(a)

(continued)

Pursuant to the acquisition agreement and
the loan purchase and financing agreement
signed on 2 February 2017 and their
supplemental deeds on 13 March 2017, the
consideration of Sale Share and Sale Loan
shall be satisfied by the Company issuing the
convertible bonds of HK$96 million (“Share
Consideration Bonds”) and HK$216
million (“Loan Consideration Bonds”) to
the Vendor and Mr. Li or their nominee(s)
respectively. In addition, Mr. Li agreed
to provide financing to the Group in the
amount of HK$58 million after completion
of the acquisition to fund the construction
costs of the investment property by means
of issuing another convertible bonds of
HK$58 million (“Financing Bonds"”) of the
Company in two tranches to Mr. Li. All Share
Consideration Bonds, Loan Consideration
Bonds and Financing Bonds carry interest at
3% per annum and shall mature on the date
falling on the second anniversary of the date
of issue.

The primary asset acquired from the
acquisition is the investment property under
construction and hence the acquisition has
been accounted for as an assets acquisition.

40. BB LT (&)

(a)

(%)

BER-ZZE—+tF-_AZHH
EZWBEBEARBEREE R
MEBBEARAER=-_FT—t
FZA+T=-HAZHERERE &
ERNDEBEEERZIRER
FERARNFBDBAER RS
FHESIERBABRTESER
96,000,000 7T ([ R EE
% 1) 216,000,000 T ([&
RREES ) WATBRKREST
AZAFotbsh FEERER
WHEBETKE MASER
£ & 458,000,000 T A M
BIREMENEERATRHEE
& ARNAD ML LA TT
58,000,000/ T AR & 5 —
EaBmRES ((REEF]) -
FTERMREES BERRE
BEHRAMEEFERFENEI%ET
B WERETHERE R
FEREH-

RHBEZREEZIZEER
EEREYE BB EHEEE
BEWEBARK-
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % % — /\4E=H =+ —H L4

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. WEEHMIB AT (&)
(continued)
Consideration transferred EEERE
HK$'000
FAT
Fair value of Share Consideration BOREBEESRERREESFZ
Bonds and Loan Consideration Bonds DA (FHBE A FE34)
(details set out in note 34) 535,806

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised by the AEFERKERHZEWRBEERE
Group at the date of acquisition are as follows: WREBFENOT:

HK$'000

T T

Property, plant and equipment L ESR 12
Investment properties WEME 452,034
Bank balances and cash WITHEBR KRS 108,163
Construction cost accruals FEET R EEA A (64,402)
Amounts due to related companies JETREE R RIARIA (192,562)
Amount due to a director BN —R2EERA (85,093)

218,152
Sale Loan HEEX 216,000
Total consideration transferred BEZEARE (535,806)
Loss arising from acquisition WP E £ R E 18 (101,654)
Net cash inflow from acquisition WG 2HSRAEE
Bank balance and cash acquired BUEEIRITE SR IR 108,163
Consideration paid in cash RBReZ MR E -

108,163
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

40. BB LT (&)

(continued)
(@)  (continued) (a) (#&)
The significant loss arising from acquisition WEMEEANERBEDEE

is mainly due to the valuation of Share
Consideration Bonds and Loan Consideration
Bonds conducted by an independent
qualified professional valuer as consideration
of acquisition in excess of the fair value of
the identified assets and liabilities acquired.

On 11 June 2017, the Company, Trillion
Up Limited (“Trillion Up”, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), Instant Karma
Global Holdings Limited (“IK Global”),
an independent third party and two
independent individuals entered into an
agreement (“Agreement”) in relation to (i)
the subscription of new shares in Alpha Yield
Limited (“Alpha Yield”, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Trillion Up) by IK Global with a
consideration to be satisfied by the transfer
of the entire issued capital of MCM Holdings
Limited by IK Global to Alpha Yield and (ii)
subscription of additional new shares in
Alpha Yield by Trillion Up in the amount of
US$4 million (equivalent of HK$31,221,000)
in cash.

MCM Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “MCM Group”) are principally
engaged in the securities, options and
futures brokerage, capital raising, advisory
and equity research business in Hong Kong.

All conditions precedent under the
Agreement were satisfied and the
completion took place on 6 November 2017.
After completion, MCM Group became
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Alpha Yield
and Alpha Yield remained as a 51%-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

R ERKBSEZNE B
BERBEMAEMYR N KE
BEFRERREEFMETZ
fmE BHARSHEBNEE
MBEAFEMRS-

RZE—+tF~A+—8"
A A~ Trillion Up Limited
(ITrillion Up|) (KRR zE
EH B AR Instant Karma
Global Holdings Limited (TIK
Global |) - — % BV E =71
HWAEBELBAAR L — D%
& ([ZHm=&]) A BBEGIK
GlobalREBEER AR ([E
&) (Trillion Upz & &Mt B
RNEDWEF KRG REKER
IK Global# EMCM Holdings
Limitedz 2 &2 #1TRA T
TEL S R(i)Trillion UpMA
1 €4,000,000E 7T (MEFR
31,221,000/ 70 ) RIEE B
HNET AR5

MCM Holdings Limited & £ Fff
BAd (il IMCMER])
EHEBENEFS HRLKAE
gad B BRI RRERE
7 o

T T MR SR
RoT—t&+— ANBER
RS2k e A S B 5 - MCMEE
RATENZENER LT
BN AARAEAES %EIES
of DR
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % % — /\4E=H =+ —H L4

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. WIEME AT (&)
(continued)
Consideration transferred EEERE
HK$'000
FAT
Fair value of 49% of Alpha Yield and AR K E B A B149% AR 2
its subsidiaries NEE 35,432
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised by the NEBRUEMCME B B UL > 5
Group at the date of acquisition of MCM Group are ERERACAEMNT
as follows:
HK$'000
FAT
Property, plant and equipment L ER S 704
Other receivables H b e W BR I8 2,777
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE 1,239
Bank balances and cash RITHEGFNRS 3,287
Trade receivables EWE FiRA 8,146
Amounts due from related companies FE UL BE3E A R AR IA 52
Other payables and accruals HEihEFERIB N ERTE A (3,622)
Amount due to immediate holding company J& (< & % £ i% A 7] BR 1A (7,821)
Loans from staffs BETEXR (18,800)
Obligations under finance lease BhE AR E A IE (215)
Amount due to a director B —RESRE (29)
(14,282)
Goodwill arising on acquisition: WHEES 2 &
Consideration transferred BEEAE 35,432
Plus: non-controlling interests hn - FEFE R A A
(49% in MCM Group) (RMCMEE 249%# 5) (6,998)
Plus: net liabilities acquired ez GRS 14,282
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEE HE 42,716
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

(b)

(continued)

The gross contractual amounts of trade
receivables, other receivables, and amounts
due from related companies acquired and
their fair values at the date of acquisition
amounted to HK$8,146,000, HK$2,777,000,
HK$52,000 respectively.

Acquisition-related costs were insignificant
and have been excluded from the cost of
acquisition and have been recognised as
an expense in the current year within the
"administrative expenses” line item in the
consolidation statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition because
the consideration paid for the combination
effectively included amounts in relation to
the benefit of expected synergies, revenue
growth and future development as the
Group can leverage the financial services
expertise of the MCM Group with the local
presence and strong network of the Group
in Shaanxi Province, the PRC to create a
dynamic investment and asset management
group that bridges the needs and
opportunities of Shaanxi enterprises with

international capital markets and investors.

40. BB LT (&)

(b)

(%)

PUEE B ERPTI i 2 FEIE 5
BRI - E ftb FE U BR 1B % JIE U B
ERNRBRBZANBERER
&5 B A8,146,0005% It »
2,777,000/ 7T 252,000/ 7T ©

WEHEKRALTNERBEEB
WERANGR YERAFE
EmaEahEMbzmEER
Z [T ] R E AR R
Fo

HREHIHHNREZERERE
E378 HA 1 R 28R - I AIE R IR
RERBBAOZE  HHEAK
BEL REAARNEEREFA
MCME B S BRBERRA
EEE R REBRTEE KA FE B
Kog K4 - DT E— (@G BB
BRERBEERER  HHRAD
XHFEREAMSERREEN
ERR B BB
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)
Net cash inflow on acquisition of MCM Group

40. BB LT (&)

WEMCMEE 2R &R AFHE

HK$'000

T T

Cash consideration paid ERNESKE -
Less: cash and cash equivalent balance BoFTEsRE KBRS

acquired (3,287)

3,287

Included in loss for the year is HK$8,831,000
attributable to the additional business generated
by MCM Group. Revenue for the year includes
HK$5,690,000 generated from MCM Group.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 April
2017, total group revenue for the year would
have been HK$1,268,413,000 and loss for the
year would have been HK$35,056,000. The pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes only
and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and
results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 April 2017, nor is it intended to be
a projection of future results.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

41.

42.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 41. HREE
Corporate guarantee N AER
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Guarantee given to banks in HETIEFTRECHE
respect of financing guarantee Y& {R AR 75 0 [A) 88 77 1E tH
services provided to: 2R
- Independent third parties —-BUFE=F 411,816 390,563
— Related parties —HAEATL 30,963 14,110
442,779 404,673

Details about the management of credit risk by the
Group regarding these financing guarantees are set
out in note 46.

As at 31 March 2018, financial guarantee contracts
of HK$3,180,000 (2017: HK$2,977,000) represent
the fair values of the financial guarantee contracts
initially recognised less cumulative amortisation at
the end of the reporting period.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. The Group contributes 5% of the relevant
payroll costs or capped at HK$1,500 (based on the
choice of employees) to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme in Hong Kong, which contribution is

matched by employees.

42.

ARERZEMEEREEEERR
Z B E M 46 o

RZE-N\F=ZA=+—H8B @mEE
RE#93,180,000 L (=T — 4
2,977,000 70 ) I W) H R EL A R
EHZATFERNRERR 2 Rt #
ek

EAKRBERGE

AEBEZRBRIERERTE  HTE
RERZBBREELHE FTEEERK
EEEE S UNESLHFABT
AABE - AEBBKBEBRTF 2K EAZ
5%3k bA1,500%8 7T & LR (1R B8
B)AEBSRFM AT ®
B B FEMAR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
(continued)

The employees of the Company'’s subsidiaries in the
PRC are members of retirement benefits schemes
operated by the PRC government. The relevant PRC
subsidiaries were required to contribute certain
percentages of the monthly salaries of their current
employees to fund the benefits. The employees
were entitled to retirement pension calculated
with reference to their basic salaries on retirement
and their length of service in accordance with
the relevant government regulations. The PRC
government was responsible for the pension liability
to the retired staff.

The employer’s contributions to the retirement
benefits scheme charged to profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income amounted to HK$5,956,000
for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017:
HK$4,333,000).
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

43.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 43.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases which fall due as

KREHERE

RMERAR REER AT HELE
HMECAREERBEENKHEB WM
T

follows:
As lessee {EREME A
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T FET
Within one year —FR 11,962 6,929
In the second to fifth year F_EZEFRF(BEEE
inclusive MEENR) 11,769 11,101
23,731 18,030

Operating lease payments represent rental payable
by the Group for its office premises and equipment.

Leases are negotiated for a term ranging from one
to three years and rentals are fixed for the lease

period.

REMENFEARERXNERST
BREENHESE -

BEZEMNF—E==F HEHANAE
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 43. REMERIE (&)
(continued)
As lessor ERHEMEA
2018 2017
=E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER T T
Within one year —F R 3,543 5,530
Operating lease income represents rental receivable REHERABEAEERBEEENE
by the Group for its leasing of retail shops, offices ERERNZEEEH PAEREBA
and car parks in the Commercial Complex. i EW 2 & -
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 44, EBERERE
2018 2017
—E-NE —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Capital expenditure contracted B &I £{E I KR
but not provided for in RE B SRR
the consolidated financial TE BB 2
statements in connection with & ZANFE
the investment properties HFRIRAE
under construction WMEBH 176,786 77,986
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 45. EXEBER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.
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45,

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

The capital structure of the Group consists of
the amounts due to related companies and a
director, bank and other borrowings, 3.0%/10.0%
convertible bonds, and 7.5%/9.0%/12.0% coupon
bonds and which are disclosed in notes 32, 33,
34 and 35 respectively and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital and reserves. The directors of the Company
monitor current and expected liquidity requirement
as well as the summary compliance report on loan
covenants regularly. The directors of the Company
review the capital structure on a continuous basis.
As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends and issuance of new shares as well as
raising of new bank/other borrowings or advances
from related parties and the repayment of existing
bank/other borrowings or repayment to related

companies.

45. EXRAKRER (&)

REBvEAEBEBREMNE32 -
33 34355 B ¢ 2 ME N E
RAKR—BREFEREHE RITEKEAM
B 3.0%/10.0% 7] % EFHF &
7.5%/9.0%/12. 0% E B8 &% LA R
ABAARGEZ BEEBTERA
RiFE#H NARZERTHERRFRIE
MR ESFTEURBETEREADY
W ARBEEFERIERLEE - 1E
BB 8D ANAREEEEERN
LR R BLE AN AR 2 bR o AR
RESZHEERER AEEKEBRZN
BB R BT RS LA RIS F R 1T,
HEMERNREBERACBRAREE
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 46. R T A
Categories of financial instruments TRTADE
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Financial assets ERMEE
Loans and receivables EREERRIE
(including cash and (BEE2 K
cash equivalents) ReFEMEEAER) 1,003,202 736,107
AFS investment AHEERE 1,239 -
1,004,441 736,107
Financial liabilities SREEE
Amortised cost 58 B AN 2,942,598 1,715,189
Financial liabilities classified as D AL A FEET A
at FVTPL—conversion option BanemaE—mAR
derivative embedded in AR EFH 2 R
convertible bonds PTETA - 121
Financial guarantee contracts BEERE L 3,180 2,977
2,945,778 1,718,287
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46.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade receivables, bills receivables, loan receivables,
other receivables and deposits, deposit paid for
a life insurance policy, finance lease receivables,
amounts due from/to former subsidiaries, amounts
due from/to related companies, amount due to a
director, amount due to ultimate holding company,
pledged bank deposits, restricted deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade payables, construction
cost accruals, other payables and accruals, loans
from staffs, obligations under finance leases, bank
and other borrowings, 3.0%/10.0% convertible
bonds, conversion option derivative embedded
in convertible bonds, 7.5%/9.0%/12.0% coupon
bonds, obligation arising from a put option to non-
controlling shareholders and financial guarantee
contracts. Details of the financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. In addition, certain trade receivables,
bills receivables, bank balances and trade payables
are denominated in foreign currencies other than
the functional currency of the respective group

entities.

46.

TRMIA (&)
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2) FERBEABHESRAR - TX
BB EZERBRZBE EEEERE
NMESE LSRR o ARER N A U R
BUEE 2B

5 R R

ERmER
ARAETHEBRBEAINEFEZ
HE SAKEHERINE B -t sh -
RESNEEERZINGEEEIN ETE
WEHRIE  BRERE RITETFNE
18 5 RIEEASMNE T E

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % I tp 6 B B #% )8 45 B8 44 7] Annual Report 2018 4



46.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % % — /\4E=H =+ —H L4

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 46. TRIT A (&)
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies FBRAREEBERBER (&)
(continued)
Market risk (continued) R E G (4E)
Currency risk (continued) M E G (4E)
The Group currently does not have a foreign N 2 [ 35 B Y 4 SN S b B 5 o SR
currency hedging policy. However, management sHEBEeERIIERBICHESE
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will EEYEHE AINERR -
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign PANES B REBEEEER G
currency denominated monetary assets and BERBESEHETENT
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as
follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE &f
2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-N\f —T-t+tF ZB-N§f CT+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR TET
United States dollars (“US$") %7t ([Ex]) 123,461 82,363 452,122 289,852
Renminbi (“RMB") ARE(TAR%]) 206 28,249 - -
MOP BT 12,608 12,655 - -
136,275 123,267 452,122 289,852
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46.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

For certain group entities whose functional currency
is either HK$ or MOP, the change in exchange
rate of its functional currency against MOP or US$
or HK$ respectively has not been considered in
the sensitivity analysis below as HK$ is pegged to
US$ and MOP is always stabilised with unchanged
value to HK$. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the Group does not expect any
significant movements between the exchange rate
of relevant functional currency against US$, MOP or
HK$.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has monetary
assets denominated in RMB as the foreign currency
of the group entity. 5% is the sensitivity rate
used which represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
year end for a 5% change in the foreign currency
exchange rate. A positive number below indicates
a decrease in loss for the year (2017: increase in
profit for the year) where RMB strengthens 5%
against HKS. For a 5% weakening of RMB against
HK$, there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the loss for the year (2017: profit for the year)
and the balances below would be negative.

TRMIA (&)

PR ERBRNBER (&)

TR (&)

EEmEE (&)

BRRE DT
AETURETIRMTRINEEEDN
SEERMS AATMETHE M
BFTEERETEBRETE Wik
EEDRRERFATHETH AT L
PEREFHWEKE BN AT BRED
AR RRABEERR NEEEMNA
R ERAYETT  RFI TR T
BEER TSR ERERE-

RZE-NF=A=+—B X&H
BRBEUAARE ((FREBERZINE)
FHECEBEE-FTRAZERELE
5% MEEBHEESEBRTIN
[EERZ AL EE - GUREDTERR
RFRINEHEEHHR - LFL5%IP
BEXEINFRARZFRE 2&
o THERKRTEARELELIE
S%RRHESAFEBRES (ZF—+
FoARFRGMIBM) - W AR LB
TTRES% g HAFEER(=-F
—tF AFEREMN)ARERERZ
FELTXEHRBRAR-
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

ERTIA (&)
B EREE AR RBR ()

TS E R (&)
EEERE (&)
BRREDHT (&)

RMB
AR
Year ended 31 March
BEZHA=+—HLHFE

2018 2017
—2-N\fF —EF—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Decrease in loss for the year REEZEBERD
(2017: increase in profit ZE—+F AFE
for the year) & Mg ) 9 1,179

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent foreign currency risk in relation to RMB
impact as the end of the reporting period exposure
does not reflect the exposure during the year.
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46.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to the impact of interest rate changes on
variable-rate bank and other borrowings, variable-
rate bank overdraft, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to the impact of interest rate
changes on obligations under finance leases, fixed-
rate loan receivables, fixed-rate bank and other
borrowings, fixed-rate loans from staffs, fixed-
rate finance lease receivables, fixed-rate restricted
deposit, obligation arising from a put option to a
non-controlling shareholder, 7.5%/9.0%/12.0%
coupon bonds and 3.0%/10.0% convertible bonds.

The Group's exposure to interest rates on
financial liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk
management section in this note. The Group's
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of the HIBOR and PBOC
Rate arising from the Group’'s HK$ and RMB
denominated borrowings as well as the Group's

HK$ denominated loan receivables.

The Group currently does not have interest rate
hedging policy. However, management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need

arise.

46.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

For the variable-rate bank balances at 31 March
2018 and 2017, the directors consider the Group's
exposure to future cash flow interest rate risk is
minimal taking into account the minimal fluctuation
on market interest rate and the carrying amounts
at the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, no

sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk is presented.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below were determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for the
variable-rate bank and other borrowings, variable-
rate bank overdraft, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis was prepared assuming the amount
of liability and asset outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole
year. A 25 basis points (2017: 25 basis points)
increase or decrease represented management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 25 basis points (2017: 25
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group's loss for the year
ended 31 March 2018 would decrease/increase
by HK$686,000 (2017: profit for the year would
decrease/increase by HK$1,174,000).
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46.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of
the inherent interest rate risk as the end of the
reporting period exposure does not reflect the

exposure during the year.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties and financing guarantees provided
by the Group arises from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position
and the amount of contingent liabilities in relation
to financing guarantees provided by the Group as

disclosed in the note 41.

ERTIA (&)
B EREE AR RBR (4)

w5 (&)

FEm bz (&)

BREDHT (&)

ARREZRS WERESTER
ZHMERBRY ALK BRRER
& HIRH R 2 [ 2 3 = B 4 7 2 [

7aN
i

0 o
ZoN

1EERR
AEBRER S AREBTEERAN
SERHECBEERMEXZUBKIRLR
ZERSEERR  TIRALKREHBHR
RATEIHBECERTREEZRT
18 e M 241 P4 52 /B R A SR B P 2 it
MBERERIKABESHE-

CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ [ v 4 [ B 7 it 5 R 2+ ] Annual Report 2018 4 #i



46.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Credit risk (continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation
to receivable generated from interior decoration
work and trading of consumer goods, regarding
counterparties failure to discharge the obligation
to the Group, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt as stated above, loan receivable and
amounts due from former subsidiaries at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Regarding the policies in order to minimise the
credit risks of the loan receivable, only referral
customers and short term borrowing requests
are accepted. Besides, the credit department is
responsible for formulating appropriate credit
policies. It also conducts background and credit
searches and carries out credit assessment and
submits proposal to executive directors of the
Company for further consideration. Then the
executive directors of the Company take reference
of these information and assess the financial
position of each referral customer to consider if
the loan is approved. Subsequently, the credit
department performs subsequent loan review
regularly to assess if any outstanding loan requires
attention to its collectability.
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46.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Credit risk (continued)

In relation to the Group’s provision of guarantees
to secure obligations of customers for repayment
of their bank borrowings, if there is a default
in repayment by these customers, the Group is
responsible for repaying the outstanding bank
borrowings together with any accrued interests
and penalties owed by the customers to banks.
Such guarantees will be released by banks upon
the repayment of the underlying loans. In order to
minimise the credit risks of these loans, only referral
customers are accepted and short term guarantees
are granted. Besides, the credit department conduct
background and credit searches and submit to
executive directors of the Company for further
consideration. Then the executive directors of the
Company take reference of these information
and assess the financial position of each referral
customer before the guarantee is granted. In
addition, the credit department performs site visit
and loan review regularly to ensure follow up
action is taken to recover overdue debts, if any.
Further, certain portion of those loans had been
settled by the customers to banks subsequently. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk on such guarantees is
significantly reduced. Detailed disclosure of these

guarantees is set out in note 41.

The Group’s bank balances and pledged bank
deposits, are placed with banks of high credit rating
and reputation and the Group has limited exposure

to any single financial institution.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The Group's concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is in Hong Kong and Macau,
which accounts for 93.9% (2017: 38.9%) of the
trade and bills receivables and 67% of the loan
receivable (2017: 64%).

Other than the concentration of credit risk on
bank balances and pledged bank deposits which
are placed with several banks of high credit
ratings, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk except for
the loan receivables. As at 31 March 2018, 51%
(2017:51%) of the loan receivables are due from
two (2017: two) individual borrowers. The Group
has assigned a team to closely follow up the
debts due regularly. Accordingly, the directors of
the Company consider the risk has been properly
addressed.
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46.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to
finance the Group's operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Management
monitors the utilisation of bank and other

borrowings.

The Group relied on bank and other borrowings
as a significant source of liquidity. The Group
monitored and reviewed periodically the conditions
of loan covenants of the existing banking facilities
and tried all efforts to comply with the loan
covenants. In case of any breach of the loan
covenants noted, the Group would communicate
with the respective bank to discuss the possibility of
revising the relevant loan covenants and arranging
for waiver of immediate repayment.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The directors of the Company closely monitor the

liquidity of the Group. Taken into account of:
(i) internal financial resources;

(ii) the availability of the Group's credit facilities
of approximately HK$1,138,764,000 as at 31
March 2018, of which HK$1,088,788,000

has been drawn down; and

(iii)  loan facilities from Mr. Li of approximately
HK$400,000,000 pursuant to the revolving
loan facility letter entered into between the

Company and Mr. Li on 1 April 2018.

The directors of the Company consider that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to
finance its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the
foreseeable future. On this basis, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.
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46.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with
a repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of
the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for financial liabilities are based on

the agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate at the end of the reporting period.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 46. TRIT A (&)
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies FBRAREEBERBER (&)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) B AT (&
Liquidity tables T EZ 5 F
Weighted ~ On demand Total
average or Total carrying
effective less than 3 months to 1-2 Over undiscounted  amounts at
interest rate 3 months 1 year years 2 years cash flows 31 March 2018
RZB-N\%
MEFRS RERS =fiA #¥E =A=t-H
31 March 2018 ERAE  HR=AA 2-f -E@ME BBME HERENE CURERE
—Z-N\E=fA=+-H % per annum HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFE% TER TERT TER TR TER TER
Trade payables ERESEE - 74,345 - - - 74,345 74,345
Other payables and accruals Bt ENEERETBRE - 76,471 - - - 76,471 76,471
Deposits received from tenants AP HR 2 e - 19,623 - - - 19,623 19,623
Construction cost accruals JESHREN K - 164,576 - - - 164,576 164,576
Amount due to a director EN-2ESKRE - 3 - - - 43 3
Amounts due to related ENEERT
companies BIE 14.00 68,186 - - 683,313 751,499 628,727
Amounts due to former AR
subsidiaries BB 14.00 - 9,536 - - 9,536 8,365
Loans from staffs EIER 12.50 20,670 11,144 - - 31,814 30,857
Other borrowing - fixed rate EEH-E8 12.00~18.00 31,961 97,416 62 - 129,439 125,368
Bank borrowing - variable rate  $1TET %8 137~1.13 385,157 163,896 356,721 81,784 987,558 960,398
Bank overdraft - variable rate  FTEX 28 5.25 9,908 - - - 9,908 9,908
9.0% coupon bonds - fixed rate 9.0%F EEH T & 11.90 - 31,500 381,500 - 413,000 355,967
12.0% USD coupon bonds 120%FETEEEH
- fixed rate ) 12.99 7,140 7,180 14,321 132,065 160,706 119,099
3.0% convertible bonds 3.0% A RRES 24.94 - 362,250 - - 362,250 287,802
Obligation arising from a put ~ FFEHRRAR SR & it
option to a non-controlling EOLE
shareholder EERE 14.00 - - 108,201 - 108,201 81,049
Financial guarantee contracts T %(H % &R
issued X
- Maximum amount quarantee  — &= BER
(note 41) (Wita1) - 442,779 - - - 442,779 3,180
1,300,859 682,922 860,805 897,162 3,741,748 2,945,778
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46.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 46. €RLT B (&)
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies HBRREEEERBUL (&
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) B AT (&
Liquidity tables B EZ I H
Weighted On demand Total
average or 3 months Total carrying
effective less than to 1-2 Over  undiscounted amounts at
interest rate 3 months 1 year years 2 years cash flows 31 March 2017
RZE—t%F
Mg RERSK =R K¥R =A=1-H
31 March 2017 ERAE HRZEA E-fF —E@F BBME RERELE  LFREE
—T—+t&=-f=1-H % per annum HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BENE% FHL FHL T FHL FEL FibT
Trade payables ENESEE - 27,841 10,824 - - 38,665 38,665
Other payables and accruals — EfENEEERENER - 42,497 14,577 - - 57,074 57,074
Deposits received from tenants  [ARAF UM Z k& - 15,577 - - - 15,577 15,577
Construction cost accruals JEET R M A - 25,368 - - - 25,368 25,368
Amount due to a director ER-2E3HRE - - 1,000 - - 1,000 1,000
Amounts due to related EREEAR
companies BRIE - 203,912 - - - 203,912 203,912
Amount due to ultimate ENHRRERAR
holding company BRI - 844 - - - 844 844
Amounts due to former EREREAT
subsidiaries IR 14.00 - - 8,365 - 8,365 7337
Loans from staffs BIEH 12.50 248 5,552 - - 5,800 5,155
Other borrowing - fixed rate ~ E M EH-F 8 12.00-12.50 5,589 51,576 5,057 - 62,222 58,060
Bank borrowing - variable rate  ${TEH %5 1.25~7.50 151,447 200,258 298,526 395,591 1,045,822 968,477
Borrowings related to bills Bl EREEL
discounted with recourse BERZEBEER 1.55~1.66 45,369 - - - 45,369 45,308
Bank overdraft - variable rate ~ R1TEX 28 525 5,001 - - - 5,001 5,001
7.5% coupon bonds - fixed rate 7.5% % SE%H T & 7.50 - 215,000 - - 215,000 206,688
10.0% convertible bonds, 10.0% AR ES -
included the embedded BETERESZ
derivative components of RAATE
convertible bonds TAH% 24.94 81,714 - - - 81,714 76,844
Financial quarantee BRLBEERAD
contracts issued
~ Maximum amount -SREBER
guarantee (note 41) (Hista1) - 404,673 - - - 404,673 2,977
1,010,080 498,787 311,948 395,591 2,216,406 1,718,287
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The amount included above for financial guarantee
contracts is the maximum amount the Group could
be required to settle under the arrangement for the
full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed
by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on
expectations at the end of the reporting period, the
directors of the Company consider that it is more
likely that not that no amount will be payable under
the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which
is a function of the likelihood that the financial
receivables held by the counterparty which are

guaranteed suffer credit losses.
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46.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
As at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017, the

bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause was included in the “on demand or less
than 3 months” time band in the above maturity
analysis. The aggregate carrying amounts of these
bank borrowings amounted to HK$4,538,000
(2017: HK$5,393,000). Taking into account the
Group’s financial position, the directors of the
Company did not believe that it was probable that
the bank would exercise their discretionary rights
to demand immediate repayment. The directors of
the Company believe that such bank borrowings
would be repaid from one to five years (2017: one
to six years) after the reporting date in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreement. At that time, the aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows would amount
to HK$4,928,000 (HK$1,020,000 repayable
within 1 year, HK$1,020,000 repayable 1 to 2
years, and HK$2,888,000 repayable 2 to 5 years)
(2017: HK$5,832,000 (HK$1,006,000 repayable
within 1 year, HK$1,006,000 repayable 1 to 2
years, HK$3,016,000 repayable 2 to 5 years and
HK$804,000 repayable over 5 years)).

46.

&I A (HF)
FHEREREERER ()

HEELER (&)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Fair value

This note provides information about how the

Group determines fair value of various financial

assets and financial liabilities.

(1)

Fair value of the Group’s financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

The conversion option derivative embedded
in convertible bonds is measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period.
The following table gives information about
how the fair value of this conversion option
derivative is determined (in particular, the

valuation technique and inputs used).

46. €RT R (4&)
MREREERERKE (F)

AFE
AHERHEBAEEE TS ESR
BERSBEBATENIANER o

()  AEEUEFEEERLFE
FEAT B B2 FE

REREHR - RARRBRES
ZHRBRESTETERAFERT
B TREHABEZBREETE
TRARFENEETENER
(LERMEANGET A RE
AE) °

Fair value at Fair value Valuation technique and Significant
Financial liability 31 March 2017 hierarchy key inputs unobservable inputs
RZB-t%
ZAZT-BH
SREE AYVE AYEER HEFERTERAE BEXTUEERAE
Conversion option Conversion option Level 3 Binominal option pricing model Volatility of the share price of
derivative derivative embedded FZE “HEASEEERE the comparable companies,
embedded in in convertible bonds: determined by reference to
convertible bonds US$15,600 (equivalent The fair value is estimated based on the historical share price of
BATARES2E o HK$121,000) (as at the key inputs: risk-free interest the comparable companies
RENTETR 31 March 2017) rate, discount rate, share price (from  (Note)

RATRRES 2 AREDN observable market data), volatility of ATELBRARREKELLRY
AT A:15600%7 (1 the share price of the comparable EHBNABEREEET
£3121,00087) (R companies, dividend yield and exercise ~ (#7z#)
ZE-tFZA=T- price
B) REFZEAE: BRRFZ BRE R

E(RITBERTAHEST) TELR

AERERE BREXRTERRND

TE
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46. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 46. TR T A (&)

(continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies FBRAREEBERBER (&)

(continued)

Fair value (continued) - FE (&)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial liabilities (i) N5 ] LA B
that are measured at fair value on a Bt EmE@E ER A FE
recurring basis (continued) (%)

Note: The higher the volatility of the share price Hit: AlELBAFRERER
of the comparable company, the higher RN BBRETETARNTE
the fair value of the conversion option Am-HE-T—tF=A
derivative. The volatility of the share price =+—HIEFE AFER
of the Company used in the fair value SEMERAMNARFREKE
measurement is 137.73% during the year £137.73% ° AR ESFE
ended 31 March 2017. The convertible RZE—+tFAZ+NH
bonds was fully redeemed on 29 June R BIEE -

2017.
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value TRABEE=EBATEITEHER

measurements of financial liabilities

Conversion
option derivative

embedded in

convertible

bonds

BMATRKRES 2

BRETETR

HK$'000

FAT

At 1 April 2016 RZZFE—XRFMNA—H 7,891
Fair value gain recognised in REEERZ

profit or loss NEEKE (7,753)

Exchange realignment PE AR (17)

At 31 March 2017 RZE—tF=H=+—H 121
Fair value gain recognised in REEERZ

profit or loss N EW S (121)

At 31 March 2018 RZZE-NF=A=+—H -

288 CHINLINK INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % [ ri 4 B9 Bt 42 5t 1 R 24 5] Annual Report 2018 4 #i




46.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 W5 R W

For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Fair value (continued)

(1)

(i1)

Fair value of the Group’s financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (continued)

The Group engages qualified external
valuers to perform valuations for financial
instruments. The accounting officer reports
the findings of the valuation prepared by
the qualified external valuers to the board
of directors of the Group every half year
and explain the cause of fluctuations in
the fair value of the financial instruments.
Information about the valuation techniques
and inputs used in determining the fair value
of various assets and liabilities are disclosed
above.

Fair value of the Group’s financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value not on a
recurring basis

The fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities have been determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on a discounted cash flow
analysis, with the most significant inputs
being the discount rate that reflects the

credit risk of counterparties.

The directors of the Company consider that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.
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47. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 47. METBHELEZEBYHE
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITES
The table below details changes in the Group's TRAFMAEERETZHELEZEE
liabilities arising from financing activities, including 2 (PERSRILRED) BE
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising EBELAZABEARERED HARK
from financing activities are those for which cash ReRERNEERERERIES
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified BMETHELEZAESRECAEZ
in the consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.
Financing
cash flows
other than Acquisition Accrual Interest Exchange
1 April 2017 interest  of subsidiary interest paid Others  realignment 31 March 2018
HE
—E-tF RAeHE W —B-N\F
mE-A (RSB WEAR EHS EREES 4 EXSE =A=t-8
HKS 1000 HKS 1000 HKS 000 HK$ 1000 HKS 1000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 1000
T THRL TER TER ThL TERL TERT TR
Bank and other borrowings 1,076,846 35,946 - 63519 (59,065) (45,308)" BIH 1095674
Loans from staffs 5,155 5,861 18,800 674 (430) - 797 30,857
Amounts due to related companies 203,912 359,788 69,476 19,182 - (64,407)0 40,776 628,727
Amount due to a director E i) 1,000 (986) 29 - - - - 3
Amount due to ultimate ERREERAA
holding company B2 844 (844) - - - - - -
Amounts due to former subsidiaries ERAINBRAAERE 7337 - - 1,028 - - - 8,365
10.0% convertble bonds 100%T 2R ES 76723 (77,011) - 10,607 (10607) - E -
7.5% coupon bonds 15%EE6E5 206,688 (206,688) - 8,312 (8312) - - -
3.0% convertible bonds 30%TERES - 58,000 209,403 50,393 (6,104) (23,890)" - 287,802
9.0% coupon bonds 285 - 329,000 - 26,967 - - - 355,967
12.0% coupon bonds - 113,661 - 4,901 - - 537 119,099
Obligations under finance leases BANERE 1,481 (803) 215 87 (87) - - 893
Obligation arising from a put optionto W HRBERR L8 HiE
a non-controlling shareholder EEVAE - - - 3,808 - 73,756 3,485 81,049
Total 3 1,579,986 615,864 297,923 189,478 (84,605) (59,849) 69679 2608476
(i) The amount represents the borrowings related to (i) Z &R N B HARF AR TSR 2 I
bills discounted with recourse derecognised upon BEZEEZEUHBEREBEHCE
maturity. .
(ii) The amount represents the adjustments on (ii) ZeEERNEEARREZERR
carrying amount of amounts due to related BRE-
companies.
(iii) The amount represents the equity components of (iii) #Z & %8B 3R 230,000,000/ 7T
HK$30,000,000 and HK$28,000,000 convertible %.28,000,0007% 7T AT 2R EH 2 &
bonds recognised and the amount of convertible =P UNREBRAERAB LT ER 2
bonds converted into ordinary shares of the AMRES &R
Company.
(iv)  The amount represents the present value of the (iv) Z TV L R 2 I ERARR

RURAMEEE 2 AR ZRE-

obligation arising from a put option to a non-
controlling shareholder initially recognised.
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MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2018, 13,716,814
ordinary shares of the Company with an aggregate
par value of HK$4,286,000 were issued upon the
partial conversion of the 3.0% Convertible Bonds.
Besides, the 3.0% Convertible Bonds with principal
amount of HK$312,000,000 were issued and 49%
equity interest of Alpha Yield and its subsidiaries
was transferred as consideration for acquisition of

subsidiaries. Details are set out in note 40.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with related parties

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
provided financing guarantee services to the related
companies which also constituted as continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules and

the amounts as listed in the table below:

48.

49.

FEHFAESRS
REBEE_ZEZ—-N\F=-A=+—HL
FEN - ANA R 4B E4,286,00078 7T
213,716,814 TR B R & HE ik
3.0%A MIRESFFETWIN KXE
¥4 /312,000,000 JT 2 3.0% A #2 A%
BHETET MuERENBARZ
49% R ED THEEERKENE A A
B FFIEE M MIFE40

BEEALXRS
HEBEALTZRS
RBE-_T-N\F=ZA=T—HIF
ER AEEREEEQRIRHEEER
AR%5 - MARE EWARA BRARS TS
RFTERER S &M TRFIR:

Revenue from financing

guarantee services

MERREBHEBA
2018 2017
—E-N\EF e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Related Companies (Note) BAERN T (MaF) 2,024 833
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49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 49. BEAXXRZ (&)
(continued)
Transactions with related parties (continued) HEEALTIRS (&)
Revenue

from finance

lease services

MEEERB WA
2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET T
Related Companies (Note) BENT (HiF) 1,326 -
Rental expenses
HERX
2018 2017
—E-N\E S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Related Companies (Note) ENR (M) 1,006 -
Note: Companies in which the controlling shareholder Bt : AARHERBRR (BRARQRE
of the Company (who is also a director of the F)HZERBRRHBE A AE
Company) or the relatives of this controlling EATENZ2ZERB ([BEA
shareholder has significant influence to these ;)

companies (“Related Companies”).
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
Transactions with related parties (continued)

Apart from the transactions as listed in the table
above, the amount of financing guarantee provided
to the Related Companies at 31 March 2018
was RMB25,000,000 (2017: RMB12,500,000)
(equivalent to HK$30,963,000 (2017:
HK$14,110,000)). Details of the guarantee amount
are set out in note 41.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has loan facilities
provided by Mr. Li and a company controlled by
Mr. Li totaling approximately HK$626,400,000
pursuant to the loan agreements entered into
between the Company and these parties on 16
June 2016 and 1 September 2016 respectively
and the supplementary agreements on 3 March
2017. The above loan facilities to the extent of
HK$400,000,000 provided by Mr. Li has been
renewed on 1 April 2018 and the facilities to the
extent of HK$173,396,000 has been extended to
April 2020.

Balances with Related Companies

Details of the balance with Related Companies
which is trade in nature and non-trade in nature as
at 31 March 2018 and 2017 are set out in note 24
and note 32, respectively.
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49. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 49. BEALTRS (#£&)
(continued)
Compensation of key management personnel FEBEBEAEZHS
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tl FET

Salaries and other short-term e & H M52 H

employee benefits EER/N 17,672 9,918
Post-employment benefits 1 A& 1& 7 183 110
Equity-settled share-based RRESEENRND &

payments B2 IR 752 1,582

18,607 11,610
All the directors are considered as key management FIBESEOEARSE T EEIRE -
of the Group. During both years, certain managerial RAEFEAN - ETEEEBREDE
employee have been authorised to plan, direct REFE EBRREERAEHR  KLE
and control activities of the Group. Accordingly, EE AL ZEFEREEEBCMEE
compensation to those managerial employee has ERFEEBEAEBZMez —#a A
been included as part of compensation of key Bk o

management personnel.

The remuneration of key management is

FEEBABZHFMAARRAIZIRS
determined by the Company’s nomination and REFMEEGREBARRETSB
remuneration committee having regard to the BETE

performance of individuals and market trends.
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50. KB A TIFFE
ATARRARR-ZE-—N\FR-F
—tE=A=t+—ArWEBAT

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March
2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Issued
share capital/
paid up registered

"

Proportion of

nominal value of issued
capital/registered capital

Name of company and operations capital held by the Company Principal activity
TEMRL KK BRITRE/ ARAFBEERTES/
ARER EEBE BAEMER A E A E 2 A TEEH
2018 2017
“E-N\F —E—+tF
Acelin Investments Limited BVI 4 shares of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
HBERRES ARBIDEGREBEIET REER
Acme Power Holdings Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
HERERBERAA ABABRES 1RRGEREEIET REZR
Alpha Yield Limited BVI 100 shares of 51% 100%  Investment holding
BEARAR HBERRES US$1 each REER
1008 R 17
BREEIET
Alphamount Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
JREER A ABABRES 1RRGEREEIET REER
Blessing China Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Property holding
HEERDA ) HK$1 each ESSEC]
1BCE B R
BREEIET
Brave Plan Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
BEEARAA B HK$1 each RERR
(&30
BREBIET
Chinlink Alpha Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 51% 100%  Investment holding
EREEFRAT B HK$1 each REER
TG ER
BREEIET
Chinlink Capital Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
EETEERBRAA B HK$1 each REER
(&30
BREBIET
Chinlink E-commerce (Xi'an) PRC Nil 100% 100% E-commerce
Company Limited H z BEFEB
EEFSEFES (AR)
BRAAF
Chinlink Finance Lease PRC RMB244,800,000 62.5% 100%  Finance lease
Company Limited FE AR %244,800,0007C BERE

EETEREREERAT
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

50.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Issued
share capital/
paid up registered

Proportion of

nominal value of issued
capital/registered capital

50. MiB DTS (&)

Name of company and operations capital held by the Company Principal activity
SEMRIL/ RIR BRTRE/ ARRFBEHEERITELR/
DRER EELE BHEMER AMEAHEEZ LA TEEH
2018 2017
“E-N\% —E—tF
Chinlink Glory Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
LTHBEER AT A% HK$1 each RERR
i3
BREBIET
Chinlink Group Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Inactive
LEDCBBEZRARDA e HK$1 each Tmex
R E @R
BREEIET
Chinlink Hanzhong Logistics Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited A% HK$1 each RERR
EERSERDRERDA 1REER
BREBIET
Chinlink International Trade PRC RMB264,000,000 100% 100% Provision of
Centre (Hanzhong) F AR #264,000,0007C logistics services
Company Limited REMT RS
EEREEERSHL
CER)ERRA
Chinlink Hong Kong Company Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited e HK$1 each REEK
LER (BB)ARDA &30
BREEIET
Chinlink Management PRC Nil 100% 100%  Consulting
Consulting (Xi'an) H z A
Company Limited
LEFEEEAA (AR)
=1 NG|
Chinlink Mega Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
LTHRHERAT Bk HK$1 each RERR
(&30
BREBIVET
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Issued
share capital/
paid up registered

Proportion of
nominal value of issued
capital/registered capital

50. MiB DTS (&)

Name of company and operations capital held by the Company Principal activity
SEMRIL/ RIR BRTRE/ ARRFBEHEERITELR/
DRER EELE BHEMER AMEAHEEZ LA TEER
2018 2017
ZE-N\F —E—tF
Chinlink Property Management PRC Nil 100% 100%  Inactive
(Shaanxi) Company Limited H z TEEE
EEREMEER (RAE)
ARRA
Chinlink Supreme Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
EEFEEHERAA e HK$1 each RERR
R E @R
BREEIET
Chinlink Supply Chain Services PRC US$4,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of
(Shaanxi) Company Limited H 4,000,000% 7T logistics services
LTEDHEEER (RE) REDRRE
BRRA
Chinlink Strategic Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
EEPERBAERAR e HK$1 each RERR
REBREREEE
7T
Chinlink Tian Hui Company Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Trading of electronic
Limited ) HK$1 each products
LR RERRAF i3 ETEME
BREBIET
CLI Design (HK) Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Trading of furniture and
EEZ: (AB)ERAA B HK$1 each fixtures
2REBAR BRMEEE S
BREEIET
CLI Design (Macau) Limited Macau 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100% Interior decoration work
EERE (R BRAF R MOP 15,000 each ERRHIE
REBRER
EfE15,0002M T
CLI Design Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%  Interior decoration work
EERERAA B HK$1 each EREHTR
2REBAR
BREEIET
Dawn Brightness Global Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
BEAREKBRAA ABABRES 1R &1 RERR
BREEIET
E-Innovation Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
fREIERAA ABABRES 1R &1 RERR
BREEIET
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

50. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

50. MiB DTS (&)

Place of Issued
incorporation/ share capital/
establishment paid up registered

Proportion of
nominal value of issued
capital/registered capital

Name of company and operations capital held by the Company Principal activity
SEMRIL/ RIR BRTRE/ ARRFBEHEERITELR/
DRER EELE BHEMER AMEAHEEZ LA TEER
2018 2017
“E-N\% —E—tF
Esteemed Zone Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
EZHERDF HBABRER 1R &1 REZR
BREEIET
Fair Fortune Group Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
AMEEBERAF HBABRER 1R &1 REZR
BREEIET
Galactic Power Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Financial services
BEARDA (REBU HBABRER 1R &1 ERR%
[BREKABRAR] 2% BREEIET
BETER)
Giant Success International BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited HBERRES 1R R RERR
EREBRERDT SREEIET
Glorious Harvest Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
BEERRA HBERRES 1R R RERR
BREEIET
Goal Achiever Investments BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited HBERRES 1R R RERR
FERAARDA SREEIET
High Express International Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited e HK$1 each REEK
BHEERERLT R E @R
BREEIET
MCM Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 51% - Financial advisory
EiE 50,000,000/ 7T services
R RS
MCM Holdings Limited BVI US$4,000,000 51% - Investment holding
EBRRREE 4,000,000% 7T REER
MCM Investment Partners Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 48% - Financial advisory
Limited e 1,000,000/ 1T services
BB ER RS
MCM Partners UK Limited United Kingdom GBP9,000 51% - Financial advisory
®E 9,0008¢ &% Services
B BER RS
Mega Zone Investments Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
kEGREBRLF HEERRES (8 RERR
BREBIET
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Issued
share capital/
paid up registered

Proportion of
nominal value of issued
capital/registered capital

50. MiB DTS (&)

Name of company and operations capital held by the Company Principal activity
SR B R BRTRE/ ARRFBEHEERITELR/
DRER EELE EHEMER AMEAHEEZ LA TEER
2018 2017
ZE-N\F —E—tF
Real King International (Xi'an) PRC RMB132,016,768 100% - Property investment
Information Technology F AR132,016,7687C MERE
Company Limited
ERER (BAR)EEREK
1N
Shaanxi Chinlink Financial PRC US$30,000,000 51% 100%  Provision of financing
Guarantee Limited H 30,000,000 7T guarantee services
RELETEREERAERAR REREERRH
Sino Yield Enterprise Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
HREEXBRAR ABABRES 1R &1 RERR
BREEIET
Tian Hui Global Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
RERKBRAA ABABRES 1R &1 RERR
BREEIET
Trillion Up Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100%  Investment holding
TRERRA ABABRES 1R &1 RERR
BREEIET
Xi'an Chinlink Commercial PRC RMB 1,000,000 100% - Investment holding
Operation Management F AR %1,000,0007T BREER
Company Limited
AREHHEELER
=1 NG|
Xi'an Da Ming Gong Ba Qiao PRC RMB80,000,000 100% 73.375%  Property investment
Furniture and Fixture Limited F AR #80,000,0007T MERE
AXANAEBRRVRE
BRRA
Xi'an Tang Rong Real Estate PRC RMB320,000,000 100% 73.375%  Property investment
Limited FE AR %320,000,0007T MERE
FAREREXERAT
Zhong Hui Global Limited BVI 1 share of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
HERRARAF HBERRES 1R R REER
BREBIET
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50.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

All the subsidiaries are owned indirectly by the
Company except for Acelin Investments Limited,
Trillion Up Limited, Chinlink Hong Kong Company
Limited, Sino Yield Enterprise Limited, Goal
Achiever Investments Limited, Esteemed Zone
Limited, Dawn Brightness Global Limited and
Glorious Harvest Limited which are owned directly
by the Company.

All PRC subsidiaries are legal entities with limited
liability.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities during the year or at 31 March 2018 and
2017.

50.

MEBARFE (&)

B Acelin Investments Limited+ Ef&H
AR -EEFE(HEAE)BRAAF
FRAYEREAT SEREBERA
A REARAR  BRARKAR AT
RaBERATBRARNTEEEEGIN
FIEWNB AR HAARRIMERES -

FrETENBARARAERRAL

B

RAFERAINR-_Z-—NFR_-ZF
—EFZA=t— A HEBR AL R
HEMERES -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-
controlling interests:

Place of Proportion of
establishment ownership interests and
and principal voting rights held by
Name of subsidiary place of business  non-controlling interests
RIBHER FERBEREZ
WEAREH TREXBE BEREERREEZLA
2018 2017

ZE-N\Ff —T—+%&

50. MYB A RIEE (&)

TRINRAEEZ EBERNIERE
mZIEEEMBRRZFT:

Profit attributable to Accumulated
non-controlling interests non-controlling interests

FERERES 2ER EHEZE E
2018 2017 2018 2017

=2-\f& —F—tf ZB-N\f _—T-tfF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER ThEL TER ThEL

Tang Rong and Ba Qiao (note) ~ PRC Nil 26.625% 48,004 23,487 - 413,616
BERREE (W) e 2
Chinlink Finance Lease PRC 37.50% Nil 421 - 36,897 -
EETSRAMAE i Z
Alpha Yield and its Subsidiaries Hong Kong 49.00% Nil 326 - 40,588 -
BERANELR 0 Z

48,751 23,487 77,485 413,616
Note: Bt &t -

During the year, the Group acquired the equity interests
held by non-controlling shareholders in Tang Rong and Ba
Qiao with an aggregate consideration of RMB295,942,000
(equivalent to HK$366,536,000). Tang Rong and Ba Qiao
became the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the company
after the acquisition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018  # % % — /\4E = =+ —H L4

50.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of
each of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material

non-controlling interests is set out below. The

summarised financial information below represents SHAT . 2 RE©

amounts before intragroup eliminations.

50. MiB DTS (&)

BERAKB 28 HEERFERER
ZHBRBZMBEERBGEEINMT -
UTHBERBERSRERNRRREY

Tang Rong and Ba Qiao Bk
2018 2017
A —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FH T
Current assets mENE E - 54,979
Non-current assets ERBEE = 2,178,508
Current liabilities mEEE - (370,979)
Non-current liabilities FnBBEE = (309,034)
Equity attributable to owners of AN A A AL
the Company 2w - (1,139,858)
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR M AR = (413,616)
Revenue WA 80,422 77,564
Gain on fair value change of wWEWME L AFE
investment properties )= 134,897 87,752
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % % — /\4E=H =+ —H L4

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 50. MBS (&)
(continued)
Tang Rong and Ba Qiao (continued) ERNEE (&)
2018 2017
—B-N\E T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T FET
Expenses 3 (35,021) (77,103)
Profit for the year REE & 180,298 88,213

Profit attributable to owners of AR FIHEA AL

the Company il 132,294 64,726
Profit attributable to the non- FEVE A R o B AL

controlling interests 25 M) 48,004 23,487
Profit for the year NFE 180,298 88,213

Other comprehensive income RATHER AERZ
(expense) attributable to owners EH b2 mE U A

of the Company S (FAX) 113,207 (65,937)
Other comprehensive income EEBRIERIEG 2

(expense) attributable to the Ht2mKA

non-controlling interests /(%) 41,152 (23,926)

Other comprehensive income REEHMEEKA
(expense) for the year S (FX) 154,359 (89,863)
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For the year ended 31 March 2018  # % % — /\4E = =+ —H L4

50. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Tang Rong and Ba Qiao (continued)

EREHRE (&)

50. MiB DTS (&)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAT
Total comprehensive income KRABHEAEGEZ
(expense) attributable to 2HEWA (FAX)
owners of the Company FERE 245,501 (1,211)
Total comprehensive income IR G 2
(expense) attributable to the ZEBA (AX)
non-controlling interests 4858 89,156 (439)
Total comprehensive income AFEE2ARA (FX)
(expense) for the year Bra 334,657 (1,650)
Dividend paid to non-controlling A FE4% A% 4 25 % f+F
interests A% 2 - -
Net cash inflow from operating & EEHMEBZ
activities WERAFRER 21,111 32,461
Net cash (outflow) inflow from R EEKHEZRE (RE)
investing activities mAHE (1,283) 137
Net cash (outflow) inflow from BB EBKHSE 2
financing activities We () mRAFE (56,163) 6,442
Net cash (outflow) inflow RBe ORE)RAFRE (36,335) 39,040
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % % — /\4E=H =+ —H L4

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 50. BRGNS (&)
(continued)
Alpha Yield and its subsidiaries TEREWBA A
2018 2017
—E-N\EF Tt F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Current assets REEE 111,172 -
Non-current assets ERBEE 24,173 -
Current liabilities mEaE (39,960) -
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (12,552) -

Equity attributable to owners of AN A A AL

the Company ZHER (42,245) -
Non-controlling interests PRI A (40,588) -
Revenue WA 27,755 -
Expenses =3 (9,497) -
Profit for the year INFE 18,258 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

50. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 50. BRI (&)
(continued)
Alpha Yield and its subsidiaries (continued) TREMEWNEBE AR (£
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FHT

Profit attributable to owners of AR @B AFE(E

the Company - xl 17,932 -
Profit attributable to the non-  JE#2 fR #EE 25 FE 1

controlling interests 2 A 326 -
Profit for the year NFE A 18,258 -

Other comprehensive income RATHEB AR Z

attributable to owners of Ht2m|E

the Company A 7,909 -
Other comprehensive income R IERIEN 2

attributable to the non- Hih2m|E

controlling interests A 7,599 -

Other comprehensive income REFHAMPE
for the year A 15,508 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % % — /\4E=H =+ —H L4

50. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 50. FiE QRS (&)
(continued)
Alpha Yield and its subsidiaries (continued) TREMEWNEBE AR (£
2018 2017
=E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER T T
Total comprehensive income KRABHEE A
attributable to owners of i e T
the Company LN 25,841 -
Total comprehensive income PRI M AR
attributable to the non- EiEz22E
controlling interests PN 7,925 -
Total comprehensive income REFEZEKBA
for the year FERE 33,766 -
Net cash outflow from KEXBREzHE:
operating activities R RR (3,374) -
Net cash outflow from WEEBFGEZRS
investing activities i O EE (14,355) -
Net cash inflow from MEXBHGE RS
financing activities MAFEE 35,495 -
Net cash inflow WEMAFEE 17,766 _
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For the year ended 31 March 2018  # % % — /\4E = =+ —H L4

50. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 50. MYB A RIS (&)
(continued)
Chinlink Finance Lease TEFEMERE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FET
Current assets MENEE 182,695 -
Non-current assets ERBEE 126,292 -
Current liabilities RBAGE (4,618) -
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (81,049) -
Equity attributable to owners of ZANQ Al A A FE(S
the Company 2R (186,423) -
Non-controlling interests AR = (36,897) -
Revenue A 8,829 -
Expenses F X (7,706) -
Profit for the year RNEE & 1,123 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % % — /\4E=H =+ —H L4

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 50. MBS (&)
(continued)
Chinlink Finance Lease (continued) TEFMERE (&)
2018 2017
A —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT

Profit attributable to owners of AR @B AFE(E

the Company - xl 702 -
Profit attributable to the non-  JE#2 fR #EE 25 FE 1

controlling interests 2 A 421 -
Profit for the year NFE A 1,123 -

Other comprehensive income RATHEB AR Z

attributable to owners of Ht2m|E

the Company A 10,289 -
Other comprehensive income R IERIEN 2

attributable to the non- Hih2m|E

controlling interests A 5,517 -

Other comprehensive income REFHAMPE
for the year A 15,806 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018  # % % — /\4E = =+ —H L4

50.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Chinlink Finance Lease (continued)

EERSRMEMEE (&)

50. MiB DTS (&)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT T T
Total comprehensive income KRABHEE A
attributable to owners of EliE22E
the Company LN 10,991 -
Total comprehensive income PRI M AR
attributable to the non- BiEz2E
controlling interests PN 5,938 -
Total comprehensive income REFZEKBA
for the year k) 16,929 -
Net cash outflow from KEEBFRGECHS
operating activities 7 O EE (183,523) -
Net cash outflow from REXBFEzE:
investing activities i F EE (1,073) -
Net cash inflow from financing BEZEBHMEZRE
activities A FRR 283,649 -
Net cash inflow WEMAFE 99,053 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % —F — \F=H =+ — H IL4FHE

51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 51. RXQB 2 BMRRKRRHE
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHE T
Non-current assets FEMBEE
Investment in subsidiaries REB AR Z2®”E 66,120 34,899
Property, plant and equipment 13 - 5B K& 1,314 1,895
Refundable deposit for T B RE
land auction e - 28,220
Rental deposits ek 1,359 1,359
Amounts due from JE W BT B /B A )
former subsidiaries BRI8 - 615
Amounts due from subsidiaries  JEUYHIB A FBR 18 1,806,805 1,058,281
1,875,598 1,125,269
Current assets mENE E
Other receivables, deposits HaEWIRE - Ze &k
and prepayments TE T 3IE 1,397 7,518
Loan receivables due JE U BfT B8 A A
from subsidiaries B3 112,636 83,227
Amounts due from JFE U BT B A 7
former subsidiaries k18 701 -
Bank balances and cash RITHEENMRS 1,282 1,264
116,016 92,009
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 51. XARIZHBRRKKR#E
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE (#&)
COMPANY (continued)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
TExT FET
Current liabilities REBAG
Amount due to a director BN —RESEREAE 43 1,000
Other payables and accruals HMENRERESER 7,314 3,679
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEF 68,542 -
10.0% convertible bonds 10.0% A] #2 I & & - 76,723
Conversion option AR E 5
derivative embedded in Z AR
convertible bonds PTETE = 121
7.5% coupon bonds 7T5%EBEH - 206,688
Amounts due to former FET RIS B 2 7]
subsidiaries ARIE 8,365 -
84,264 288,211
Net current assets (liabilities) mEEE (BE)FE 31,752 (196,202)
Total assets less current liabilities #2&EREE & & 1,907,350 929,067
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 # % % — /\4E=H =+ —H L4

51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 51. AR BZHBERRRREREE
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE (#&)
COMPANY (continued)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHE T
Non-current liabilities FnBBEE
3.0% convertible bonds 3.0% IR E 5 287,802 -
9.0% coupon bonds 9.0%FEEEFH 355,967 -
12.0% coupon bonds 12.0%EEEFH 119,099 -
Deferred Tax Liabilities EERIBAE 12,748 -
Amounts due to former FE A R BY BB A &)
subsidiaries BRIA - 7,337
775,616 7,337
1,131,734 921,730
Capital and reserves BEARRHE
Share capital (&N 213,662 209,376
Reserves & 918,072 712,354
Equity attributable to RARHEAE AFELS
owners of the Company 2 = 1,131,734 921,730
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 B % —F — /\{F=H =+ —H IL4FEE

51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 51. ZARZHBMRRARKHE
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE (#&)
COMPANY (continued)
Movement in the Company's reserves RAGHEE
Convertible
Share bonds
Share options equity Accumulated Total
premium reserve reserve losses equity
BRE TRRES
B EE e BERE 23R BneE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER TER TER
At 1 April 2016 RZZE—"EMNA—A 607,028 34,725 - (214,374) 427,379
Loss for the year AEEEBR - - - (94,483) (94,483)
Issue of shares Bty 375,147 - - - 375,147
Recognition of HRAREREE
equity-settled VARR 7 A A 7
share-based payments PANE S - 4,311 - - 4,311
Forfeiture of share options R R - (3,201) - 3,201 -
At 31 March 2017 R-F—+t#=ZA=1+—H 982,175 35,835 - (305,656) 712,354
Loss for the year KEEEE - - - (122,578) (122,578)
Recognition of REERGEE
equity-settled PARR 17 A A
share-based payments PARNES - 1,882 - - 1,882
Forfeiture of share options R W B - (387) - 387 -
Recognition of MR AR
equity component of LA 5
convertible bond o - - 345,090 - 345,090
Recognition of R E173.0% ] £
deferred tax liabilities on BREER
issuance of BB
3.0% convertible bonds afE - - (20,012) - (20,012)
Issue of shares upon REH3.0% ] 1%
conversion of BHREET
3.0% convertible bonds i3 9,023 - (8,107) - 916
Derecognition of RE#3.0%
deferred tax liabilities on AR ERE
conversion of BRI
3.0% convertible bonds HMEEE - - 420 - 420
At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\E=A=1+—H 991,198 37,330 317,391 (427,847 918,072
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Chinlink Alpha Limited (“Chinlink Alpha”),
an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, ZHF MR EEREBEER A A
(“Hanzhong Investment”) and Shaanxi Chinlink
Financial Guarantee Limited (“Financial Guarantee
Company”) entered into the new financial
guarantee cooperation agreement in relation to
the capital injection into the Financial Guarantee

Company on 17 May 2018.

Pursuant to the financial guarantee cooperation
agreement, Hanzhong Investment has agreed to
invest RMB120 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$150 million) in the form of registered capital
and capital reserves to Financial Guarantee
Company. As a result, the Financial Guarantee
Company will be held as to 65% by Chinlink
Alpha and 35% by Hanzhong Investment. Financial
Guarantee Company will remain to be accounted
for as a subsidiary of the Company and its financial
results, assets and liabilities will continue to be
consolidated into the financial statement of the
Group. Details are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 17 May 2018.
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BEMREE

EREEARAR ([EFEE] Ao
AlZEEIFEEMBLRR) EPHER
BEREEERAR (EFRE]) &
RAEEREREERERAR ([B
ERRAR)R_Z—N\FRA+L
BRI BERERE(FihE AT A
MRBERFRARLEE -

BERERREERZE  ERIRERR
EUAEMEAREARREHE 2 F A AR
BRRAFEEAR120,000,0007T
(FE R #7150,000,0005 7T ) ° A L -
BMEERAFAEHERERERERE
BN R B65%M35% - g E1E
RABBNIEAERRRZHBRRA
RREMBEE EERABRBERDM
AREB s HBHRER -FBHRAR
AARAE-—FT—N\FRATEHZA
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Group Properties

5 1 P 3%

MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD FOR REREZEE
INVESTMENT ES
Location Lot number Existing use Term of lease
vE b B 4 5% REAR HE
Junction of Jinger Road and 61070200900G- Under development Medium
Weiyi Road, Baohe S00285 for commercial use
Logistic Park, Hantai District,
Hanzhong City,
Shaanxi Province, The PRC
PERARETTESRE YR 61070200900G- R TR
ERA —RERE—RRIER S00285 ((F=E e
Junction of Jinger Road and 61070200900G- Under development Long
Weiyi Road, Baohe S00286 for residential use
Logistic Park, Hantai District,
Hanzhong City,
Shaanxi Province, The PRC
hERAREETTERRETYR  61070200900G- ERSP & H
EEE_RRE - BIER $00286 EEERR
The eastern side of Ban Yin Road, BQ3-4-11 Commercial Complex Medium
Ba Qiao District, Xi'an City, held for rental purpose
Shaanxi Province, The PRC
HERAEAR T BEEYSIERA BQ3-4-11 FELHEAGRZEERE T H
Junction of Fengcheng Tenth Road WY 12-42-9 Under development for Medium
and Wenjin Road, commercial use
Weiyang District, Xi'an City,
Shaanxi Province, The PRC
REIRFEE AL MR RE BT EEE  WY12-42-9 ERPEBERE R

NRBERIE R
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